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Mr. Xu Liang, aged 54, senior accountant, graduated from Fudan
University and obtained a bachelor degree in statistics and a master
degree in business administration from Tsinghua University. Mr. Xu was an
Executive Director of the Company since January 2017 and the Chairman
of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) since June 2017.
Mr. Xu is also the chairman of each of the Executive Committee and
the Nomination Committee, as well as a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is an executive director and the member of the executive
committee of Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company
Limited. He is also an executive director and the member of the executive
committee, the nomination committee and remuneration committee
of Global Digital Creations Holding Limited. Mr. Xu joined the group of
Shougang Group Co., Ltd (“Shougang Group”) in 1988 and held various
senior positions. He is the managing director of Shougang Holding (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Shougang Holding”). Shougang Holding is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") while Shougang Group is the
holding company of Shougang Holding. Mr. Xu has extensive experience
in management.

A fresh service agreement was entered into between Mr. Xu and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 1 January 2020. Under the service agreement, Mr. Xu
is entitled to a salary and discretionary bonus as may be determined
by the Board or its delegated committee(s) from time to time. From
January 2019 to August 2019, Mr. Xu's monthly salary was HK$180,000.
From September 2019, Mr. Xu’'s monthly salary has been adjusted from
HK$180,000 to HK$280,000. For financial year 2020, Mr. Xu's monthly
salary is HK$280,000. Such salary was determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to Mr. Xu's roles and duties as well as the then
prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Su Guifeng, aged 49, holds a bachelor degree in law from China Youth
University of Political Studies. Mr. Su was appointed as an Executive Director
and Managing Director of the Company in September 2019, and is a member
of the Executive Committee. Mr. Su is also a director of Beijing West Business
Factoring Company Limited* (7= P8 7 2 1% 32 A BR 2 &]), which is held as
to 41.41% equity interests by the Company. Mr. Su held various positions,
including a cadre of Party Committee Office, secretary of Youth League
Committee, deputy director and director of the Office and executive deputy
director of business development office in the Design Institution of National
Radio and Television Administration from August 1992 to April 2004. Mr.
Su also worked at the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council, and held various positions including deputy
director of news department, director of news department, executive deputy
director of news centre and chief editor of the magazine “SASAC Report”
from April 2004 to March 2016. From April 2016 to September 2019, Mr.
Su held the position of senior vice president of Shanghai Zhaogang Netcom
Corporation Limited. Mr. Su has profound experience in the area of public
relations in both government and media. He is also well familiar with the policy
backgrounds of the steel industry and development of steel corporations, as
well as operational management of large and medium government managed
corporations and State-owned corporations. He has also intensive studies in
law.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Su and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 19 September 2019. Under the service agreement, Mr. Su is entitled
to a salary and discretionary bonus as may be determined by the Board
or its delegated committee(s) from time to time. For both financial years
2019 and 2020, Mr. Su’s monthly salary is HK$240,000. Such salary was
determined by the Remuneration Committee with reference to Mr. Su’s
experience and duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.

'd For identification purpose only
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Ms. Li Jing, aged 38, holds a doctor of Economics from Zhejiang
University and a postdoctoral title from the Wudaokou Finance College
of Tsinghua University. Ms. Li joined the Company in November 2018 and
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company and a member of
the Executive Committee in August 2019. She is also the deputy general
manager of the Company. Ms. Li worked as a risk management manager
in the Trade Finance Division of China Minsheng Bank from June 2010
to June 2012. She had served as a postdoctoral fellow at the Wudaokou
Finance College of Tsinghua University from June 2012 to June 2014. From
August 2014 to November 2018, Ms. Li had served as general manager
of Beijing West Capital, part of Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd. * (1t &=
Hifl £ B8R 2 7], “Shougang Fund”). Shougang Fund is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO
while Shougang Group is the holding company of Shougang Fund. Ms. Li
has extensive experience in finance practice, especially in financial product
innovation, integrated financial investment banking services, and cross-
border industry cooperation.

A service agreement was entered into between Ms. Li and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 22 August 2019. Under the service agreement, Ms. Li is entitled to a
salary and discretionary bonus as may be determined by the Board or its
delegated committee(s) from time to time. For financial year 2019, Ms. Li's
monthly salary is HK$100,000. For financial year 2020, Ms. Li's monthly
salary is HK$110,000. Such salary was determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to Ms. Li's experience and duties as well as the
then prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Liu Dongsheng, aged 54, holds a bachelor degree in biology in
Beijing Normal University, double degree in Economics (Distance Learning)
in Beijing Construction Engineering College and a master degree in
business administrative in Institute of NHTV Breda University of Applied
Sciences. Mr. Liu was appointed as an Executive Director and Managing
Director of the Company in January 2018 and is a member of the Executive
Committee. On 22 August 2019, Mr. Liu has been re-designated from
an Executive Director and Managing Director of the Company to a Non-
executive Director of the Company and resigned as a member of the
Executive Committee. Mr. Liu was an independent director of Zhejiang
Canaan Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, from August 2014 to April 2016. He was also the supervisor
of the Department of Securities and Capital Operation of Beijing Energy
Investment Holding Co., Ltd, the managing director of the Investment
Department and Head of Strategic Client Division in China Merchants
Securities (HK) Co., Ltd., and the legal representative and general manager
of Shenzhen Merchants Zhiyuan Consulting Company Limited. Mr. Liu
has extensive experience in finance and securities, assets management,
research and investment.

A fresh engagement letter was entered into with Mr. Liu for a term of
one year commencing on 1 January 2020. Under the engagement letter,
Mr. Liu is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by the Board
from time to time. For financial year 2019, Mr. Liu’s monthly salary is
HK$220,000. For financial year 2020, the director’s fee of Mr. Liu is
HK$150,000 for a full year. Such director’s fee was determined by the
Board with reference to Mr. Liu’s experience and duties as well as the then
prevailing market conditions.
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Ms. You Wenli, aged 39, holds a bachelor degree in law and a master
degree in business administration from Tsinghua University. Ms. You was
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2019.
She is also a minister of legal affairs of Shougang Group and a managing
director of Shougang Fund. Shougang Group and Shougang Fund are
substantial shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO while Shougang Group is the holding company of Shougang
Fund. Ms. You obtained a lawyer’s license of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and is qualified for engaging in fund-related activities
in the PRC. Ms. You worked as an associate in Commerce & Finance Law
Offices in the PRC, in the specialised practice areas related to onshore
and offshore securities and investments from July 2004 to April 2011,
Since April 2011, Ms. You has served as deputy general manager, general
manager and chairman of Beijing Jingxi Venture Capital Management Co.,
Lid* (bR R ARI R EE S EE AR A F), responsible for private
equity and venture capital investments. Her areas of expertise are in
securities and corporate transactions, in particular A shares, H shares and
red chips listing as well as the M&A transactions.

An engagement letter was entered into with Ms. You for a term of three
years commencing on 31 May 2019. Under the engagement letter, she will
not receive any emolument.

Mr. Huang Donglin, aged 59, holds an executive master of business
administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University and a doctor’s degree
from United Business Institutes in Belgium. Mr. Huang was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2018 and is a member of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. He
held positions in The People’s Bank of China, Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China and Bank of China. Mr. Huang has worked in the finance
industry for over thirty years and led the equity reorganization and
restructuring of a number of domestic companies. He has extensive
experience in finance, and has been engaged in relevant enterprise
management and diagnosis for a long time.

An engagement letter was entered into with Mr. Huang for a term of three
years commencing on 18 May 2018. Under the engagement letter, Mr.
Huang is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by the Board
from time to time. For both financial years 2019 and 2020, the director’s
fee of Mr. Huang is HK$190,000 for a full year. Such director’s fee was
determined by the Board with reference to Mr. Huang's experience and
duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Tam King Ching, Kenny, aged 70, holds a bachelor degree in
commerce from Concordia University, Canada. Mr. Tam was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February 1996
and is the chairman of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, as well as a member of the Nomination Committee. He is a
practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Tam is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario,
Canada (formerly named as the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Ontario, Canada). Mr. Tam is a Past President of The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. He also serves as an independent non-
executive director of certain listed companies on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), namely,
Beijing West Industries International Limited, CCT Fortis Holdings Limited,
Greater Bay Area Investments Group Holdings Limited, Kingmaker
Footwear Holdings Limited, Starlite Holdings Limited, Hong Kong
Shanghai Alliance Holdings Limited, West China Cement Limited and
Wisdom Education International Holdings Company Limited.

A fresh engagement letter was entered into with Mr. Tam for a term of
three years commencing on 1 January 2020. Under the engagement
letter, Mr. Tam is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by the
Board from time to time. For both financial years 2019 and 2020, the
director’s fee of Mr. Tam is HK$240,000 for a full year. Such director’s fee
was determined by the Board with reference to Mr. Tam'’s experience and
duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson, aged 59, holds a bachelor honours degree
in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a master degree in business administration from the University of
Pittsburgh in the United States. Mr. Wan was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in March 2018 and is a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. He has over 30 years of experience in corporate
banking and investment banking. He held positions in Bank of Credit
and Commerce International, Australia and New Zealand Banking Group
Limited, and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited. From
2007 to 2015, he served successively as the managing director of BOC
International Holdings Limited and the chief executive officer of China
Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited (a subsidiary of China Merchants
Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 6099 and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600999)). Mr. Wan currently serves as the chief executive
officer of Cleverage Capital Limited and an independent non-executive
director of Shenzhen Expressway Company Limited (a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 548 and listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600548). He also serves as an
adjunct professor of the Department of Finance, a member of the MBA
Advisory Board and the chairman of its Alumni Committee of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

An engagement letter was entered into with Mr. Wan for a term of three
years commencing on 29 March 2018. Under the engagement letter, Mr.
Wan is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from
time to time. For both financial years 2019 and 2020, the director’s fee of
Mr. Wan is HK$240,000 for a full year. Such director’s fee was determined
by the Board with reference to Mr. Wan'’s experience and duties as well as
the then prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Zhang Xingyu, aged 35, holds a bachelor degree of management
from China Youth University of Political Studies and master degree of
economics from Renmin University of China. Mr. Zhang was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in March 2020
and is the member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, as well as a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr.
Zhang held the position of project manager in China Electric Import and
Export Co., Ltd from July 2008 to September 2010. He worked at the
National Council for Social Security Fund, and held positions, including
department cadre and confidential secretary of main leader from October
2010 to October 2018. Mr. Zhang currently serves as the vice president
and the special assistant to the chairman of Shanghai Zhaogang Netcom
Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in government
affairs, funds management, corporate financing and supply chain finance,
etc.

An engagement letter was entered into with Mr. Zhang for a term of three
years commencing on 20 March 2020. Under the engagement letter, Mr.
Tam is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from
time to time. For the financial year 2020, the director’s fee of Mr. Zhang
is HK$240,000 for a full year. Such director’s fee was determined by the
Board with reference to Mr. Zhang's experience and duties as well as the
then prevailing market conditions.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY FOR THE YEAR 2019
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Property leasing services
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| am pleased to present the 2019 annual report of the Group. In
2019, Shougang Concord Grand carried out strategic transformation,
improved its internal structure and operational efficiency and enhanced
its capabilities to provide services to its customers. Closely following
the development path of empowering the industrial chain by financial
services, Shougang Concord Grand integrated and optimized the structure
of its different business segments, built up an integrated industrial
financial service platform on the basis of the concept of “new finance,
new technology and new service”, expanded the base of core corporate
customers in strategic industries and established strategic cooperative
relationships with financial institutions including several commercial banks,
so as to provide financial services to hundreds of small and medium-
sized enterprises in the upstream and downstream industrial chain of core
enterprises through its industrial financial service platform. As at the end
of 2019, Shougang Concord Grand has accomplished the strategic
target of turnaround from loss to profit. In 2020, we will continue
to strive to achieve greater goals.

In 2019, we established a solid foundation for the long-term development
of Shougang Concord Grand. The efforts we made for this include:
(i) integration and optimization of the structure of different
business segments. In addition to the existing financial leasing, asset
management service and supply chain management segments, during
the year, Shougang Concord Grand completed the acquisition of a
commercial factoring company and made additional capital contribution
to a supply chain company, which further replenished its financial
licenses and capital, promoted the coordination among different business
segments and improved its capability to provide services to its customers;
(ii) improvement of online service and risk control by using new
technologies. A supply chain company of Shougang Concord Grand
independently developed an online host-to-host connectivity platform,
which can directly link the financial system of enterprises to the business
system of financial institutions such as commercial banks and provide
access to asset data of upstream and downstream businesses of core
enterprises, successfully provided online financial services in bulk to the
small and medium-sized enterprises in the supply chain of steel industry.
An asset management service company of Shougang Concord Grand
developed an asset securitization service system, which can connect the
business management systems of the issuer and investor of ABS, and can
control the risks of the underlying assets, improve the financing efficiency
and even lower the finance costs by using online data; (iii) expansion
of strategic customers and partners base to increase scale and
profitability of projects. The asset and project scale of the financial
leasing segment of Shougang Concord Grand which focused on the steel
industry recorded continuous and steady increase, the scale of consulting
services for financing activities such as asset securitization increased,
the commercial factoring business also started to make contribution
to its profits, and the supply chain management company’s business
model has achieved new breakthroughs due to active exploration; (iv)
focusing on cost reduction and efficiency improvement. Shougang
Concord Grand strengthened system building, strictly controlled costs
and continued to optimize the financial structure and capital utilization
efficiency. While paying attention to business development, the Group
also attached great importance to business quality and asset safety. As a
result, the asset quality of each business segment is good.
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Looking forward to 2020, the Group will focus on the provision of
finance leasing, business factoring, supply chain management, investment
and financing advisory services and other portfolios of financial products
to two types of target entities including steel companies and domestic
large-scale enterprise groups, as well as their upstream and downstream
customers, in order to provide customized financial service solutions for
target companies, meet the strategic needs of target companies and
their upstream and downstream companies for industrial upgrading and
give full play to the important role of financial services in empowering
real economy. In respect of target industrial expansion, it will seize
the development opportunity to broaden the scale of market-
oriented business and enter the urban renewal, healthcare, 5G
communication and other industries while deeply developing
its steel industry as a priority. In view of the above, the Group will
continue to increase investment in improving its core competitiveness
in “new finance, new technology, new service”, proactively develop
diversified investment and financing products system based on the needs
of new customers and take the advantage of optimized resource allocation
and sufficient funds in capital market, in order to realize the sustainable
growth of its business scale and create greater business value for its
customers, shareholders and society.

In respect of developing new business, the Group will attach great
importance to the international opportunities brought by the
“One Belt and One Road Initiative” and explore potential cross-border
business models under the guidance of the national policy, the “One Belt
and One Road Initiative”, leveraging on the industrial background and
advantages of Shougang Group, especially in actively expanding both
domestic and overseas financing channels to advance its expansion into
the overseas market.

With the increasingly serious international economic turmoil, the
economic cyclical volatility risk, policy risk and financial risk are increasing.
Facing the challenges of macroeconomic situation, the Group
attaches great importance to risk control and implements
various risk management measures. At the same time of business
expansion, the Group constantly optimizes the risk management system,
coordinates the building of risk management system and improves the risk
management framework, particularly focusing on strengthening the risk
identification and prevention abilities in key areas and links. The Group
firmly believes that a sound and stable risk management and governance
framework is an important basis for realizing long-term development
of the Company and safeguarding the interests of shareholders. Under
the sound risk management framework, the Group combines strategic
targets with risk management and actively uses financial resources to
seize market opportunities while maintaining risks under control, focuses
on the development of segmented industries and responds to customer
demands.

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFERESE

During the past two years, we have made solid efforts on promoting
strategic transformation and deeply developing customer value by
“adopting a strategy to form a policy”. We have helped the
development of our customers through the provision of our products and
services by “setting direction by rules”. Looking forward, we will build
an excellent management team that is well-versed in how to create values
with industrial services by “managing employees with authority”,
follow the trend of China’s economic development and develop together
with customers.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks to
our customers, suppliers and shareholders for their continuous support to
the Group. | would also like to extend my gratitude and appreciation to the
management and staff for their hard work and dedication throughout the
year.

Xu Liang
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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In 2019, the Group took great efforts in business development of sale and
leaseback arrangements, business factoring, supply chain management
and asset management, and is committed to develop the integrated
service platform to empower industry with finance. It has made initial
achievements after going through the hard time through concerted
efforts and constantly exploring the development path to optimizing and
strengthening its businesses. In 2019, the Group successfully turned losses
into gains and increased the scale and safety of its business assets, laying
a solid foundation for business growth.

The key financial performance indicators are analysed as below:

Financial performance MBEE

Revenue I =

Gross profit margin (%) E T (%)

Profit/(loss) before income tax BT AT REF (& E)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHA (BB

Loss attributable to owners of the Company ZX2Q &1# A A FE(h 518

Key financial indicators TEMKEE

Total cash #wIE e

Total assets BmEE

Total liabilities BeE

Bank borrowings RITE K

Capital and reserves attributable to owners N2 &35 5 A JE (5 IR A &
of the Company &

Current ratio B L &

Basic loss per share (HK cents) BREREBEGEW

AEE_ZF-NF2HhHEEERRBE L
BERE HEREEREETBRERR
B -BAOATESRMEEZNEARSE T
B ERLMAINERT  KERFHERE
B - THTIRRMEBHMACERBE - BAI
BENERYE - —E-NEAEEXIRER
B EBEERBERZE2UGURA  RE
BERRITTREOER -

BUMBERERSEINET:

2019 2018 +/()
—E-hEFE ZE)N\F Change
HK$'000 HK$'000 b=y)

BETT BETT

77,702 96,623 -20%
74% 56% 18%
15,413 (35,558) Turnaround
EdE A

583 (50,089) Turnaround

EdE A

(7,921) (58,882) -87%
702,164 806,150 -13%
2,294,032 2,218,214 3%
550,534 592,124 7%
465,557 494,541 -6%
1,355,149 1,339,688 1%
305% 447% -142%
(0.20) (2.00) -90%



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERMLED T

The Group recorded loss of approximately HK$7,921,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019 attributable to owners of the Company, which
represented a decrease when compared with a loss of approximately
HK$58,882,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 attributable
to owners of the Company. The decrease was mainly due to the share
of loss of an associate in 2018. Revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was approximately HK$77,702,000, which
represented a decrease of approximately 20% when compared with
that of approximately HK$96,623,000 for the year 2018. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue from the sale and
leaseback arrangements services segment. The Group recorded a gross
profit of approximately HK$57,644,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing a gross profit margin of approximately 74%, which is
an increase of approximately 18% when compared with the gross profit
margin of approximately 56% for the year 2018. Basic loss per share for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was HK0.2 cent (2018: loss per share
was HK2 cents).

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$77,702,000, representing a decrease of approximately 20% when
compared with that of approximately HK$96,623,000 for the year 2018.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue from
the sale and leaseback arrangements services segment by approximately
HK$21,889,000.

The Group made a gross profit of approximately HK$57,644,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019, representing a gross profit margin of
approximately 74%, which is an increase of 18%, when compared with
the gross profit margin of approximately 56% for the year 2018, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in gross profit margin from the sale
and leaseback arrangements services segment.

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$21,191,000 (2018: HK$15,620,000), representing
an increase of approximately 36%. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in interest income from bank deposits.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to approximately HK$65,232,000 (2018: HK$58,798,000), representing
an increase of approximately 11%. The increase was mainly due to the rise
in labor cost driven by business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, share of profit of associates
amounted to approximately HK$2,614,000 (2018: loss of
HK$122,547,000), the reversal of impairment loss of approximately
HK$75,640,000 on interest in an associate was made for the year
2018 while there was no impairment loss for this year. Share of profit
of associates for this year was attributable to the completion of the
acquisition of a business factoring company during the year. Share of loss
of associates for last year was attributable to 619,168,023 shares held,
representing approximately 40.78% equity interests, of Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited (“GDC") (Stock Code: 8271). The disposal of
equity interest held in GDC was approved at the special general meeting
held on 28 December 2018 and was completed on 8 January 2019.

Following the strategy of combination of industry and finance promoted
by empowering industry with finance, the Group reshuffled the cultural
recreation business which is not closely relevant to our principal business
of integrated financial service and strengthened its capital through
rights issue. The Group built the integrated service platform to empower
industry with finance based on improved financial service framework
and management team, which forms the key foundation for business
expansion. As for business expansion, during the year, with the target of
realizing collaborative development among different segments including
financial leasing, business factoring, supply chain management and
asset management, based on the principal steel business, the Group has
made substantive progress in developing into an integrated cross-border
industrial and financial service platform.

During the year, revenue from the sale and leaseback arrangements
services segment decreased by approximately 23% to approximately
HK$71,601,000 (2018: HK$93,490,000), and the profit of the segment
was approximately HK$48,331,000 (2018: HK$47,874,000). The decrease
in revenue from the sale and leaseback arrangements services segment
was mainly attributable to the postponement of certain projects as a
result of modifications to the financial leasing business plan and projects
in hand affected by uncertainties in relation to the macro-economic
conditions and certain economic events, after taking into account relevant
risks. There were several relatively large-scale projects carried out under
this segment in the second half of 2019, which partially offset decline of
revenue and contributed to the growth of financial leasing business size
and interest-earning financial leasing balances. The growth of sale and
leaseback arrangements services segment results was mainly due to the
increase in project gross profit resulting from increased new projects and
more flexible financial resource usage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWRRESN

In February 2020, China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
issued an announcement on the Interim Measures for Supervision and
Administration of the Financial Leasing Companies (Exposure Draft) ({ & &
MERFEEBTEETIVE(BRERT))) for public suggestions. It is
expected that laws and regulations relating to the industry will be introduced
and regulatory system will be improved, which will be beneficial for the
sustainable and orderly development of the industry.

During the year, the assets management and consultancy services segment
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$5,528,000 (2018: Nil) and a loss of
the segment of approximately HK$2,375,000 (2018: profit of HK$466,000).
For the first time, the assets management and consultancy services segment
recorded revenues from supply chain financing management service, asset
securitization and investment and financing consultancy businesses. However,
due to the impacts of resource investment at the initial stage of business
expansion and the amortization costs incurred for the building of technology
platform, a loss was recorded for the segment.

During the year, revenue from the property leasing services segment
decreased by approximately 82% to approximately HK$573,000 (2018:
HK$3,133,000), and the profit of the segment was approximately
HK$2,065,000 (2018: HK$5,869,000). The decrease in revenue from the
property leasing services segment was mainly attributed to the decrease in
rentable floor area. The decline in segment results was mainly attributable
to the decrease in fair value gain of investment properties of the Group.
The Group recorded an increase in fair value of investment properties of
approximately HK$2,400,000 during the year (2018: fair value increase of
HK$3,147,000).

Looking ahead into 2020, under the policy environment and market
environment of promoting financial innovation, the Group will grasp
opportunities brought by the policies in relation to financial service and the
upgrading strategies of industries in which core target enterprises operate
to provide innovative financial product and service portfolios to those core
target enterprises and their upstream and downstream customers, so as to
serve the real economy. We will strive to capitalize on the advantage of cross-
border operation while actively exploring new models of innovative financial
service business and taking advantage of Hong Kong's excellent geographical
location and favorable financing environment as an international financial
market, to make meaningful exploration under The Belt and Road Initiative
and seize relevant policy opportunities.

In terms of risk management infrastructure, prudent and effective risk
management can help in untapping the commercial value of long-
term investments, as well as laying a solid foundation for the Group's
sustainable development. We will put emphasis on strengthening our
risk control system, introducing information technology platform, and
adjusting our management and control strategies in a timely manner and
continuously improving our management by improving and optimizing our
risk control mechanism. In addition, we will also continue to promote the
development of our online risk management platform so as to provide an
effective tool for the Group'’s risk management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group aimed to maintain stable funding sources and financing is
arranged to balance between business requirements and cash flows. The
financial leverage of the Group as at 31 December 2019 as compared to
31 December 2018 is summarized below:

Total borrowings FER=E N
Current borrowings B 18
Non-current borrowings FEMBE R
Sub-total NE

Total cash B/
Cash and cash equivalents RekBSFEEE

Term deposits with initial term
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702,164 806,150
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2,294,032 2,218,214
305% 447%

On 31 October 2018, the Company issued 1,336,096,234 new shares of
the Company by way of rights issue, and the net proceeds from rights issue
were approximately HK$179,521,000 (the “Rights Issue”). The Company
completed the issue of rights shares to fund the acquisition and capital
injection as set out in the circular of the Company dated 4 September
2018 (the "Acquisition and Capital Injection”). The net proceeds from the
issue of right shares were approximately HK$179,521,000, all of which
have been fully utilised for the Acquisition and Capital Injection. Details of
the amendments to the Acquisition and Capital Injection were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWRRESN

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$607,782,000 (31 December 2018: HK$806,150,000)
and term deposits with initial term over three months of approximately
HK$94,382,000 (31 December 2018: HK$ Nil), which were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the combined effects of net cash
used in operating activities of approximately HK$254,462,000, payment
of consideration for acquisition of an associate of approximately
HK$85,526,000 and the net repayment of bank borrowings of
approximately HK$32,602,000, netting off with proceeds received
from disposal of an associate of approximately HK$154,792,000 and
proceeds received from disposal of bond investments of approximately
HK$40,448,000.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$465,557,000, of which approximately HK$297,018,000
were repayable within twelve months from 31 December 2019 and
approximately HK$168,539,000 were repayable after twelve months
from 31 December 2019. During the year, the Group obtained new bank
borrowings of approximately HK$70,000,000 as working capital of the
Group. All borrowings bore interest at market rates.

The capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,355,149,000 as at 31 December 2019
(31 December 2018: HK$1,339,688,000). The increase was mainly due
to the capital contribution from the intermediate holding company of
approximately HK$44,580,000, netting off with the loss for the year
ended 31 December 2019 attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$7,921,000 and the exchange differences arising on
translation of approximately HK$14,320,000 in total during the year.
The Company did not issue any new shares during the year. In July 2019,
pursuant to the general mandate given to the Directors, the Company
repurchased a total of 23,649,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$3,647,000 (excluding the trading fee). On 30
July 2019, 23,649,000 shares were cancelled. The issued share capital
of the Company was approximately HK$39,846,000 (represented by
approximately 3,984,640,000 issued ordinary shares).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 13 June 2018, On Hing Investment Company, Limited (“On Hing”, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into an agreement
with it RRBEHEMBREEEZRELEEBRA ) (Beijing
Services New Shougang Venture Capital Investment LLP*) (“Services New
Shougang”) and & 74 i ¥R ¥2 5 R A 7] (Beijing West Business Factoring
Company Limited*) (“Beijing West Business Factoring”), pursuant to
which On Hing agreed to purchase 41.41% equity interest in Beijing West
Business Factoring from Services New Shougang for RMB75,262,645.5
(the “First Acquisition”), subject to certain conditions precedent. On 31
December 2018, a supplemental agreement was entered into to extend
the long stop date of the First Acquisition from 31 December 2018 to
31 May 2019. On 31 May 2019, a further supplemental agreement was
entered into to extend the long stop date of the First Acquisition from 31
May 2019 to 31 May 2020 and change the contract party from On Hing
to South China International Leasing Co., Ltd.. The First Acquisition was
completed on 24 July 2019. Beijing West Business Factoring was engaged
in the provision of business factoring services.

On 13 June 2018, Gold Cosmos Development Limited (“Gold Cosmos”, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a capital increase
agreement with 1t 2 & $li & £ 45 FR 2 7 (Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd.*)
(“Shougang Fund”) and dt 7 = 74 i & $2 & 12 8 IR 2 7] (Beijing Jingxi
Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.*) (“Jingxi Supply Chain”), pursuant to
which Gold Cosmos agreed to contribute additional capital in the amount
of RMB200,000,000 to the registered capital of Jingxi Supply Chain and
thereby increasing its shareholding in Jingxi Supply Chain from 10% to 70%
(the "Capital Injection”). On 31 December 2018, a supplemental agreement
was entered into to change the contract party from Gold Cosmos to 1% 5z
BER & A5 ORI B BR A (Ecko Investment Company Limited*). The
Capital Injection was completed on July 2019.

On 21 November 2018, SCG Investment (BVI) Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), as vendor, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited, as
purchaser, in relation to the restructuring by way of disposal of Upper
Nice Assets Limited (the “Disposal”) which holds 619,168,023 shares,
representing approximately 40.78% equity interests, of Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8271), at a consideration of
HK$154,792,006. The Disposal was approved at the special general
meeting held on 28 December 2018 and was completed on 8 January
2019.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisitions,
disposals and significant investment.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWRRESN

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had the following charge on assets:

(i) The Group's investment properties with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately HK$24,700,000 and the Group’s land and building
with a carrying value of approximately HK$14,921,000 were
pledged to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding
amount of approximately HK$10,950,000.

(i)~ The Group's receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
with a carrying value of approximately HK$308,478,000 were
pledged to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding
amount of approximately HK$314,607,000.

The normal operations and investments of the Group are mainly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, with revenue and expenditure denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Directors believe that the
Group does not have significant foreign exchange exposure. However, if
necessary, the Group will consider using forward exchange contracts to
hedge against foreign exchange exposures. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group had no significant foreign exchange exposure.

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 60 (31 December 2018:
46) full time employees (excluding those under the payroll of associates
of the Group). The Group remunerated its employees mainly with
reference to the prevailing market practice, individual performance and
work experience. Other benefits such as medical coverage, insurance
plan, mandatory provident fund, discretionary bonus and employees
share option scheme are also available to employees of the Group.
Remuneration packages are reviewed either annually or through special
increment.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not paid or committed to pay to any individual any
amount as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company and/or its
subsidiaries.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and procedures to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and
to enhance accountability and transparency.

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the financial year ended 31 December 2019, except for the
following deviation:

= Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

Mr. Liu Dongsheng re-designated from an Executive Director and
Managing Director of the Company to a Non-executive Director
of the Company from 22 August 2019. As such, Mr. Xu Liang had
acted as both the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company from the same date. In order to satisfy the requirement
of the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board appointed
Mr. Su Guifeng as the Managing Director of the Company with
effect from 19 September 2019, Mr. Xu Liang ceased to act as the
Managing Director of the Company from the same date but remains
as the Chairman of the Board.

The Board currently comprises a total of nine Directors, being three
Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is set out in the section
headed “Report of the Directors” of this annual report. In addition, an
updated list of the Directors and their roles and functions is published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity and has a balance of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company. The Directors’ biographical information is set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Biographies” of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). All Directors are required to
disclose to the Company at the time of their appointment and annually
the number and the nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments with an indication of the
time involved.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
as set out on pages 4 to 11 of this annual report, the Board members have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) so
that there is a sufficient independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and calibre for their
views to carry weight. The functions of Non-executive Directors include:

o bringing an independent judgement at Board meetings;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on Board committees if invited; and

o scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring

performance reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development of the
Company’s strategy and policies through independent, constructive and
informed comments. They give the Board and the committees on which
they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent Non-
executive Directors are identified, in all corporate communications to
shareholders.
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The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out its approach to achieve diversity on the Board
with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into account
factors based on its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the Company.

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and performance
monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day operations of the
Company to the Executive Committee and senior management within the
control and authority framework set by the Board. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Further details
of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board meets regularly and holds at least four Board meetings a
year. Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required. The
Directors can attend meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws").

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up the agenda
of each Board meeting. Draft agenda of each regular Board meeting will
be sent to all Directors for review before the agenda is issued and all
Directors may request for inclusion of other matters in the agenda. The
Chairman will take into account the matters proposed by the Directors and
where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters in the agenda
of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14-day notice of a regular Board
meeting is given and the Company aims at giving reasonable notice for all
other Board meetings. The Company also aims at sending the agenda and
the accompanying board papers, which are prepared in a form and quality
sufficient to enable the Board to make informed decisions on matters
placed before it, to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of
a Board meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full
responses will be given if possible.
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There has been procedure in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon reasonable request,
provide separate independent professional advice to Directors to assist
them in performing their duties to the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, draft and final versions of
which would be sent to Directors for comments and records respectively,
within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes are recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director/
committee member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which the
Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical Board meeting, rather than a written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors who, and whose close associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at the Board
meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Bye-laws and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote on any
Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he or any of his close associates (or associates where the
transaction or arrangement is a connected transaction under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules) has a material interest nor shall he be counted in the
quorum present at the meeting.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors have
made active contribution to the affairs of the Group and nine physical
Board meetings were held to consider, among other things, various
projects contemplated by the Group and to review and approve the
interim results and annual results of the Group.
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Details of the Directors’ attendances in 2019 are as follows:

Directors

Executive Directors

Xu Liang (Chairman)

Su Guifeng

Li Jing

Non-executive Directors
Liu Dongsheng

You Wenli

Huang Donglin
Independent Non-executive Directors
Tam King Ching, Kenny
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson

Yip Kin Man, Raymond

Fei Jianjiang

Notes:
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1. Mr. Su Guifeng appointed as a Director with effect from 19 September 2019.

2. Ms. Li Jing appointed as a Director with effect from 22 August 2019.

3. Mr. Liu Dongsheng re-designated as a Non-executive Director with effect from

22 August 2019.

4. Ms. You Wenli appointed as a Director with effect from 31 May 2019.

5 Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond resigned as a Director with effect from 1 January

2020.

6. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.
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The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and information by the
management to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
financial and other information put before it for approval. The management
provides all Board members with monthly updates which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties. Where any Director requires more
information than is volunteered by the management, each Director has
the right to separately and independently access to the Company’s senior
management to make further enquiries if necessary.

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. In considering the candidates for directorship,
the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy, review the profiles of the candidates and take into account
the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and professional
ethics of the candidates. The Nomination Committee will make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
nomination of Directors for consideration and approval.

According to the Bye-laws, any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy, only until the next
following general meeting of the Company or, in the case of an addition
to their number, until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company who shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting. Every Director, except for the Chairman and the Managing
Director, is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
In order to comply with applicable laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws do not
require the Chairman and the Managing Director to retire by rotation.
However, they will voluntarily retire and offer themselves for re-election
at least once every three years in order to comply with the second part of
code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election will be set
out in the circular of the Company in relation to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be despatched to the shareholders.

All Directors (including all Non-executive Directors) have entered into
service agreements or engagement letters with the Company for a term of
not more than three years.
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Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed four Independent Non-executive Directors and one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number of Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company represents not less than one-
third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive director who has served
the board for more than nine years, his/her further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Where an individual is proposed to be elected as an Independent Non-
executive Director at the general meeting, the circular to shareholders and/
or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting will include:

o the process used for identifying the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed Independent Non-executive Director will be holding
their seventh (or more) listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote sufficient time to
the board;

o the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can bring
to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from their risk
exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.
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Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of regulatory
requirements. Directors are continually updated on the latest development
of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practice. Directors
are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company Secretary
facilitates induction and professional development of Directors and the
Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for the
Directors.

All Directors have provided to the Company their records of training
received during the financial year ended 31 December 2019, a summary of
which is as follows:
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Continuous professional development

Directors =

Xu Liang ® B
Su Guifeng ERiEE
Li Jing =3
Liu Dongsheng 2= A
You Wenli i
Huang Donglin =AM
Tam King Ching, Kenny w8 5 IE
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson m IR EE
Yip Kin Man, Raymond ERER
Fei Jianjiang BT

Type (Note D Subject (Note2) Notes
EJgeEy A RED Bt &F
A [, 1, IV
B [, IV
A | 3
B [, IV
A | 4
B [, IV
A | 5
B [, IV
A | 6
B [, IV
A |
B [, IV
A [, 1,1
B [\,
A |
B [, IV
A | 7
B [, IV
A | 8
B [, IV



Notes:
1 A. Attending seminars, conferences, forums, in-house briefings or in-house
training
B. Reading newspapers, journals and updates
2. /. Laws, rules and regulations
/1. Finance, accounting or taxation
111 Management

V. Businesses relating to the Company

3. Mr. Su Guifeng appointed as a Director with effect from 19 September 2019.

4. Ms. Li Jing appointed as a Director with effect from 22 August 2019.

5 Mr. Liu Dongsheng re-designated as a Non-executive Director with effect from
22 August 2019.

6. Ms. You Wenli appointed as a Director with effect from 31 May 2019.

7 Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond resigned as a Director with effect from 1 January
2020.

8. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are separate and exercised
by different individuals to reinforce their independence and accountability.
During the year, Mr. Xu Liang is the Chairman and Mr. Liu Dongsheng
serves as the Managing Director of the Company during the period from
1 January 2019 until his re-designation as a Non-executive director which
took effect on 22 August 2019. Following the re-designation of Mr.
Liu Dongsheng as a Non-executive director, Mr. Xu Liang also serves as
the Managing Director, until the appointment of Mr. Su Guifeng as the
Managing Director of the Company on 19 September 2019. The Chairman
provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities. The Managing Director has
overall chief executive responsibility for the Group’s business development
and day-to-day management generally. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Managing Director is clearly established
and set out in writing.
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The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other things:

taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established;

ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings, and ensuring that Directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information which must be accurate, clear,
complete and reliable;

encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution to
the Board's affairs and taking the lead to ensure that the Board acts
in the best interest of the Company;

encouraging Directors with different views to voice their concerns,
allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensuring that
Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;

ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communications with shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole; and

promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of Non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring constructive relations between Executive and Non-
executive Directors.

During the year, the Chairman met with the Independent Non-executive

Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors.

The Board has established the following committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the execution of the
Board's responsibilities. All committees have their own terms of reference.
All resolutions passed by the committees will be reported to the Board at

the next Board meeting.

An Executive Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its

authorities and duties.

ITFRMBEEP)BRE:

s HEBRARAGERMNEEERR
MEEFTEHEETREEME:

s HREFERLAAEFHEENT
BRNEE ULBREFAERKD
FEHWEM - MAEEMIN L AEEE
IGL D& R

s LEMAEREZIRAEEZEER
WIAHER BREZFGTEFTAXN

NEERENE

s THRARTRERNEEREAGHT
MEE  RTRCHBEFRZSER "
UREREFEMRERALRRE
EeMmAR:

o  HRRBUEE D BRRERRSE M
g DERBRERERAIGEDNEME
g

o IRIBAR  BERAmHNE - REEF
FRIRFFATES)HEESEL A
MER YHEARRTEFTEIFNTE
ErRBFBERENER -

FR EFBERBATESHESNBERT
HBURNTEEEME -

EXECHYTINERES  UWEEARASE
THENEELRWHEZTSNTERY - 2
MEEe@HAERREHE -Z8SBBHAM
BRBRBDANRTREEE AR LRESS
BE 3R -

EFEETHNTEEER
Ry ZEEASEINNBERE FE
HARBERESE -

[
A
SO
=y
<I:H~
~
o



The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general powers
of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved for the Board) to
manage and oversee the operations of the Group and has been assigned
with the responsibilities to perform the corporate governance duties as
follows:

The E

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s employees and Directors;

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the

constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

xecutive Committee comprises all Executive Directors of the

Company.

During the year, seven physical meetings of the Executive Committee were
held. Amongst those meetings, one meeting was held for the purpose
of performing the corporate governance duties. The attendances of the
members of the Executive Committee at those meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEERE
Xu Liang (chairman of the committee) %" B(ZE8
Su Guifeng BRIESR

Li Jing =

Liu Dongsheng 25 A
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Notes:

1. Mr. Su Guifeng appointed as a Director with effect from 19 September 2019.

2. Ms. Li Jing appointed as a Director with effect from 22 August 2019.

3. Mr. Liu Dongsheng re-designated as a Non-executive Director with effect from
22 August 2019.

The major work in relation to the corporate governance of the Group
performed by the Executive Committee during the year includes, among
other things, the following:

o reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

An Audit Committee of the Board was established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst other
things:

o overseeing the relationship with the Company’s auditor;
o reviewing the interim and annual financial statements of the Group;
o reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk

management and internal control systems; and

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters.
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The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain outside legal
or other independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary. It is given access to and
assistance from the employees and reasonable resources to perform its
duties properly.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Audit Committee comprised all Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. None of the members of the Audit
Committee are former partners of the auditor of the Company.

During the year, three physical meetings of the Audit Committee were
held and the attendances of the members of the Audit Committee at
those meetings are as follows:

g8

Committee members £8

Tam King Ching, Kenny (chairman of the committee) Bl (Z8 &

Wan Siu Wah, Wilson K EE

Yip Kin Man, Raymond ERER

Fei Jianjiang BT

Notes:

1. Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond resigned as a Director with effect from 1 January
2020.

2. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year
included, amongst other things, the following:

o reviewed the final results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2018;

o reviewed the interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2019;

o reviewed the reports on the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group;
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o considered the change of auditor of the Company and the
engagement letter of the new auditor; and recommended the same
to the Board for approval; and

o monitoring, analyzing and reviewing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year.

During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditor.

A Nomination Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include, amongst other
things:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board;

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

o reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and reviewing
the measurable objectives that have been set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and reviewing the progress on achieving the
objectives.
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Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed and
put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be tendered
to the Board for approval. In considering the nomination of a new
Director, the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy and take into account the qualification, ability,
working experience, leadership and professional ethics of the candidates.
In determining the independence of Directors, the Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any necessary
information from the employees within its scope of duties and the
authority to obtain outside independent professional advice, at the
Company'’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is the Chairman of the Board
and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company constitute
the majority of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, four physical meetings of the Nomination Committee
were held and the attendances of the members of the Nomination
Committee at those meetings are as follows:
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Committee members ZEENKE CERHESERY B &t
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Fei Jianjiang = §=9an 4/4 2
Notes: B it
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2. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.
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The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
included, amongst other things, the following:

o assessing the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors;

o considering and making recommendations to the Board on the re-
election of Directors at the annual general meeting;

o considering and making recommendations to the Board for the
appointment of Mr. Su Guifeng and Ms. Li Jing as Executive
Directors of the Company and a member of the Executive

Committee;

o considering and making recommendations to the Board for the
appointment of Ms. You Wenli as Non-Executive Director of the
Company;,

o considering and making recommendations to the Board for the re-

designation of Mr. Liu Dongsheng as Non-executive Director of the
Company; and

o reviewing the structure and composition of the Board with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

A Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, amongst
other things:

o making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group;

o reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Company’s goals and objectives;
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o determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

o reviewing and approving compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management and compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman of the Board
and/or the Managing Director of the Company about their remuneration
proposals for other Executive Directors. It has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope of duties and
the authority to obtain outside independent professional advice, at the
Company'’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the Directors are
market alignment and reward for performance. The Company reviews the
remuneration package annually taking into consideration of the market
practice, competitive market position and individual performance.

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is an Independent Non-
executive Director and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company constitute the majority of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year, five physical meetings of the Remuneration Committee
were held and the attendances of the members of the Remuneration
Committee at those meetings are as follows:
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Notes:

1. Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond resigned as a Director with effect from 1 January
2020.

2. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, the following:

o considering, reviewing and determining the remuneration and the
terms of service agreement/engagement letters of Mr. Xu Liang, Mr.
Su Guifeng, Ms. Li Jing, Mr. Liu Dongsheng, Ms. You Wenli and Mr.
Tam King Ching, Kenny; and

o considering, reviewing and determining the Company Directors’
bonuses for the year 2019 and remuneration for the year 2020.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and senior management for the year
are set out in notes 39 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
The Company Secretary is also responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the Company on corporate
governance and the implementation of the CG Code.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Managing
Director. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, and all applicable
laws, rules and regulations are followed. The selection, appointment and
dismissal of the Company Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

Ms. Tse Ching Wah, was appointed as the Company Secretary with effect
from 22 August 2019 following the resignation of Ms. Yeung Ching Man
as the Company Secretary on the same date. Ms. Tse is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group's affairs.
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The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year.

The Board is of the opinion that an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system will contribute to the operational
effectiveness and efficiency of the Group and to the safeguard of the
Group's assets as well as the shareholders’ investment.

The Board of the Group acknowledges its accountability to the risk
management and internal control system and its responsibility to review
the effectiveness of the system. The Board also clarifies that the system
is purported to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to fulfill
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Our risk management and internal control system is embedded within
our business processes so that it functions as an integral part of the
overall operation of the Group. The system comprises a comprehensive
organization structure with assignment of definite accountabilities and
delegation of corresponding authorities to each post. Based on our
organization structure, a reporting system has been developed including
reporting channels from division heads of every principal business unit to
the Executive Committee.

Business plans, the responsibility statement of business objectives, and
budgets are prepared by division heads of every principal business unit
annually. In preparing them, our management identifies and evaluates any
potential risks. Measures will be put in place to ultimately manage, control,
or lessen such risks.

These business plans and budgets are also subject to review and approval
by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee reviews monthly
management reports on the operational and financial results of every
principal business unit and measures the actual performance of the
Group against the business plans and budgets concerned. In this course,
the Executive Committee also reviews and assesses the effectiveness
of all material controls and ensures the adequacies of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The Executive Committee holds periodical meetings with the senior
management of every principal business unit to, amongst other matters,
address the issues in such controls, identify areas of improvement, and put
the appropriate measures in place.
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The internal control systems of the Group are documented and, if any
revision is required, such information will be submitted to the Audit
Committee for evaluation.

The Audit Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the
Group’ s risk management and internal control function by reviewing and
evaluating the effectiveness of our overall risk management and internal
control system at least annually.

The Company sets up an Internal Audit Department in February 2006
which assists the Board and the Audit Committee to discharge its duties
in risk management and internal control aspects. The Internal Audit
Department, independent of the operational departments of the Group,
is responsible for conducting regular audits on the major activities of
the Group and carrying out the analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group. Its objective to cover all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls as well as risk
management, are in place and functioning reasonably and effectively, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Internal Audit Department reports to the Board
and the Audit Committee with its findings and makes recommendations to
improve the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
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The framework of risk management and internal control systems:

Establish
risk content
EBVRKRAR

Assess risk
SRR

Identify risk

ol L P
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FEREEMABEZERFZER:

Information and
communication
EfEER

Monitor risk
BT E b

Based on the risk-based approach, the Internal Audit Department
continuously review and monitor the sufficiency of the risk control
measures of every business unit of the Group and to examine if relevant
measures have been implemented. The procedures involve assuring of
the existence of related risks in the first place, then assessing the levels to
which the potential risks are attributed based on the following two risk
factors, i.e., the possibility of occurrence and the level of significance of
the risk. Carrying out internal and external communications to provide the
required information to the Group, afterward, audit recommendations will
be made and further discussed with the relevant management.

In addition, the key business unit of the Group has put in place a risk
control mechanism specializing in risk management and internal control
in respect of project approval and subsequent follow-up works of the
business unit. It will also conduct regular reporting to the responsible
person of the business unit. The Internal Audit Department will review
on a regular basis the performance of the risk control of the key business
unit and will report to the management of the Group and members
of the Audit Committee any audit issues found, the potential risks and
appropriate audit recommendations in the internal audit reports every half
a year.
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At the same time, according to the work plan completion status of the
Internal Audit Department during the year, it is the duty of the Managing
Director of the Group to review whether or not the Group’s overall
risk management and internal control system is under appropriate and
effective management, and to provide a written statement in this regard
to the Board during the year-end audit.

Based on the said written statement as provided by the Managing
Director, the advices provided by the Audit Committee and the audit
recommendations as set forth in the reports issued by the Internal Audit
Department, the Board will continue to oversee management of the
Group in supervising the relevant departments to set up initiatives to
handle various kinds of deficiencies found in risk management and internal
control. Regular reviews on the improvement progress will be conducted
by the Internal Audit Department and the result of which will be reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Finally, the Board considers that it is an ongoing and continuous process
for the Group to review and improve its risk management and internal
control systems in order to ensure that they can deal with the dynamic and
ever changing business environment.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has been, through the
Executive Committee and the Audit Committee with the assistance from
the Internal Audit Department, continuously reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’ s risk management and internal control systems based on the
following considerations:

o the changes, since the last review, in the nature and extent of
significant risks and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in
business and the external environment;

o the scope and quality of management’ s ongoing monitoring of risks
and of the internal control systems;

o the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results to
the Audit Committee and the Board which enables them to assess
control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk management; and

o the effectiveness of the Group’s processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rules compliance.

During the year, internal audit reports in respect of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group have been submitted by the
Internal Audit Department to the Audit Committee and the Board for
review. The Board considered that the risk management and internal
control system of the Group is adequate and effective. The Group has
adopted appropriate audit recommendations to further improve its risk
management and internal control system.
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The Company adopted an inside information disclosure policy (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) on 21 December 2015 which sets out the
procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside information with a
view to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective dissemination of inside
information and ensuring shareholders and the public are provided with
full, accurate and timely information about the activities and the financial
condition of the Group. The Inside Information Disclosure Policy covers the
following:

o setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating
potential inside information to the Board;

o setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information, escalating upwards any such
potential information and cascading down the message and
responsibilities to relevant staff; and

o identifying who are the Company’s authorized spokespersons and
their responsibilities for communications with stakeholders of the
Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant staff regarding
the implementation of the Inside Information Disclosure Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are effective
and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard the Company and
its officers in discharging their disclosure obligations in respect of inside
information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") of the Listing Rules as a
code of conduct of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the Company's
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Company or its shares are required to prohibit from dealing in shares of the
Company during the black-out period.
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During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the auditors of the
Company is set out as follows:

Services rendered Frig R 7%

Audit services E T RS

Non-audit services: IEEAT R
Interim review R HY 28 B
Others EAh

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and in presenting the
annual and interim reports and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules, the Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 102 to 109 of this annual report.

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication
Policy reflecting the current practices of the Company for communication
with its shareholders. Such policy aims at ensuring the shareholders of the
Company are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company, in order to enable
shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders, the Company
provides extensive information in its annual and interim reports and
announcements. All shareholders’ communications are also available on
the Company’s website at www.shougang-grand.com.hk.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will make
an effort to attend. External auditor is also available at the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address shareholders’ queries.

The former auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, attended
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2019 (the
“2019 AGM"). Details of the Directors’ attendances at the 2019 AGM are

as follows:

Directors

Executive Directors

Xu Liang (Chairman)

Su Guifeng (Managing Director)
Li Jing

Non-executive Directors
Liu Dongsheng

You Wenli

Huang Donglin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Tam King Ching, Kenny

Wan Siu Wah, Wilson

Yip Kin Man, Raymond

Fei Jianjiang

Notes:

1. Mr. Su Guifeng, Ms. Li Jing and Ms. You Wenli had not been appointed yet when

the 2019 AGM was held.

2. Mr. Liu Dongsheng re-designated as a Non-executive Director with effect from
22 August 2019.

3 Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond resigned as a Director with effect from 1 January
2020.

4. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.
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During the year, all notices of general meetings despatched by the
Company to its shareholders for meetings held were sent for annual
general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and
at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings. Separate
resolutions were proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors, and all
resolutions put to the vote of the general meetings were taken by
way of a poll. At the general meetings, the chairman of the meetings
explained the procedures for conducting a poll and answered questions
from shareholders on voting by poll, if any. The results of the poll were
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company can make a requisition to convene a special general
meeting pursuant to Clause 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended). The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the
registered office of the Company.

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company or of not less
than 100 shareholders of the Company may by requisition, at their own
expense unless the Company otherwise resolves, to put forward proposals
at general meetings of the Company pursuant to Clauses 79 and 80 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). A written notice to
that effect signed by the shareholder(s) concerned together with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the expenses in giving effect thereto must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than six weeks
before the meeting for requisition(s) requiring notice of a resolution, or not
less than one week before the meeting for any other requisition(s).
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Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company'’s principal office
in Hong Kong or by email to the Company. In addition, shareholders can
contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company, if they have any enquiries about their
shareholdings and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are set
out on page 3 of this annual report.

On 21 December 2018, the Company adopted a Dividend Policy. Such
policy aims at providing stable and sustainable returns to shareholders
through paying stable dividends.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company intends to provide Shareholders
with interim or final dividends, and to declare special dividends from time
to time. The Company intends to pay out an annual dividend payment at
a payout ratio of not less than 35% of the Group’s consolidated net profit
after tax for the then financial year after taking into consideration of, inter
alia, the following factors:

the Group'’s

J current & future operations;

° earnings;

° financial position;

o cash requirements, cash expenditure & availabilities;
° investment requirements;

o future development prospects; and

o other factors as it may deem relevant at such time.
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The recommendation of the payment of dividend is subject to the absolute
discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend for the year
will be subject to the approval of our Shareholders.

Whilst the Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash flow position of the Group, such Dividend Policy will
continue to be reviewed from time to time and it is subject to change. The
Board will consider the dividends, if declared, will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period. The payment of dividend is also subject to
any restrictions under the Laws of Hong Kong, the Laws of Bermuda, and
the Company’s Bye-laws.

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year.
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The purpose of this Environmental, Social and Governance
report ("ESG Report”) is not only to communicate with the
stakeholders of the Group regarding its sustainability strategies,
management approaches and performances, but also to strengthen
its understanding towards the ongoing activities in sustainable
development of the societies and environment as a whole. This
ESG Report summarizes the related system establishment and
performance made by the Group during the year on the topics of
corporate social responsibility and sustainable development.

The Group aims to develop its business objectives and create
value for shareholder/investor, while at the same time protect
the ecological environment by fully utilizing resources and
minimizing the emission of pollutants during operation. The
Group has been adhering to the philosophy of “Integrity,
Pragmatism, Unity and Innovation” when conducting businesses
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group recognizes the
importance of sustainable development and actively shoulders
its environmental and social responsibilities. As a responsible and
visionary corporate citizen, the Group has to strike the balance
between each operational measure and the environment by
continuously optimizing operational management, business
strategies, environmental protection, talent management and
social investments so as to contribute towards the sustainable
development of the globe, human beings and our business.

The ESG Report mainly covers the financial services, property
investment and management business of the Group as an
investment holding company with its relevant strategic approach
to sustainability and performance within the environmental
and social aspects. A summary of the environmental indicators
and performance data are listed in the section of “Summary of
Environmental Data and Performance”, with the reporting period
ended 31 December 2019.

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guideline as set
out in the Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.
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The Group is committed to maintaining the sustainable
development of its business and providing support to environmental
protection and the community in which it operates. The Group
maintains close contacts with its stakeholders, including
government/regulatory bodies, shareholders/investors, employees,
clients, suppliers and other stakeholders and strives to balance
their opinions and interests through constructive communication in
order to determine the directions of its sustainable development.
The Group evaluates and determines its environmental, social and
governance risks and ensures that relevant risk management and
internal control systems are operating properly and effectively.
The following table shows our management responses to various
expectations and requests by our stakeholders:

Stakeholders Expectations and requests

AEBERNEFEBOAIRFEER I
RREREBRAENDREHRSF
AEBERRREE BT BF
REFREMENERTZIBE - 1
KEBERUERIRFEER BN -
KmMEEAKENAFEZRTM -
AEEFGEREERRE HLERER
VB - R A0 A R B B 3R K A B 2
HEZZERERIMET A TRERE
EEEHRNENERELNER:

Management response

Ensure transparency and efficient communications
through periodic publications on websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Group

FRPB R R A EEBULE BN DM - B
REBERBRER

Set up comprehensive strategic plan for achieving
business goals and objectives
HEREMNXGREEEAS  UNEREKER
Management possesses relevant experience

and professional knowledge to ensure business
sustainability

EEEAGHBERMEXNG  BEREFHNA

Provide equal opportunities in promotion, training

BFHE HMEEER EEEERE
Shareholders/ o Information transparency
Investors EEERE

REREE o Business strategies and

performance

EBEBMES

J Corporate governance system
NAEIRHIE
FE M

Employees o Career development
BT FEUR

Compensation and welfare
B AR A

Labour rights

LTHE=E

and career development

EEA BINBEERITARETSEHS
Establish fair, reasonable and competitive
remuneration scheme

BYRAT aBMABRFINGTHER

Set up contractual obligations to protect labor rights
FIEEHNETNREL TR
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Stakeholders Expectations and requests

FHE HMEEER
Clients o Integrity
zF i
] Corporate reputation
DEES
o High quality services
BER%
Suppliers o Integrity
HEm E4E]
o Corporate reputation
CEER
o Good relationship with the
Group

ERBRE R R &

The Group highly regards any feedbacks from stakeholders on this
report and our performance in pursuing sustainable development.
Should there be any suggestions to the refinement of our
sustainable development policies, please contact us via email at

csr@shougang-grand.com.hk.

RE HERERARSE

Management response
EEEERE

Ensure contractual obligations are honored
BRBITEHNEE

Provide high quality services continuously to maintain
client satisfaction

SERHELERBAREEP

Provide various value-added services

RESERERS

Maintain strong and long-term relationship
RIFBANERHANS EBRE

Ensure contractual obligations are honored
BRETENOEL

Establish policies and procedures in supply chain
management

BEHEEEENBRMERF

REBEREHOHEHAREREER
RAFBEREZANEIMER 80D
i 38 E B EE I I B E - csr@shougang-
grand.com.hk °
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B HERERRS

During the reporting period, the Group has assessed a number of RW|EEHA - AEBERHZERER
environmental, social and operational related issues, and evaluated B ekgEEENEE  WEBRT

their importance to stakeholders and the Group through various
channels. This assessment has helped to ensure that the business
development initiatives of the Group can fulfill the expectations
and requirements of our stakeholders. Their matters of concern are

presented in the following materiality matrix:

€ Anti-discrimination
measures

RIRG e

FRREFEHNELEAEEYZEAB
MERREE HEFEBEHAKERE
REBBERENAFNENHERE
Ko MASEMEFDEAELNER
HERNUATHNEREEREA:

Materiality Matrix
EEMER

& Staff training and > Customer satisfaction
promotion opportunity EFEREE
STIEHIEEAKS .

o @ Occupational health and

=
2 T
T

HEMENEEM
Medium
i

Importance to Stakeholders

Low
&®

> Suppliers
management
HEmER

» Community
contribution

e E R

@ Preventive measures
on child and forced
labor
FEMETI R
3R 45 T Ay IE

<~ Exhaust air emissions
& AR

< Sewage discharge
RE7RBERR

<~ Generation of
hazardous wastes

BEERNES

Low

&

< Environmental
REHHE

Staff compensation
and welfare
8 T R

Greenhouse gas
emissions
REREHEN

Use of resources

BEIR(E

Water resources utilization

IKERER

Energy conservation
measures
EOESENEE i
Generation of non-
hazardous wastes

BEERNEL

Medium

E

Importance to the Group

HAKENEENY

Employee
BTHA

workplace safety
BEERET (RS

Operational compliance
EEER

Talent management

AT ER

Human rights protection

REAHE

Anti-corruption
measures

REI5HEE

Client privacy protective
measures

RER PRSI

g’

> Operation

EESH
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The Group always adheres to the management philosophy
of sustainable development and endeavors to advocating
environmental protection. Through various policies and activities,
the Group aims to provide its employees with better understanding
of the environmental impact caused by their living habits and our
business operations so as to reduce carbon footprints. The Group
wishes our employees can initiate themselves to change their own
habits as a way of sending environmental protection messages
across to their families, friends and business partners. Together we
alleviate climate changes, thereby contributing our efforts to protect
the environment.

The Group mainly involves in providing finance services
and property investment and management within an office
setting. Hence, not much greenhouse gases are generated
during our operation. Our waste management mainly involves
domestic wastes and collection of waste paper for recycling.
Also, our daily operation will not cause any hazardous waste
or air pollution. The impact of our domestic wastewater
discharge on the environment is insignificant.

The environmental impact of our business activities
mainly comes from the use of electricity in the office, fuel
consumption by our own vehicles and flight travels for
overseas assignments, thereby emitting greenhouse gas.
The Group also encourages our employees in the Mainland
driving frequently to voluntarily pick any rest day or one day
during festive holidays to ride on public transport or bicycle
as substitution, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions.
Besides, the Group also encourages our employees to use
teleconferencing for meetings and reduce the frequency of
business trips by flight.

During the reporting period, there has not been any
confirmed violation or non-compliance relating to
environmental protection with a significant impact on the
Group.

RE HERERARSE
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RE #HEREARAES

The Group is fully aware of its responsibilities in
environmental protection. Also, the Group continuously
identifies and minimizes any behavior influencing the
environment. The Group has committed to promoting its
corporate culture on resource conservation by constantly
reminding its employees that resources are precious. Various
measures are targeted to build the habit of conservation
among our employees and make the best use of resources.

The Group emphasizes electricity conservation by promoting
the use of energy-saving lightings. The Group uses automated
electricity management system and encourages its employees
to switch off air conditioners, computers, personal electronic
devices and common office equipment after work and/
or when they are idle. The Group endeavors to keep all
electronic appliances well-maintained for raising the overall
usage efficiency.

“Saving Electricity” sign posted in PRC subsidiary
BAFRARERAERUFOAEIRFAREET

AEERDTHREERRIEH
B AEERBERERHRE
HIRWEXTENTR - AKHE
BHOARBBTHIREETERN
BEEURRELBERRENDE
XM YERSEEEXBET
BEREHNEE  ROMNBER -

AEEERBNAE REES
FEEE R - AKREEAAIICE
NWEBRS UZBEIETE
RERAE  FEHE BAETR
BHNAKRAREBER T IR
HER AEEFENIEMEES
HEREME  BEETFTRER
F&ERE  BRERES -
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During the reporting period, the Group consumed
approximately 81.65 megawatt hours of electricity, including
six months’ data by its newly acquired subsidiary in Beijing
in 2019. The room temperature of its Hong Kong and PRC
office needs to be kept at a level suitable to our employees,
therefore local climate change might have directly affected
energy consumption. As a result, electricity consumption
during the reporting period has been increased by
approximately 9.5% when compared to that in 2018. The
Group will continue to monitor the implementation of various
energy conservation policies and try our best to reduce
electricity consumption.

Regarding the level of gasoline consumption, the Group
has continued to reduce the use of company vehicles and
therefore led to a drop from 11,476 liters in 2018 to 11,099
liters in 2019.

Unit

B
Consumption Megawatt hours
Bne JK L B
Intensity (per employee)
ZE (RBHEIFE
Consumption Liters
we nH
Intensity (per employee)

B (REHREIFHHE)

RE HERERARSE

RBEHRN  AEBHXEREE D
#8165 Bk EFBEET
—NEEVRIEEHNFHB T
AIANEAREIE - AR - BRE
EAMBRAETRNEEATER
BRSEBTIHFRAKE bR
BRASCEEYEREE - @
hHEHRNZAEEL T —N
FEIEN T #99.5% - N E 5 4 A
EREMNERNBRRERIS
N WRERLAE -

ERATHERENE  ANEEE
BRAOFEAARNEROBR &£
BE_ZE-NFEFHB TR
MARIEESMAE R AEME
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—HERI,099RFF ©

2018
—E-N\F

74.56

1.82

11,476

279.90
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B HERERRS

With reference to the guidelines of Greenhouse Gas
Protocol after combining with regional emission factors,
our greenhouse gas emission level has been calculated from
the above data. During the reporting period, the Group
has generated 160.80 tonnes of CO, equivalent emissions,
increased by approximately 13% when compared to that
of last year. The intensity of CO, equivalent emissions was
2.87 tonnes (per employee) after considering the factor of
an overall increase in number of employees. The Group will
continue to focus more on the reduction of emissions in our
operational activities.

Unit
By
Scope 1:
gE—:
Emission Tonnes
e 2 A
Scope 2:
EE—:
Emission Tonnes
2 U
Scope 3:
HE=:
Emission Tonnes
HmE i
Total Tonnes
wme Mg
Intensity (per employee)

2R (RBEREIFH)

REBABEREZERRIES &
BREMOBERARE  AEEYH
A EREIRE B HR = R HERUE
THRE - NHREHR - KEHS
F2160.80M8 — A L i B 2 R =
R LLEFBMTHIB% M
BER287THE — AL E E (RS
HETHE) TREARER
TABIEM - NREBHREL S
BRZEERBE -

iz

e
IS

2018
—E-N\F

28.94

64.78

48.78

142.50

3.48
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RE HERERARSE

The Group encourages its employees to make the best use AEBESEBEIRDMAKEIR
of water resources and reduce wastage through practicing MEARE  WERBEEEFM
water conservation actions in everyday life. The Group also ABZRKITE - NEEITFRFA
enhances their self-awareness in this aspect, for example, by BETWEIKER Pl xFME
posting the “Saving Water” sign in toilets and reminds them RETETHWAKIEFREES
to reduce wasting potable water. During the reporting period, ITRADRERAKE - RiE
the Group has consumed 658.14 tonnes of water, resulting in A - R B HE K £9658.14
an around 23% increment when compared to that of 2018 W - BT — N\FALEINTL
(see the table below). One of the reasons was due to its newly 23% (A TR) - B IR
acquired subsidiary in Beijing in 2019. The Group will keep on Z—RERZZE-NAFEMRIL
enhancing the awareness of our employees in water saving. RHF BT RR] - NEEKE
BREEINGHAKIENE
B o

“Saving Water” sign in the toilet of PRC subsidiary
WF R RE S FRR B Q) AKIES

Unit 2018
B —E-N\F
Consumption Tonnes 535.62
BE 7
Intensity (per employee) 13.06

BE (ZBEEIE)
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B HERERRS

Paper is a type of valuable resources. As a method to reduce
paper wastage, the Group encourages its employees to
adopt the principle of “Think before you print” and carefully
select documents for printing. The Group encourages file
distributions using electronic format and to make photocopy
and/or print on both sides. The Group also encourages
its employees to fully utilize papers by reusing single-
side used papers and collect double-sided used papers
for recycling. During the reporting period, the Group has
consumed approximately 1.28 tonnes of paper, increased by
approximately 146% when compared to that of last year.
One of the reasons for the increase was due to the Group’s
business and staff redeployment in early 2019.

Unit
B
Consumption Tonnes
wE 07
Intensity (per employee)
ZE (BEBHREIFH)

During the reporting period, there has not been any
confirmed violation or non-compliance relating to
environmental protection with a significant impact on the
Group.
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The Group strives for the caring and protection of the natural
environment with the hope of starting from everyone.
Through adopting appropriate policies, measures and actions
on various waste sources, the Group targets to enhance
environmental awareness among its employees, thereby
using them as role models for their families, friends and
business partners, in order to build up powerful cohesive
forces for alleviating the impacts from climate changes. Waste
recycling bins are placed nearby our office and also inside
our pantry for collecting recyclable wastes such as paper,
metal and plastic. The Group hopes that every employee can
support and contribute to environmental protection.

Recycling bins nearby the office
R = M ) BE ) o FA B U N

Recycling bns inside the office pantry
ZOK R 89 73 43 [0 U 7
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B HERERRS

As employees are viewed as core assets of the Group, a
comprehensive talent management scheme has been established
to attract and retain competent talents for the sustainable, long-
term development of our business. According to the Employee
Handbook, our recruitment policy is fair that no candidates should
be discriminated against because of their race, color, religion,
national origin, political affiliation, age and gender. The Group
devotes to create a non-discriminate, equal, harmonious and safe
workplace, with the objective of building up good relationship and
mutual respect with employees.

The Group has established various communication channels for
collecting feedbacks from our employees, such as our webpage,
emails, and face-to-face meetings; so that they can raise any
suggestions and express their thoughts. Also, the Group takes into
account their feedbacks when making management decisions.
This can strengthen their sense of belonging and enhance
more interactions with our management. At the same time, our
employees can make use of these channels for reporting to our
management should there be any infringement on their personal
rights.

The Group is a fair opportunity employer and has implemented
fair and non-discriminating policies in our hiring and recruitment
process. The Group also devotes to protect the human rights and
privacy of our employees. Appropriate candidates are selected
based on their knowledge, ability, morality and job requirements.
Impartial employment opportunities are provided to all individuals,
regardless of their age, sex, sexual orientation, race, disability,
marital status, pregnancy, religion or political affiliation. The Group
also provides equal opportunities to all employees regarding their
benefits, promotion, performance appraisal, training and career
development and works closely together with the aim of achieving
a win-win situation.

The Group cherishes human rights and prohibits any form of
unethical hiring practices, including child labor and forced labor.
Policies and procedures have been established in order to comply
with the local labor laws and regulations. Identity documents are
inspected during the hiring process and the Group never hires any
applicant under the legal working age.

AEE-BEREIRRUNEE B3
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The Group regularly examines the salary level of all staffing grades
with reference to the current market standard. The salary levels
are reviewed and adjusted once per year according to attendance
records, staff performance, years of services, general market
conditions and other relevant factors. Our performance appraisal
process is an open, two-way communication, which allows our
employees to gain better understanding on their job requirements
and the Group to set up suitable staff training and development
plans. The Group strives to establish a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration scheme, based on the knowledge, skill
sets, job scopes and performances of all employees.

The Group strictly complies with the national and local labor laws
and regulations. Employees are entitled to annual leaves, sick leaves,
marriage leaves, funeral leaves, maternity leaves and other leaves,
etc. The Group participates in the MPF scheme for their retirements
and also their working hours are in line with the local laws and
regulations. The Group handles dismissal and compensation in
accordance with the national laws and regulations.

The Group has established staff recognition award programs such
as service awards, wedding gifts and child birth gifts. In recognition
of the long-serving employees, the Group provides proof of service
and offers souvenir for those who have been working with us for 10
years. The Group has also launched special caring programs, such
as when employees get married or give birth gifts are presented to
female staff and the spouse of male staff. Through these programs,
the Group would also like to encourage them not only working
hard, but also sparing more time for caring their families.

For enhancing cohesiveness among employees and their sense
of belonging, the Group organizes regular gatherings, including
various luncheons and dinners, movie appreciation and outdoor
activities etc. for reducing their work pressure.
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B HERERRS

In order to support long-term business development of the Group
and to map the career plan for our employees, the Group has
established comprehensive training programs for building up
an excellent, professionally trained and responsible corporate
team. This not only enhances the quality and capability of our
employees, but also raises the cohesiveness among them, thereby
resulting in increased productivity. New hires are provided with
orientation training so as to give them better understanding about
our corporate culture, business philosophy, development history,
management practices, business scope, employee rights and
obligations, and our talent development plan. This is to ensure that
they can readily adapt and integrate into our work environment.

In addition, the Group also provides various on-the-job trainings
including integrated or departmental trainings and external
trainings. These trainings are organized by relevant departments
by themselves or through the human resources and administration
department. Their contents include new or updated management
systems and regulations, new group policies and relevant
professional knowledge, delivered via flexible, practical group
training formats.

For external trainings, the Group invites various professionals to
hold expert seminars based on our topical needs. Employees are
also encouraged to search for work-related training courses for
themselves and propose them for enrolment, in which the Group
will subsidize them to attend.
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Distance training held by Shougang Fund in PRC subsidiary Distance training held by Shougang Fund in PRC subsidiary
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The Group adopts a comprehensive approach to the health
and work safety of our employees, including various preventive
measures on illnesses and injuries. A first aid kit with over-the-
counter medicines can be located in our human resources and
administration department. If any employee experiences physical
discomfort or needs first aid, our colleagues are encouraged to
take care of each other and provide assistance until the ambulance
arrives. The Group also emphasizes the importance of fire safety in
the office with fire evacuation routes being prominently displayed
on all notice boards.

In addition, our PRC subsidiaries encourage employees to adopt a
healthy lifestyle during their spare time. A series of activities, such as
hiking and walking activity, being provided. The Group hopes that
our employees can pursue the healthy lifestyle habit through regular
exercises and feel more energetic at work.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any violations
relating to labor practices and health and safety.

B dERERRS
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B HERERRS

The Group emphasizes long-term and stable strategic partnerships
with good-quality intermediaries and suppliers, thereby developing
together on the basis of equality and mutual benefit. Regarding this
aspect, our PRC subsidiaries have implemented strict procedures
for hiring intermediaries through establishing a vetting committee.
The Group requires our intermediaries to have sound accreditation,
solid internal management system, stable service quality, reasonable
pricing, trustworthy legal compliance and possess appropriate
professional skills. The Group only works with intermediaries with
similar ethical values and standards. When intermediaries are found
to have violated our policies or contractual requirements, the Group
will terminate the cooperation until such situations improve. This is
to ensure that all our intermediaries are competitive and capable of
offering high quality services.

The Group is dedicated to satisfying our client expectation with
the spirit of pursuing excellence and continuous improvement.
With technological advancement and improved living standard,
our clients increasingly demand for high quality services. The
Group has established policies and procedures on service quality
control, covering the process of service delivery, communicating
with clients to ensure their needs and expectations are fulfilled and
their satisfactory level with our services. This serves as the basis
upon which the Group continuously improves our services. If our
clients have any issues on services being rendered, they can give
us feedbacks or complain to us. The Group commits to respond
on the same day as to any complaints being made. The Group
will then promptly handle these cases and follow up until them
being resolved. After the compliant settlement, our responsible
departments have to keep all documentations properly and conduct
a thorough review so as to formulate measures for preventing
similar incidents. The Group can also take the opportunity to
improve their service quality further.

The Group emphasizes our responsibilities of confidentiality and
complying with relevant laws and regulations regarding data privacy
protection. All employees are strictly prohibited to disclose or misuse
any information related to transactions or operations of the Group,
commercial secrets or other confidential information of clients for
their own personal interests. All confidential information and items
must be properly kept by authorized personnel only.
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During the reporting period, there was no violation or
non-compliance relating to our service responsibilities with a
significant impact on the Group. Also, no complaints concerning
breaches of customer privacy and loss of data have been received.

The Group believes that the virtues of fairness, honesty and integrity
are important assets and adopts a zero-tolerance approach on any
kind of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
The Group resolutely fights against corruption and strives to
contribute to the building of an honest, upright society. Our
employees at the headquarter have participated in a work ethics
seminar organized by the Hong Kong Independent Commission
Against Corruption. On the other hand, our employees in the PRC
are required to sign the "Anti Commercial Bribery Agreement” with
the subsidiary for preventing commercial briberies, safeguarding
our legitimate rights and interests and maintaining good business
disciplines. The Group has also established a whistleblowing
policy. If our employees reasonably believe that there is any kind of
misconduct, they can report the case in person or by writing. The
Group will then appoint appropriate personnel or form a specialized
committee for investigating the incident. The Group will not disclose
the identity of whistleblower without his or her consent. In addition,
the Group also requires that all our business partners not bribing our
employees under any form.

During the reporting period, the Group and our employees were not
involved in any litigation cases of corruption.
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The Group actively contributes and facilitates the development
of a healthy, sustainable financial leasing industry. One of our
PRC subsidiaries, South China International Leasing Co., Ltd. (the
“SCIL"), has been serving as the Vice President Unit of the Shenzhen
Financial Leasing Association (the “SFLA") since 2015. The SFLA is a
non-profit organization formed by the Shenzhen-based enterprises
engaged in finance leasing for establishing the provincial industry
self-disciplinary system, and strengthening the communication
between industry participants and the SFLA, thereby achieving
the win-win goals for all parties. During the reporting period, SCIL
assisted SFLA in organizing various conferences, symposia and talent
training programs. SCIL will continue contributing to the sustainable
development of the SFLA and the industry. In addition, SCIL is also
the Executive Vice President Unit of the Fourth Council Committee
of the Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce (the “SGCC").
As an influential, comprehensive association in the PRC, SGCC was
established in December 2005 to fulfill its social responsibility.

Vice president unit of e FL
RYTRERETEH G EREN

Finally, as a caring corporate citizen, the Group keeps on
contributing to the community by supporting various charitable
organizations. During the reporting period, the Group regularly
participates in various charitable activities such as joining the elderly
visit during the dragon boat festival with the aim to help those in
need.

The Group is a responsible taxpayer and spares no effort in easing
local unemployment pressure by offering job opportunities to
local people. The Group assists our employees to prepare and
plan for retirement by paying into the “Five Insurances and
Housing Provident Fund” for our employees in the Mainland
and “Mandatory Provident Fund” for employees in Hong Kong.
The Group consistently follows the best operating practices and
maintains its orderly development. To certain extent, the Group
has contributed to maintaining social stability and building a
harmonious community.
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Scope 1:
gE—:
Emission
P E
Scope 2:
BHE—:
Emission
73,6
Scope 3:
HE=:
Emission

R E

Total

Intensity

B

Nitrogen oxides
AELY
Intensity

ZE

Sulfur oxides
RED
Intensity

s
Particles
LR
Intensity

B
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Unit Notes 2018
B B —T-N\F
1
Tonnes 28.94
7S
2
Tonnes 64.78
L7
3
Tonnes 48.78
7
Tonnes 142.50
198
(per employee) 348

(RBEEIHHE)

Tonnes 2.45
MiA

(per employee) 0.06
(REBHEIFHE)

Tonnes 0.19
Mg

(per employee) 0.01
(REBRBIHE

Tonnes 0.26
Mg

(per employee) 0.01

(BB E£BI:tE)
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B HERERRS

Unit Notes
B Mt =E
Electricity:
EN:
Consumption Megawatt hours
wme JE FL I
Intensity (per employee)
ZZ (RBRBEIHE
Gasoline:
i
Consumption Liters
we nF
Intensity (per employee)
ZZ (RBRBEIHE
Water:
KEIR:
Consumption Tonnes
we i
Intensity (per employee)
ZZ (RBRBEIHE)
Paper:
4
Consumption Tonnes
HmE A
Intensity (per employee)
ZE (KRB IHE
Notes:
1 Scope 1 refers to the Group's business direct GHG emissions, including
combustion of gasoline.
2 Scope 2 refers to the Group’s business indirect GHG emissions, including
consumption of purchased electricity.
3 Scope 3 refers to the indirect emissions that occur outside the Group's

business, including the business trip of employees through flights.

GEE

2018
—E-N\F

74.6

1.82

11,476

279.90

535.6

13.06

0.5

0.01
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RBAEH - BIEEETH ¢
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Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs")
BERENIER

Aspect A1
EEA1
General Disclosure

—REE

KPIA1.1
B B AR MR R AL
KPI A1.2

BB AR IR IR AL2

KPI A1.3
BB AR IR 1R AL

KPI A1.4
B AR IR 1R AL4

KPI A1.5
B B AR MR IR ALS
KPI A1.6

B8R IR R AL6

ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B dERERRS

Reporting Guideline

¥ & 5 5l
A. Environmental
A IRIE
Emissions
2 387

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

FHEERRREREHENR  MAKR THEES  FEREEEEYNE

EER:

(@ BE: X

(b)) BTFTHETAREARZENHBEZRRONER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

PR TE SR S AE R BE R B -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

MERBAFHREUMAE)R(MERRE(WMUAESESEMNL BIER

MeEt &) o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

FEAEEREEYEE CAME) (1A

BEREEE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,

intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

Fﬁ%%ﬂ%}?;ﬁ%ﬁ EUMHAEIR(MERZE(WMUASESEN -
B HEETE) -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.

RO EBE R ENE R AEKR -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction

initiatives and results achieved.

WRREERENEBEBERYNIT L

REEWMABEESEML - &

BEEEXSMNEERATEKRE -

Pages

P

BE¥

4-8

16

N/A
i H

N/A

&
3

4-8



Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs")

HARENER
Aspect A2
B A2

General Disclosure
— =

KPI A2.1
BB AR AR IR A2

KPI A2.2
BB R IR IR A2.2

KPI A2.3
BB AR MR IR A2.3
KPI A2.4

BB IE IR A2.4

KPI A2.5
BB AR AR IRA2S

Aspect A3
EHEA3
General Disclosure

—RERE

KPI A3.1
B B AR IR 1R A3

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HERERRS

Reporting Guideline
HE1EE

A. Environmental

A.RE

Use of Resources
IR fE A
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.
BEREAEREIEEIR KR E AR BB BR -
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in
total (MWh) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RENESHEER SEEER(OE foh) BFE UUOKRRGTE
REE(WABESEN  BEKXBTH) -
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BEKERERE(WMABESEN  BERMETH) -
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
el e R A 5T &I R PSR -
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
HACSKEUERKR R BERIERE - LREARKIGEAEIRAGEHR -
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.
XA BREMHNEE UMAR)R(MER) BEEEUGE -
The Environment and Natural Resources
RERKXAER
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources
BMEBTABRERRAERENEAZENER -
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.
M EBEHERERRAERNEAZERERNEEREAZ ENTT
& o

Pages

BEH

4-8

N/A!
T A
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Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs")

HARENER
Aspect B1
[ EB1

General Disclosure
— =

Aspect B2
[E ™ B2

General Disclosure
— R =

Aspect B3
JE E B3

General Disclosure
— R =

Aspect B4
[E E B4

General Disclosure
— R =

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HEREARES

Reporting Guideline Pages
HE1EE HE
B. Social?
B.i &2
Employment and Labour Practices
1= 1%
Information on: 9-10

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

ERAFMERE BEREA IERE BY FEHE ZT- R

IR AR A B E At 155 38 Ko A@ A B

@ BE: R

(b)) BEBTFHETABERZENHBEEELROBNER -

Health and Safety

REEZR

Information on: 12

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

ERARHELZ2IFERERRBEEERE2BELEEHN:

@ BE: R

(b)) BTFHETABERZENHBEEELBROBNER -

Development and Training

R R

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at 11

work. Description of training activities.

ERARTEEBITIEBREMNME R RENBEK - i FIES -

Labour Standards

g I AR

Information on: 9

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAPI I E T oo i 25 THY -

@ HBE: X

(b) BFHETABEAZENHEBERZRBAONER -
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Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs") Reporting Guideline Pages
R ERIER HE1EEl HE
B. Social?

B.# &2

Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
fE E B5 HEEER
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 13
— R R ERMHEENRE R ERRBE -
Aspect B6 Service Responsibility
[E HB6 PR % & 1E
General Disclosure Information on: 13
— R EE (@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
services provided and methods of redress.
ERAMEHERNMRENRREELZS2  BE BELILEBEEARERK
AR
(@ HB=E: M
(b) BFHETABEAZENHEBEZRBAONER -
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption
[E mB7 RES
General Disclosure Information on: 14
— R EE (@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BERANIEHE R RFEBREN:
(@ BE:K
(b) BFHETABEAZENHEBEZRBAONER -
Aspect B8 Community Investment
[E = B8 PERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities 15
— MR where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BN R2ERTHREEME N EFENERERB RS GZR/NEN
MEVBER ©
Notes: B =
1 The Group’s main businesses are the provision of financial services, 1 AEBFZXEBZEMBRBE LY ER
property investment and management services. We did not generate any BMEBEL  SEELEENBEEY
hazardous waste and use any packaging materials. REREMBEME -
2 Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the “Main Board Listing Rules”, the KPIs 2 ARCER EMBRADKE27ERIEE

under Area B “Social” are recommended disclosures only. Therefore, the
Group choose not to disclose those KPIs in this report.

HEBHTINERERERRIBER
BREGX: At AREREIREZ



The Directors herein present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 40 and 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 110 to 250 of this annual report.

The Board of Directors of the Company does not recommend the payment
of any dividend in respect of the year (2018: Nil).

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14 to 16 and pages 17
to 24 of this annual report respectively.

%% RUREEFEREELAKEHRE
—hE+ZA=+—HLEFEZEEZ
,wéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ&i AHEE -

ARRIZEBEBKARELER - SETEWE
NN ERNR CEBEINN G E M B RS
Bt #£405219 °

AREBEHEE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
ZEBNAEENZB Z BRI
FREBNOBEF250B 7S5 AMBRE -

ARAEEETEZAFRERBEETMEE (=
T—)\F: )

AEEBE_Z-NFt_-_A=1T—HLF
BZEBRBEDHERANFHRELEEF6
BZIEFREEIRFTEEE 4R Z[EE
JE il R AT
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A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 251 to 252 of this
annual report.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, pursuant to the general mandate given to the Directors,
the Company repurchased a total of 23,649,000 ordinary shares of
the Company (the “Shares”) on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration (exclude the trading fee) of approximately HK$3,647,315.
On 30 July 2019, 23,649,000 repurchased Shares have been cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities
(whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the year.

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year (2018: Nil).
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The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Xu Liang
Su Guifeng (@ppointed with effect from 19 September 2019)
Li Jing (appointed with effect from 22 August 2019)

Liu Dongsheng (re-designated to Non-executive Director with effect from
22 August 2019)

You Wenli (appointed with effect from 31 May 2019)

Huang Donglin

Tam King Ching, Kenny

Wan Siu Wah, Wilson

Zhang Xingyu (appointed with effect from 20 March 2020)

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (resigned with effect from 1 January 2020)
Fei Jianjiang (resigned with effect from 20 March 2020)

In accordance with clauses 99 and 102(B) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Xu Liang,
Mr. Su Guifeng, Ms. Li Jing, Mr. Liu Dongsheng, Ms. You Wenli and Mr.
Zhang Xingyu, will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

As permitted by the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officer’s liability
coverage for the directors and officers of the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company, which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Company’s Directors, chief
executives or their respective associates had any other personal, family,
corporate and other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code").

Apart from as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes” herein, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent company or
any subsidiary of its parent company a party to any arrangement to enable
the Company'’s Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18
years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

No transactions, arrangements and contracts that is significant in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its
parent company or any subsidiary of its parent company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company or his/her connected entities had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following Director has
declared interests in the following business (other than those businesses
where the Directors of the Company were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or any member of the Group)
which is considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year:
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RIEEMMRAIESI0G UTEFEREEW
RUATEBRFERR(XTBREARAES
EZERABMARZEEURKREARTR
FAEEEMKERARRR ZER) &
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Name of entity whose Description of business of

business are considered the entity which is

to compete or likely considered to compete or

to compete with the likely to compete with the Nature of interest of
Name of Director businesses of the Group businesses of the Group the Director in the entity

EBRWRAREAREXE EXBERRBEAIAEEER
BEBRFRTEBRRT BRBAERTEELSRF EERERREH

EEpE ZERZER 2ERzEH ZEFCHE

Xu Liang Shougang Holding* Property investment Director

®E EEF2& MEKRE 5%

# Such business may be carried out through the subsidiaries or associates of the — * BRBAECEBEAER B LA B

entity concerned or by way of other forms of investments.

The Board of the Company is independent from the board of the above-
mentioned entity and is accountable to the Company’s shareholders.
Coupled with the diligence of its Independent Non-executive Directors
whose views carry significant weight in the Board's decisions, the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the businesses of this entity.
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As at 31 December 2019, according to the register kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, the following companies and persons had
interests or short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the
Company which fell to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and

3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of shareholder

RR&®

Shougang Group
EEEL]

Shougang Holding
BMER

Wheeling Holdings Limited (“Wheeling")
Shougang Fund
EEESA

Jingxi Holdings Limited (“Jingxi Holdings")
REERERAR(RAEZER])

Yip Wang Ngai
KR

HY Holdings Limited (“HY Holdings")

Mak Siu Hang Viola
DM

VMS Investment Group Limited (“VMS Investment”)

SWREEEERAR(EFIRE)

Capacity in which
interests were held

FERZEZEH

Interests of controlled corporations

XEEE ER

Interests of controlled corporations

XEEE ER

=

ne icial owner

Interests of controlled corporations

XEEE ER

=

ne icial owner

Interests of controlled corporation

XEEE ER

=

ne icial owner

Interests of controlled corporations

XEEE ER

neficial owner

Be
EXHEBA

REZZE-AFE+-A=+—8" BEAR
f%%&%f%%%%%wﬁi%ﬂﬁﬁ

E R TIN

AR ALTRARERG K,

A Tﬁ%—rﬁ?‘é SRR MABREBESRE
EIRFIEXVEBE2R FEID A AANRHE

Number of shares/
underlying shares

Bt/
HERNBE

2,425,736,972

2,025,736,972

2,025,736,972

400,000,000

400,000,000

213,600,000

213,600,000

245,419,538

183,750,000

Interests as to

% of the issued
share capital of

the Company as at
31.12.2019
BREMEAAT
R=ZZ-n%
t=A=t+-H
BEETRAZEDE

60.88%

50.84%

50.84%

10.04%

10.04%

5.36%

5.36%

6.16%

4.61%

Note(s)

Hrit



Name of shareholder

RR&®

Master Competent Limited (“Master Competent”)

VMS Holdings Limited (“VMS Holdings")
BRERERAR(SWER])

Fastlane Global Investments Limited
("Fastlane Global")

VMS Securities Holdings Limited
("VMS Securities Holdings")
SRBEFERERAR(TEREFZER))
VMS Financial Group Limited (“VMS Financial”)
SReBREEERAR(EMER]))

VMS Securities Limited (“VMS Securities”)
SWELFBRAFDTSMES])

Notes:

1. Shougang Group indicated in its disclosure form dated 30 July 2019 (being the
latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2019) that as at 30 July 2019,
its interest in the Company was held by Shougang Holding and Shougang
Fund respectively, wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shougang Group. Shougang
Holding’s interest in the Company was the Shares held by Wheeling, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Shougang Holding, and Shougang Fund'’s interest in the
Company was the Shares held by Jingxi Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of

Shougang Fund.

Capacity in which
interests were held

FERZEZEH

Interests of controlled corporations
RELECER

Interests of controlled corporations
RELECER

Interests of controlled corporations
RELECER

Interests of controlled corporations
RELECER
Interests of controlled corporations
RELECER

Beneficial owner
EEHEBA

Number of shares/
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Interests as to

% of the issued
share capital of
the Company as at

underlying shares 31.12.2019 Note(s)
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Notes: (Continued)

2. Mr. Yip Wang Ngai indicated in his disclosure form dated 1 August 2019 (being
the latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2019) that as at 30 July 2019,
his interest in the Company was held by HY Holdings which in turn was held as
to 80% by Mr. Yip Wang Ngai.

3. Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola indicated in her disclosure form dated 18 February
2019 (being the latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2019) that as
at 18 February 2019, (i) VMS Securities, which is a company controlled by her,
holds 61,669,538 Shares,; and (i) VMS Investment, which is a company wholly
owned by her, holds 183,750,000 Shares. VMS Securities is wholly owned by
VMS Financial, which in turn is wholly owned by VVMS Securities Holdings and in
turn, wholly owned by Fastlane Global. Fastlane Global is wholly owned by VMS
Holdings. VMS Holdings is owned as to 59.80% by Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola and
32.20% by Master Competent, which is wholly owned by Ms. Mak Siu Hang
Viola.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company has not
been notified of any other person (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares and/or underlying shares of the Company which fell to be disclosed
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below,
at no time during the year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any of
its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any contract
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, there is a
sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as required under
the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

Byt (&)
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B EE=—FE—NF+=ZA=+—HIH
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FFH ¢ T3 54 R I 4 FF B HY Holdings 80% ##

e
&
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R EF5 5 183,750,000/ R 17 © 42 I 5% 5 H 42
L2 ERE - MR [ IE5 TR
2EHE - SRINFEZF PR A Fastlane Global 2 &
#EAE ° Fastlane Global R IR 2 EHER ° 5
IR 1 B8 73 5l Ay 25 20 45 2 4 & Master Competent
# 559.80% %32.20% - if] Master Competent
BHELHL L2 EHEE -

BREXHEEEIN  R-T-AF+_H
=t+—B  ARFLEEEEFEMAL R
RAEERESTBRAEBRINBA - RTH
RARBRMB R,/ HAEEROFHEERK
KRB MAREBREZ R RE KRG EXVEE2
R EIDBRAANRERE °

BRTIXEERS]| - EEIN  KNAF
HEEMMBARERNFEEMERA - £
EEZEERROZ ETRAGE TRRE) HHE
ERMBARZHERILEMNERZSNRARA
ERRRGEEAHEARRAARRREE
B RRRERBNERZAL -

REARBAESZIARERLRARRE
ERM RAFHRTBERY - XRFZ2EH
NELTMRAUAAREZEARRFTRER

E °



On 7 June 2002, the shareholders of the Company adopted the 2002
Scheme which would be valid for a period of ten years. On 25 May 2012,
the shareholders of the Company approved the termination of the 2002
Scheme (to the effect that no further share option shall be granted by
the Company under the 2002 Scheme) and the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”), which became effective on 29
May 2012 upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting
its approval to the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares of the
Company which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options to
be granted under the 2012 Scheme. The share options granted under
the 2002 Scheme prior to its termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the 2002 Scheme.

A summary of the principal terms of each of the 2002 Scheme and the
2012 Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
share options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or its
associated companies. The 2002 Scheme was adopted on 7 June
2002 and terminated on 29 May 2012.

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion,
offer directors (including executive and non-executive directors),
executives, officers, employees or shareholders, of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or any of its associated companies, and
any suppliers, customers, consultants, advisers, agents, partners
or business associates who will contribute or have contributed
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of its associated
companies, share options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted under the
2002 Scheme is 3,586,880 which represents approximately 0.09%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

As the 2002 Scheme was terminated on 29 May 2012, no further
options can be granted under the 2002 Scheme since then.
However, the share options granted under the 2002 Scheme prior
to its termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the 2002 Scheme.
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Each of the grantees was required to pay HK$1.00 as a consideration
for the grant of share options in accordance with the 2002 Scheme.
The offer of share options must be accepted within 60 days from the
date of offer.

Save as disclosed above, there is no material difference in the terms,
which shall be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.09 of the Listing Rules,
between the 2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme.

No share option was granted, exercised or cancelled in accordance
with the terms of the 2002 Scheme during the year. Details of the
outstanding share options under the 2002 Scheme during the year
are as follows:

Options to
subscribe for
shares of the

BRE_FTZT_F58 SFBEAEX
A0 IEREMERTRREZ
RE - RERTZBEREANELA
HEF AN TERERS -

Br L EE SR _FETEIE
T——FEIRNERE ETAERIE17.09
BIELFENKRTEEAZEZE -

ZIEREE  (TEHEHE -  RAFE
N RE-_FT_FFEAZHEHRTRE
BRESBOT:

Company

AREERT

IR 4 2 B AR 1
At the beginning/ Exercise price
Category or name of grantees end of the year  Date of grant Exercise period per share
ERAERRES LRI E S R BH TR BRITEE
Employees of the Group 3,586,880 14.12.2010 14.12.2010 - 13.12.2020 HK$0.53
rEEER 7 #0.537C

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to replace the 2002 Scheme
and to continue to enable the Company to grant share options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries and/or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entities”). The 2012 Scheme
shall be valid and effective for the period of ten years commencing
on 25 May 2012, being the date on which the 2012 Scheme was
conditionally adopted by the shareholders of the Company, and
ending on 25 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).

TE——FFHEEERR T _F5
BWFEARARGEHEBEMEFREER
HHERE FARBXXEERESEHAN
DA RS ENB AR R,
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Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer full-
time or part-time employees, executives, officers or directors (including
executive and non-executive directors) of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or any of the Invested Entities, and any advisors,
consultants, agents, suppliers, customers and distributors, who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any of the Invested
Entities, share options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption. The maximum number of shares of the Company available
for issue upon exercise of all share options which may be granted
under the 2012 Scheme is 115,219,246, representing approximately
2.89% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report. The total number of shares of the Company issued and
which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of share options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, which
would result in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of the offer of such grant
(a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of the grant; and (b) having an aggregate value of in
excess of HK$5,000,000 (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of each grant), such further grant of options shall be subject to
the issue of a circular by the Company and shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting on a poll at which the grantee, his/her associates and
all core connected persons of the Company shall abstain from voting
in favour of the resolution concerning the grant of such options, and/
or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time. A connected person of the Company will be permitted to
vote against the grant only if his intention to do so has been stated in
the circular. Any grant of share options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, is
required to be approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors
(excluding the Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee
of the options).
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The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted under the 2012 Scheme. There is no requirement that a
share option must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at its discretion any
such minimum period at the time of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer of share options; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer of share options; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company on the date of offer of share options. Each
of the grantees is required to pay HK$1.00 as a consideration for
his acceptance of the grant of share options in accordance with the
2012 Scheme. The offer of share options must be accepted within
30 days from the date of the offer.

Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do not confer
rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at general meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2019, there was no share
option outstanding under the 2012 Scheme.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes” herein,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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During the year, pursuant to the general mandate given to the Directors,
the Company repurchased a total of 23,649,000 Shares on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration (exclude the trading fee) of
approximately HK$3,647,315. On 30 July 2019, 23,649,000 repurchased
Shares have been cancelled. The number of issued shares of the Company
as of 31 December 2019 was 3,984,639,703.
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REAFERN  BERETFTEE—BREHE -
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F+-_A=Z+—H AREBEETRHEE
/53,984,639,703% °

Aggregate

consideration

Prices per Share (exclude the

BREMER trading fee)

Number Highest Lowest BRE

of Shares 583 BE (FEEXZEH

Date of repurchases repurchased HK$ HK$ HK$

BEHH EEERAE BT BT BT

11 July 2019 6,000,000 0.150 0.150 900,000
—E-NFEA+—H

12 July 2019 5,389,000 0.152 0.149 810,817
—E-hFEATZ=AH

15 July 2019 2,488,000 0.158 0.152 388,246
—E-NFEATHH

16 July 2019 557,000 0.160 0.157 88,367
ZE-NAFEATRH

17 July 2019 2,094,000 0.161 0.156 330,088
—E-NAFEATLEH

18 July 2019 4,109,000 0.159 0.155 649,031
—E-NAFEA+NB

19 July 2019 3,012,000 0.164 0.156 480,766
—E-hFEATRE

23,649,000 3,647,315

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
(whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the year.
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately HK$98,930,000.

In the year under review, revenue from sales of goods and rendering of
services to the Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately
89% of the total revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services
for the year and revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services
to the largest customer included therein amounted to approximately
29%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 91% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from
the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 91%.
None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the Group'’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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The following connected transactions were entered during the year and up
to the date of this annual report:

On 13 June 2018, On Hing Investment Company, Limited (“On
Hing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
share sale agreement with Beijing Services New Shougang Venture
Capital Investment LLP* (It RARZE FT B M AR MBI IR E b %
(BBRA ), “Beijing Services New Shougang”) and Beijing West
Business Factoring Company Limited* ( 5 78 % % (% 12 A B &
7], "Beijing West Business Factoring”) to acquire 41.41% equity
interest of Beijing West Business Factoring for RMB75,262,645.50
(the “Acquisition”), subject to certain conditions precedent. Beijing
Services New Shougang is an associate of and is controlled by
Shougang Fund. The consideration was determined with reference
to a valuation of the sale shares as at 31 March 2018 based on
the market approach as determined by a qualified independent
valuer. The consideration was payable by the purchaser in one
lump sum within sixty business days from the second day of the
completion of the share sale agreement, and in any case shall
not be later than the long stop date of the Acquisition. On 31
December 2018, supplemental agreement was entered to extend
the long stop date of the Acquisition from 31 December 2018 to
31 May 2019. On 31 May 2019, a further supplemental agreement
was entered to extend the long stop date of the Acquisition from
31 May 2019 to 31 May 2020 and the contract party was changed
from On Hing to South China International Leasing Co., Ltd.
(“South China Leasing”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. The Acquisition was approved by independent
shareholders in the special general meeting on 19 September
2018 and was completed on 24 July 2019. Upon completion of the
acquisition, Beijing West Business Factoring would be accounted
for as an associate company of the Company. The acquisition
is being carried out to align with strategy the Company for
developing new business model and innovative financial services.
The revenue to be generated from fees and interest income from
the business factoring services by Beijing West Business Factoring
will provide an additional income stream to the Group in the form
of share of profit from an associate company. For the details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 13 June 2018, 31 December 2018, 31 May 2019 and 30 July
2019, the circular of the Company dated 4 September 2018 and
the poll results of the Company dated 19 September 2018.
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On 13 June 2018, Gold Cosmos Development Limited (“Gold
Cosmos”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a capital increase agreement with Shougang Fund and Beijing
Jingxi Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.* (4t = = 70 4 fE 8 &
AR AT, "Jingxi Supply Chain”) for Gold Cosmos to contribute
additional capital to Jingxi Supply Chain. According to the capital
increase agreement, Gold Cosmos will contribute an amount of
RMB200,000,000 as additional capitals to Jingxi Supply Chain and
thereby increasing its shareholding in Jingxi Supply Chain from 10%
to 70% (the “Capital Increase”). The amount of additional capital to
be contributed to Jingxi Supply Chain was determined by the parties
with reference to the expected capital requirement of Jingxi Supply
Chain based on its business development plan. Upon completion of
the transaction, Jingxi Supply Chain would become a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company believed that the
added investment in Jingxi Supply Chain would allow it to develop
more swiftly in the fast growing supply chain finance business in the
PRC and, in turn, would further enlarge its return on investment. The
acquisition was approved by independent shareholders in the special
general meeting on 19 September 2018. On 31 December 2018, a
supplemental agreement was entered into such that the party of the
Group to the capital increase agreement was changed from Gold
Cosmo to Ecko Investment Company Limited* (1% & Bl JE & & &
#CHEY) B BR A F]) and the long stop date of the transaction and
the deadline for payment of the additional capital under the capital
increase agreement was extended to 30 June 2019. The Capital
Increase is completed in July 2019. For the details of the transaction,
please refer to announcements of the Company dated 13 June 2018
and 31 December 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 4
September 2018.
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On 21 November 2018, SCG Investment (BVI) Limited (“SCG
Investment”, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), as
vendor, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Shougang
Holding, as purchaser, in relation to the restructuring by way of
disposal of Upper Nice Assets Ltd. (“Upper Nice”, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company), which holds 619,168,023 shares,
representing approximately 40.78% equity interests, of Global
Digital Creations Holdings Limited (“GDC", Stock Code: 8271), at
a consideration of HK$154,792,005.75 to be paid by electronic
transfer of funds on completion date. The terms of the sale and
purchase agreement were determined by arm’s length negotiations
between SCG Investment and Shougang Holding after taking into
account of, among other things, the market value of the assets
to be restructured and the net asset value of the GDC. Upon
completion, Upper Nice would cease to be a subsidiary of the
Company. The business development of the Group and the existing
business of GDC and its subsidiaries are not complimentary from
a strategic prospective. The implementation of the restructuring
would enable the Group to effectively consolidate its asset portfolio,
as well as progression in executing such strategy. The acquisition
was approved by independent shareholders in the special general
meeting on 28 December 2018 and the disposal was completed
on 8 January 2019. For the details of the transaction, please refer
to announcement of the Company dated 21 November 2018 and
circular of the Company dated 10 December 2018.
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On 26 December 2018, Eldex Investment Company Limited (“Eldex
Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a joint venture agreement with Chengdu Shougang Silk Road
Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd.* (AKX EB & S 44 BE IR iE R E A &
B BB~ 7], “Shougang Silk Road”) and Chengdu Wuhou Capital
Investment Management Group Co., Ltd.* (X #REERN K EE
EEBE AR AR, “Wuhou Capital”) to establish a joint venture,
namely Shoucheng Finance Lease (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.* (B X g2 &
& (A EB) B R A 7], “Shoucheng Finance Lease”) to engage in
the business of finance lease and related services. Shougang Silk
Road is a corporate fund 50% owned by Shougang Fund which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group. Wuhou Capital
and its ultimate owners are independent of and not connected
with the Company and its connected persons. Shoucheng Finance
Lease would have a registered capital of RMB100,000,000, which
has been determined by the parties after arm'’s length negotiations
by reference to its expected capital requirement. According to
the joint venture agreement, the amount of registered capital
to be contributed by Eldex Investment, Shougang Silk Road
and Wuhou Capital were RMB25,000,000, RMB40,000,000
and RMB35,000,000 respectively. Upon completion of the
transaction, the Group’s investment in Shoucheng Finance Lease
will be equity accounted for in the financial statement of the
Company. Shoucheng Finance Lease will be based in Chengdu. Its
establishment will enable the Group to be involved in the finance
leasing market in western China, thereby expanding the Group’s
coverage in the region. The formation of Shoucheng Finance Lease
has not yet completed. For the details of the transaction, please
refer to announcement of the Company dated 26 December 2018.
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The following continuing connected transactions were recorded during
the year and up to the date of this annual report:

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 15 April
2015 and in the circular of the Company dated 26 May 2015, a
master facility agreement was entered into between the Company
and Shougang Group on 26 March 2015 (the “2015 Master Facility
Agreement”).

Pursuant to the 2015 Master Facility Agreement, the Company has
agreed to provide, or procure its subsidiaries to provide facilities by
way of entrusted payment and/or finance lease to Shougang Group
and/or its subsidiaries in an amount of up to RMB8,000,000,000
for a term of 3 years from 19 June 2015, the date on which the
condition precedent for the 2015 Master Facility Agreement was
fulfilled and the 2015 Master Facility Agreement became effective
(the “2015 Facilities”).

For the 2015 Facilities provide by way of entrusted payment and/or
finance lease, the interest rate payable by the borrower or the lessee
shall be at a rate equal to the cost of lending of the Company (or its
subsidiaries) plus 1% to 5%.

The annual cap of the 2015 Facilities for each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2015, 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017,
31 December 2018, 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021 is RMB5,000,000,000, taken into account of the
expected maximum outstanding balance of the facilities owed by
the Shougang Group and/or its subsidiaries under the 2015 Master
Facility Agreement for each relevant year.

The entering into of the 2015 Master Facility Agreement will enable
the Group to earn a net interest income under the 2015 Master
Facility Agreement.
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As at the date of the 2015 Master Facility Agreement, Shougang
Group was the holding company of Shougang Holding which
in turn was a controlling shareholder and connected person of
the Company. As such, the transactions contemplated under
the 2015 Master Facility Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios for the transactions contemplated under the 2015 Master
Facility Agreement (including the annual caps) exceed 100%, the
2015 Master Facility Agreement constituted both a non-exempt
continuing connected transaction and a very substantial acquisition
for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The 2015 Master Facility Agreement was subject to approval by the
independent shareholders of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 Master Facility Agreement and the annual caps thereunder
were approved, confirmed and ratified by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 19 June 2015.

As the 2015 Master Facilities Agreement between the Company
and the Shougang Group in relation to the provision by the Group
of the 2015 facilities to the Shougang Group expired on 18 June
2018, the Company entered into another master facilities agreement
with Shougang Group on 8 June 2018 (the “2018 Master Facility
Agreement”).

Pursuant to the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, the Company has
agreed to provide, or procure its subsidiaries to provide facilities by
way of entrusted payment, finance lease and/or credit financing
to Shougang Group and/or its subsidiaries in an amount of up to
RMB5,000,000,000 for a term of 3 years from 8 June 2018, the
date on which the condition precedent for the 2018 Master Facility
Agreement was fulfilled and the 2018 Master Facility Agreement
became effective (the “2018 Facilities”).
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For the 2018 Facilities provide by way of entrusted payment, finance
lease and/or credit financing, the interest rate payable by the
borrower or the lessee shall be at a rate equal to the cost of lending
of the Company (or its subsidiaries) plus 1% to 5%, subject to a cap
of 10%.

The annual cap of the 2018 Facilities for each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2018 to 2024 shall be RMB1,500,000,000
each year, taken into account of the expected level of financing
required by Shougang Group and its subsidiaries based on published
public information on Shougang Group, and the amount of
financing that the Group is expected to be able to secure to finance
the 2018 Facilities, for each relevant year.

The entering into of the 2018 Master Facility Agreement will enable
the Group to earn a net interest income under the 2018 Master
Facility Agreement.

As at the date of the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, Shougang
Group was the holding company of Shougang Holding which
in turn was a controlling shareholder and connected person of
the Company. As such, the transactions contemplated under the
2018 Master Facility Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for
the transactions contemplated under the 2018 Master Facility
Agreement (including the annual caps) exceed 5%, the 2018 Master
Facility Agreement constituted a non-exempt continuing connected
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The 2018 Master Facility Agreement was subject to approval by the
independent shareholders of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The 2018 Master Facility Agreement and the annual caps
thereunder were approved, confirmed and ratified by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 7 December 2018.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 8 June 2018 and 20 November 2018 and in
the circular of the Company dated 20 November 2018.
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As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 31 October
2018, the Company entered into the following transactions on 31
October 2018:

(A)

Long Cosmos Investment Limited (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement with Billioncorp Development Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Holding) as landlord,
in relation to the lease of office premise at a monthly rent
of HK$195,500, exclusive of rates and management fees,
for the three years ending 31 October 2021 (the “Tenancy
Agreement”). The payment under the Tenancy Agreement
should be made in advance on the first day of each and
every calendar month without deduction. The annual cap
of the tenancy agreement for each of the years ending 31
October 2019, 31 October 2020, and 31 October 2021
is HK$2,541,500, HK$2,346,000 and HK$2,346,000
respectively, taken into account of the payment commitment
of monthly rent under the tenancy agreement.

the Company entered into a master services agreement with
Shougang Holding for a term of three years commencing
from 31 October 2018 to 31 October 2021 (the “Master
Services Agreement”). Under which, Shougang Holding
would provide to the Company advisory services covering
areas in business and operational, investment management
and financial management disciplines, treasury and risk
management, key managerial recruitment and retention as
well as other operating practices and procedures, accounting,
corporate advisory, legal, company secretarial and other
services. The Company agreed to reimburse the actual costs
of the services incurred by Shougang Holding by reference
to a specified percentage of the remuneration of members
of the staff providing the Services to the Company, with
annual payment capped at HK$2,880,000 each of the three
years ending 31 October 2019, 31 October 2020, and 31
October 2021. The annual caps were determined after taken
the maximum payment obligation under the Master Services
Agreement.
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Given both the Tenancy Agreement and the Master Services
Agreement relate to the use of the office premise and the
service rendered in the office premise, these transactions shall
be aggregated according to the requirements of Rule 14A.81 of
the Listing Rules. Based on the transaction amounts of the two
transactions in aggregate, certain applicable percentage ratios are
above 0.1% but all relevant percentage ratios are less than 5%.
In accordance with Rule 14.76(2) of the Listing Rules, the Tenancy
Agreement and the Master Services Agreement together with the
respective annual cap for the three years ending 31 October 2021
are exempt from the circular (including independent financial advice)
and the Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
31 October 2018.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive directors of the Company must review the continuing connected
transactions carried out under the 2015 Master Facility Agreement, the
2018 Master Facility Agreement, the Tenancy Agreement and the Master
Services Agreement during the year and confirm whether the transactions
thereunder had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter to (the Board of
Directors of the Company) confirming the matters stated in Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions under
2015 Master Facility Agreement, the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, the
Tenancy Agreement and the Master Services Agreement took place during
the year.

The transactions regarding revenue under sales and leaseback
arrangements set out in note 38(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and the outstanding balance arising from sale and leaseback
business set out in note 38(c) to the consolidated financial statements
were connected transactions which had been approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company.
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The transactions regarding consultancy services expenses, management
fee expenses and lease payments set out in note 38(b) to the consolidated
financial statements were connected transactions which were exempt
from circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

The transactions set out in notes 38(d) and 38(e) to the consolidated
financial statements under the heading of “Related Party Transactions” did
not constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

As far as the transactions set out in note 38(a) to the consolidated
financial statements are concerned, the remuneration of the Directors as
determined pursuant to the service contracts entered into between the
Directors and the Group were connected transactions which were exempt
from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

1. Pursuant to the facility letter entered into between SCG Finance
Corporation Limited (“SCG Finance”) and Chong Hing Bank Limited
("CHB") on 21 March 2018 in relation to a revolving term loan
facility of HK$70,000,000 (the “Facility”), Shougang Group and
Shougang Holding shall remain as the largest shareholder (directly
or indirectly) of the Company during the term of the Facility. Breach
of such condition will constitute an event of default upon which
CHB may cancel the Facility or terminate the Facility and demand
all outstanding amount under the Facility be immediately due and
payable. The availability of the Facility is subject to CHB's periodic
review and overriding right of repayment on demand.

2. Pursuant to the facility letter entered into between SCG Finance and
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“CCB”) on 30
May 2018 in relation to an uncommitted revolving loan facility for
a total principal amount not exceeding HK$70,000,000 (the “CCB
Facility”), Shougang Group shall remain to directly or indirectly
own beneficially at least 30% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company during the term of the CCB Facility. Breach of such
condition will constitute an event of default upon which CCB may
cancel the CCB Facility or terminate the CCB Facility and demand
all outstanding amount under the CCB Facility be immediately due
and payable. The availability of the CCB Facility is subject to CCB’s
periodic review and overriding right of repayment on demand.
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The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 52 of this annual report.

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 53 to
76 of this annual report.

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are set out
in note 42 to the financial statements.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the Company
and PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, both with effect from 12 December 2019. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to
reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company.

Save for the above, there has been no other change in the auditor of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

By Order of the Board
Xu Liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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To the Shareholders of Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang Concord Grand
(Group) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 110 to 250, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year

then ended;
o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;
. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under sale and o

leaseback arrangements

o Impairment assessments of goodwill

Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements

EREELH R T2 ERABR B EERER

Refer to Notes 3.1(b), Note 4(a) and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FE2HGEAMEREMNFE3.1() ~ M 5E4@) R HFE20 °

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of the receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements amounted to approximately
HK$1,291,196,000, net of provision for expected credit loss
("ECL") of HK$49,588,000, which represented approximately
56% of the total assets of the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2019, a net provision for expected credit
losses of receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
of HK$1,811,000 has been reversed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H EREHELHETZE
W R IB 4 4 B # 75%61,291,196,000 T (FN K T8 B B &5 1B
([FEEAfE B 18 ) 8 f5 78 %549,588,0000T) - 1 B &K
BERENGEY HE_T—NEF+-_A=+—HLHF
B EREHETHETRRRBEZEREEESBERETF
BMRBH1L811,000tERNGFE 2 HKERARD -

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements have increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a three-
stage impairment model to calculate the ECL. The Group
measured expected credit losses based on an individual
assessment of each borrower after considering their
credit profile with reference to credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
EEEFHEREELHFE T ZERERENEERRS
NIGHER AR ZRARIE N - WERB =R ER I
HEHEBEEERR - EXERKERRERANEEL
B ERZERANERNG  2REEREETREE
WEtERXRGTERAGERBE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ATHETNATEERRETSHE

Our procedures performed in relation to the expected credit
loss allowance of receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements included:

AR EREHELCHBE T ZRRRE2BHEEEER
BHERBHIEF B :

o Understood, evaluated and validated on a sample
basis the key controls over the expected credit loss
assessment of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements, including the reversal of brought
forward provisions;

. MR T FELRBREHEROEALHET 2 EK
FENEHEEERTENETERGHER 21
BODEERE:

o Evaluated the significant judgements and assumptions
involved in the expected credit losses measurement
model, including management’s assessment of
credit risk of each borrower, considering their credit
profiles, historical repayment patterns, publicly
available information of these borrowers, reports from
international credit rating agencies and forward looking
factors such as market conditions and economic
growth, and assessed the reasonableness of the
judgements and assumptions adopted, including the
reversal made;

s REREZERANEELESE EBELEFERX ZE
ERANRHAAFSER  BEREETREENR
EARTHERARKEERERELERER - 57
HABEE BB SEE P RE XA RERR
BEEEEHRERAGERRNTA - RTMA
RMHERBRENEEY  REMERE:
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Key Audit Matter
BREBESSE

Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements (Continued)

EROBLHE N ERFE BRI RERZERE (&)

The measurement model of expected credit losses involves
significant management judgement and assumptions,
primarily including the following:
EHEEERNGERE SR ERNE R A B RRR
FTERRFEUATF@E:

(1)  Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk, or a default or
impairment loss was incurred;

() ®BMEEERBREEABILINIENIOREEBIED
R

(2) Economic indicators for forward-looking
measurements;

(2) BIEHEFENLBEERE

(3)  The estimated future cash flows for credit impaired
receivables in stage 3.

B F-RBEBLEEEREMEKZKENGEE KRR
WEmNE -

In addition, the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements and provisions are significant to the
consolidated financial statements. In view of these reasons,
we identified this as a key audit matter.

BESN ﬁ{é@fﬁzﬂ#ﬁTZFﬁHﬁZ NI N BHEE RS0
WEMEBEKXN - ERNZERE $ﬁh%5%ﬂﬁ—
THARERTEIE o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KOWEFNMEEFREFSSE

o Evaluated the appropriateness of management
assessment of the ECL on credit impaired receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements in stage 3,
taking into account the legal possession status and
other uncertainties on realising the relevant underlying

assets; and
. LREBZAREAMULERBEEAREENEM
TEEIEFE.%{é H:F{EEEEF LEEIPI:F{EEEV—L

%W%%@ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?ZE%iZfﬁﬁﬁ%m
HHMEREEER X

. Performed recalculation of the ECL model to assess the
accuracy;

s EREHEEBERINENRAE  UFGERL:

Based on our procedures performed, the significant

judgements and assumptions adopted by management in the

ECL assessment were considered acceptable.
REBEFRFRDNER  BEEBENGRHAEEEBRRME
%Eﬁﬂ%&@“@ﬁﬁT@%



Key Audit Matter
BREBESSE

Impairment assessments of goodwill

B2 R (8 A

Refer to Notes 2.10 and Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
FLHRAMBHRENFE210R M 18 -

As at 31 December 2019, the goodwill of the Group
amounted to HK$56,660,000 related to business acquisitions
in the current and previous years.
RZE—-NF+=ZA=+—8"
56,660,0007T * #ARFE K& i@

BERECZHERAER
EEEXGWREER -

The Group’s goodwill was allocated to three subsidiaries,
being the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwvill
is monitored for internal management purpose
e.i%ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%?éﬁ%? T mmrm&m&)

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually.
In carrying out the goodwill impairment assessments,
management determines the recoverable amount of each
group of cash-generating units (“CGUs") by using value in
use calculation (“VIU"). In assessing the VIU, management
applied the discounted cash flow method. These assessments
involved significant management judgement and estimates in
the discounted cash flow calculation and the application of
assumptions in the models, including interest rate spread and
gross profit margin for the coming five years, terminal growth
rates and discount rates used in the projection periods. Based
on the management’s assessment, there is no impairment
required for goodwill for the current year.

SEELEFRUA-—XBERE RETHEBRET
h EEEFACAEREE(EREEDEESAR
ReErBEN(ReELBMLNATKOSHE - EEE
RAMBRREREEZTHEREE ZFHHEIRER
BenBfHEPERBERAE REFREERF RS
BER  BEAREFOHMNERE RFEFN X - FRAHE B
MRIFPERENMBAR REEEENTGE AFERE

BAELRIE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KOWEFNMEEFREFSSE

Our procedures performed in relation to management’s
goodwill impairment assessment include:

RO EEERERENERNNEFEHE:

o Evaluated the composition of the Group’s future cash
flow forecasts in developing the VIU calculations of
each group of CGUs, and the process by which they
were drawn up, including comparing the forecasts to
the latest budgets approved by the management;

. *JHEF EXERSANRELEML 2 EAEER

BEREBI AR (BEREEEEROMEZTRE
ES | ﬁlJJ:tf)ZﬁR?Uﬁimii‘E HAEE

o Involved our internal valuation experts to assess the
discount rates applied by management in the valuation;

s ANHEHEEER2EFHEEEBEMGETARANMS
I8 K

J Challenged management’s key assumptions in the
assessment including the interest rate spread and gross
profit margin for the coming five years in the forecasts,
the terminal growth rates, by making reference
to the historical performance and future business
plans of each group of CGUs and benchmarking the
assumptions used with our market analysis; and

. %%%%%%HEUEEEFEﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁfﬁiﬁ&ﬂﬂ(%
a8 A RARITH IS DT R SR A B 1R
REBETEAMATERE  BERE EJJ?RPKEELEE’J
MEZREME - RIEERE R

o Evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed by
management around the interest rate spread and gross
profit margin for the coming five years, terminal growth
rates and discount rates to ascertain the extent and
likelihood of such changes have been appropriately
considered; and
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Key Audit Matter
HRETEER

Impairment assessments of goodwill (Continued)

B2 B 18 AT 1 (A8

We focused on this area due to the size of goodwill
balance and the impairment assessment involved significant
judgement and estimates made by management.
HREEERZRE XTSRS E - BREF G
BN E R B 6 E K H B R A e

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FITHESNMEERRETFSE

o Checked the mathematical accuracy of management'’s
value-in-use calculations.
s RUEEENEREEAENHEERNY-

Based on the procedures performed, we found the

judgements and estimates made by management in relation

to the impairment assessment were supportable by available
evidence.

ERTMTHORF - 173 E B E SR E b2 H 5

RfAFHEFBREXS -
NREEFAHHMENASR - KA E
%iﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’@ﬁ@%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ

ERARTERE P H) X BENRE -

ATHEEMBRENEELNRELME

other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZFT—-—hF+-_A=+—HILFE

Revenue under sale and leaseback
arrangements and entrusted loan
arrangements

Consultancy service income and property
leasing income

Total revenue

Cost of sale and leaseback arrangements and
consultancy services

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains, net

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Change in fair value of investment properties

Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Reversal of impairment provision, net

Operating profit

Finance costs
Share of profit/(loss) of associates

Reversal of impairment provision on interest
in an associate

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) is attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
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2019
—E-hF
HK$'000
BT T

71,601

6,101

77,702

(20,058)
57,644
21,191

1,094
(402)

(65,232)
2,400

204
1,887

18,786

(5,987)

2,614

15,413
(14,830)

583

(7,921)
8,504

583

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
BT

93,490

3,133

96,623

(42,427)
54,196
15,620

2,824
(418)

(58,798)
3,147

(647)
1,242
17,172

(5,823)

(122,547)

75,640

(35,558)
(14,531)

(50,089)

(58,882)
8,793

(50,089)



Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Items that have been/may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Changes in fair value of debt instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of
debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss:

Currency translation differences

Share of currency translation difference of
an associate for using equity method

Change in fair value of equity
instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Share of property revaluation reserve of
an associate for using equity method

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic and diluted (HK cents)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be kit
read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes. B ©

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RETEHBHER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHZE_FT—-—AF+_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-)N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 BT T BT T
FEEBEAN(FE) 583 (50,089)
Hitz2m(ER) Wh#F
B/ FREEF P HFE
Bz ZHEA :
FEEMEEMEREEA
REEREZEBHIA
ZAREEE 1,735 (126)
HEFBEMEE Y=
BARNBREREEZED
THREREZERE (1,022) -
BT EEF SR Em 2
EHA -
HEMmE =T (18,497) (75,573)
R A EDh—ME
B R EERE
=% (1,370) (16,328)
FBEMEER IR
ANAREREZIRHE
TEZAREZS (2,917) -
R A= ED I
—MBE A R YE
ey - 18,673
FEHMEZEER (22,071) (73,354)
FEZHERBEE (21,488) (123,443)
LTALTESAZ2E
(B1R) 4%
ZIN/NCIEE RSN (25,472) (114,570)
FE 1= I == 3,984 (8,873)
(21,488) (123,443)
BREE
BT E OB AL) 14 (0.20) (2.00)
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At 31 December 2019 R-Z—h&FE+_-_A=+—H

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Interest in associates
Receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements
Equity instrument at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Prepayments
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements

Entrusted loan payment receivable

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Term deposits with initial term over
three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current asset classified as held
for sale

Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Retained earnings
Other reserves

Capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
25

24
32

20
23

24

26
27

28

33

2019

—E-hEF

HK$'000
BWT T

25,369
40,827
24,700
68,033
88,361

864,582

31,676
2,575
3,019

10,088

1,159,230

426,614

6,024

94,382
607,782

1,134,802

1,134,802
2,294,032
39,846

460,780
854,523

1,355,149
388,349

1,743,498

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000
B9 F T

17,639

66,705
50,848
1,591
543,101
11,558
69,870
2,371
18,006

781,689

505,042
8,349

6,772

806,150
1,326,313
110,212
1,436,525
2,218,214
40,083

467,698
831,907

1,339,688
286,402

1,626,090



LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Secured bank borrowings
Security deposits received
Lease liabilities
Contract liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Contract liabilities
Current tax liabilities
Secured bank borrowings
Security deposits received
Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to 250 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

Xu Liang

4

=
R BB
Director

EF

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying Notes.

FaBBERR K

At 31 December 2019 W-_Z—h&+_-_A=+—H
2019 2018

—E-hF —E)N\F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% BT T 7T T
31 168,539 255,682
20 8,427 14,205
16 1,917 -
= 771

178,883 270,658

29 25,222 20,566
= 3,221

26,301 25,336

31 297,018 238,859
20 20,899 33,484
16 2,211 =
371,651 321,466

550,534 592,124

2,294,032 2,218,214
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Balance at 1 January 2018

Comprehensive loss
(Loss)/profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss
Currency translation difference
Share of currency translation difference of
an associate by using equity method
Share of property revaluation reserve of an
associate by using equity method
Change in fair value of debt instruments
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners
Issuance of ordinary shares upon rights issue
(Note 33)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36)
Lapse of share options

Subtotal

Balance at 31 December 2018

BE-FT-AF+-ASt+-ALFE

Property
Share Share revaluation
capital  premium reserve
NEERE
BA BRHEE e
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BETT B¥Tn A¥%Trn
E-\5-A-R&H 26722 604,068 7392
2EER
FE(ER)/ER = = =
Hit2EHE
ERBNEER = = =
BRERERESE—H
BENRERAEES = = =
BRERESAAE—H
BENANEERER = - 18673
BREMZARERANERE
ZERIEZDREED
EEEMZANE/(58)
- - 18673
FEA2ERE/(BR)
- - 18673
REBAGIHEBASR)
ETHRS
AEERETLAR
(K3E33) 13361 166,160 -
U B — I B 2 30 (M 35 36) = = =
BREAX = = =
N 13361 166,160 -
ZE2-N\E1-A=t-REH 40,083 770228 26,065

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYNGESZ-IN 1]

Investment  Contributed
revaluation surplus  Translation
reserve reserve  reserve
REER BAEH
% e BERB
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT A¥Tr BETn
(Note (a))
UER)
- 115,576 (6,287)
= - (57907
= - (16,329
(126) = =
(126) - (74,235
(126) - (74,235
(126) 115576 (80,522)

Share
options
reserve
BRE

%
HK$'000
BETT

10,254

(9,568)

(9,568)

686

Retained
eamings

RERH
HK$'000
BETTL

517,012

(58,882)

(58,882)

9,568

9,568

467,698

Sub-total
it

HK$'000
BETT

1,274,731

(58,882)

(57,907)

(16,328)

18,673

(126)

(55,688)

(114,570)

179,521

179,521

1,339,688

Non-
controlling
interests Total
HER
5
HK$'000
BETT

B
HK$'000
BETTL

295,146 1,569,883

8,793

(17,666)

(17,666)  (73,354)

(8,873) (123,443)

- 179,52
129 129

129 179,650

286,402 1,626,090



Balance at 1 January 2019

Comprehensive income
(Loss)/profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss
Currency translation difference
Share of currency translation difference of
an associate by using equity method
Change in fair value on equity instruments
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Changes in fair value of debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of debt
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

Transfer to retained earings on deemed
disposal of equity instrument at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (Note 21)

Reclassification adjustment to retained
earnings on disposal of an associate
(Note 28)

Transactions with owners in their

capacity as owners

Non-controlling interests on step
acquisition of a subsidiary

Cancellation of ordinary shares (Note 33)

Dissolution of a subsidiary

Deemed capital contribution from the
intermediate holding company (Note 28)

Subtotal

Balance at 31 December 2019

“E-NE-A-HER

2ENE
EE(BE) /&7
Et2EER
EHBEER
BRFAERENE—H
BENTERAEES
BREMEZENAR
MERERETIR
Z““1”W
ERABEENER
Rﬁ@mi EBIA

ﬁ}@ﬁm ARER
MEREZERTA
BEEERER

EEABZEER

FEARA(BR)/ W&

BELERBEMREK
REAAEREZRE
IEKERZRERA

(1)

HE-HHENANER
AERREREEA
(W3E28)

BRAAGLAREASD)
EHRS
FER

&%1ﬁ

(Fr&E33)
%ﬁ RKNEAR

RiERREE
(Ht28)

REFAE

&t

Z®-AETZA=T-H
&8

Share
capital

B
HK$'000
BRTR

40,083

(237)

(237)

39,846

The above consolidated statement of change in
conjunction with the accompanying Notes.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Attributable to owners of the Company

EAAKEARS
Property Investment Contributed Share
Share revaluation revaluation surplus Translation  options
premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve
NEERR REER HAEH RRE
RHEE it it i BERE it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETn EMTr EBETn EMTR B%Tr
(Note (a))
(W3t ()
710,228 26,065 (126) 115576  (80,522) 686
- - - - (14320 -
- - - - (1,027) -
- - e - - -
- - s - - -
- - - - -
- - (2209 - (15341) -
- - (2.204) - (15347) =
= -9 = = =
- (18673) - - 17600 -
(3.410) = = = = =
(3,410) = = = = =
766,818 7,392 587 115,576 (78,199) 686
equity should be read in | it 45 & #2

'm o

=8

"HE—

Other
reserve

Retained
earnings

Aol
HKS'000
BRTR

REER
HK$'000
ERTR

467,698

(7,921)

(7.921)

(2.917)

- 1,003

44,580 -

44,580 -

44,580 457,863

3¢

2 B B % 8 BB O Y —

REREEER

E-NF+_A=+—-HLFE

Non-

controlling
Sub-total interests Total

FER
At Bi @t
HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
BETn BETn B%Tr
1,339,688 286,402 1,626,090
(7,921) 8,504 583
(14,320) (8177)  (18,497)
(1,027) (343) (1,370
(2.917) - M)
1,735 = 1,735
(1,022) - (1022
(17,551)  (4,520) (22,071)
(25,472) 3,984 (21,488)
98,395 98,395
(3.647) - (3,647)
= (432) (432)
44,580 - 44580
40,933 97,963 138,896
1355149 388,349 1,743,498
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZRFR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ_F—-—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Notes:

(@

(b)

The contributed surplus reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1991 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange, and the transfer and utilisation as mentioned in Note (b) below.

A special resolution was passed by shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 6 June 2008 and completed thereafter
that an amount of approximately HK$425,259,000 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company as at 31 December 2007 be reduced,
with the credit arising there being transferred to the contributed surplus reserve
of the Company. Upon the said transfer becoming effective, an amount of
approximately HK$311,818,000 standing to the credit of the contributed surplus
reserve of the Company has been applied to eliminate the accumulated losses
of the Company as at 31 December 2007. The Company has complied with
the requirements of section 46(2) of The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended). Details of which were set out in the circular of the Company dated 9
May 2008.

o EE

BABBRBERRE- NN F2EEEMA -
ARRIFMKBHEB AR Z RHEEEEAR
EMETZAARBROEEMEZ ZERTX
B 5 (o) P it 2 S 5 R Bh A -

AZEZE NFARNANARITZARRKREH
CARTREBB -IBFRRZERL
ERARABEAD  RZZET+LE+_-A
T+ —BAARRIBROEERZERSBEHOB
#£425,259,000 7T # B R« FTE &£ 2 R E
BERARRIZBABGHS P Ll EEs
Mg ARRBABBHEBEZERSBEND
#311,818,0007CE ALK AR B R =TT+
FH+ZA=T—HZR:EE - NARIDET
BRE-NN—FRARLE(KIEE]) FBa6Q &2
BE - BRFBHIRERRABBRAEZZTTN
FRANBZBEH -



Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from redemption of term deposits
with initial term over three months

Proceeds on disposal of an investment

property

Dividends received from an associate
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of equity
instruments at fair value through profit

or loss

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for

sale

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment

Net cash inflow from the acquisition
of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired

Payments for acquisition of an associate
Payments for term deposits with initial term

over three months

Payments for debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Proceeds on disposal of debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive

income

Payments for equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive

income

Payments for property, plant and

equipment
Payments for intangible asset

Net cash generated from investing

activities

For the year ended 31 December 2019

REETHRERE
reEFR)/ e8RS
B HE

ERNFEH

REFEB (M) G
REF#E

REZHESTRE
f& [ 9] 45 HA PR iR 38 = {E A
Y TE H3 17 SR PR 1S 5RR
HE-HBREVEZME
IR
El—RBERARZERER
TR B R & IR 1777 5K
ERL G\
HEZBBEGREARE
BREZHEETRZMHAE
IR
HERIEHEEEZFAF
IR
HEME BEEREZ
TS 58
WE—ENBARZRE
A EER (B0 U BB
MIRE)

Yo g — ] B 2 R R Z 1 R
e HIR BB =@ A /Y
EHRER MR
BREMEERSERIN
EREZEHTAZ

(NE
HEBEEMEE PR SIZ
AREREZEHTA
TS 58
FBEEMEERERAN
EREZHEEIAZ
3%
WME  BENRZE AR

BVEE MR

REZHFEREFE

2019

—F-NF

Notes HK$'000
M 5 BET T

37 (222,456)
(25,563)
(6,443)

(254,462)

787,265

19,968

154,792

36 84,598
(85,526)

(882,053)

40,448

(954)
(208)

118,330

BHE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HILFE

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
BT T

702,760
(47,675)
(5,655)

649,430

1,889,239

52,351
49,533
18,685
12,461

864

79

(1,877,876)

(70,116)

(11,765)

(2,648)

60,807



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # &=

Cash flow used in financing activities

Repayment of bank borrowings

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of lease liabilities

Rights issue transaction costs

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares
upon rights issue

Payments for share buy back

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying Notes.
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2019

—F-NF

Notes HK$'000
M 5 BET T

(102,602)
70,000
(2,346)
33 -

33 -
(3,647)

(38,595)

(174,727)

806,150
(23,641)

i eRERERER

2018
—N\F
HK$'000
BETIT

(490,590)
140,000

(4,860)

184,381

(171,069)

539,168

288,221

(21,239)

806,150
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Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its controlling shareholder,
which is defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange as a person which is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power at general
meetings of an issuer, is Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Shougang Holding”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, and the ultimate holding company of Shougang
Holding is Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a company established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its significant subsidiaries are provision of sale and
leaseback arrangements services, property leasing and provision of
building management services and assets management.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”) as the
primary economic environment in which the Company’s subsidiaries
operate is the Mainland China (for the purpose of this report,
“Mainland China” refers to the mainland of the PRC and does not
include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and investment properties
which are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The Group has applied the following standards,
amendments and interpretations for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing 1 January

T8 IR A8 B 5 S 2 Al A B AR
BMBHRER  ARAETEK
SEtfAE  EEENAGERAA
RRIREKE AR (G AREH])
B BRZ BT EL A E - K
AR S B % A B
Z BB RE R RAE KRG
BEEEAREZEE -

REBER-_ZT—NF—A
— BB ZEFEREHEE
IRERAAT 2RI - {&5] K

2019: X
HKFRS 16 Leases
BREMBRELELB165 HE
HK (IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments
FEEBERMEREZREEESR) FEHREBEZIHEENR

-2 B E235%
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation
EEMBRELENFESR 2B BAEFAHENRAMERSE
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
BE G ERFE195 ZEFT TEIME - IR SR
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
BB G ERE285 2 1EF] REBERFREELENRPER
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 cycle
BEEMBRELER 2EFT EAVBERELEN _ZE-—AFE T+ FREMNFRENE

The Group had to change its accounting policies as
a result of adopting HKFRS 16. For details, please
refer to Note 2.2. Most of the other amendments and
interpretations listed above did not have any material
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current
period.

RN RAE LY RERE
Al£165; - ARBAZFH
SR -BAHFAR B
SBIM 2.2 - E XA
REHEMETRREY
BEHRBERNSRYE
TREAFEREHIE
EXFELAHYH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amendments to HKFRS 3

AV BREEAEIR 2B EBHTEXR
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts
AN BREERE 7R R AR
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

BB EFIRR BANTH
BB ERF8N 2 BT

Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 Reporting

- \FUBREHER

Definition of a Business

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial

RIETHBRERSESR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

RE RIS M

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RT5IHEs H & R m
S EEE K

1 January 2020
—E-FEF—H—H
1 January 2021
—E-—%—-A—-H
1 January 2020
—E-FEF—-H—H

1 January 2020

—Z-T%-A—A
To be determined

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BB RELERF05 R REZEEBENASASEAAZHANE FEXE
ER G ERFE28RE 2B ELERRA

Certain new accounting standards, amendments
and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for reporting period beginning on 1 January
2019 and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group is still assessing the impacts of adopting
these new standards in future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases on the consolidated financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the reporting period ended 31 December
2018, as permitted under the specific transition provisions
in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in
the opening consolidated statement of financial position on
1 January 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in
Note 2.26.
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—BENFENEaFBARRNRT A
FER - ¥ & st BUR MY aE2.263%

E‘g o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as “operating leases” under the principles of HKAS
17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The
weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied
to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 4.32%.

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

o accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases, and

J relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to
performing an impairment review — three were
no onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into
before the transition date the Group relied on its
assessment made applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation
4 Determining whether an Arrangements contains a
Lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating lease commitments disclosed

RE RIS M

HK$'000
BT T

RZE—NF+_A=+—H

as at 31 December 2018

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application
Add: adjustments as a result of a different
treatment of extension option reasonably
certain to be exercised

Lease liabilities recognised as at
1 January 2019

Of which are:
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

BENKEHERE 391

RERERBHRAAE AN

SRR R 388

m:AHSEEESTITEE

BEHREEEATRN
SETEIEMETHRAE 5,858

R-ZB-AF-B—HEIN

The associated right-of-use assets were measured at
the amounts equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by
the amounts of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the leases recognised in financial position
as at 31 December 2018. There were no onerous lease
contracts that would have required an adjustment to
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

HEEE 6,246

RETE

mREHEAaE 2,118

nBEHEAE 4,128
6,246
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BREMRE

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of REAMEERNEDHE

underlying asset are as below: FAREEMNERABEMAT
1 January 2019
—2-hF
—H—H
HK$'000
BT

Non-current assets FERBEE

Office premises FIE/N 6,246
Land use right L Hb (A 13,028
19,274
The Group did not need to make any adjustments HNEANEB SRS E
to the accounting for the assets held as lessor under BIEE16%%  AEBEFZHE
operating leases as result of the adoption of HKFRS16. EHEE TEREME AR
ENEENGTRIBIEL

AR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity where the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of financial position respectively.

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.11.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified or permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;
o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangements; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

. consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity

interest in the acquired entity

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the Group's incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained
from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Managing
Director of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$. The
functional currency of the Company is RMB.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate
to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within finance
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis within
administrative expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equity instruments classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions), and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the case
of leasehold improvements and certain leased plant and
equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of term of the
lease of the land or 50 years

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of terms of the
lease or 5 years

Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture, fitting and 3 to 10 years
equipments

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment properties, principally the residential property
units, are held for long-term rental yields and are not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are
carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are presented
in profit or loss as part of consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.4.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, which is not larger than an
operating segment.

The acquired software platform is stated at cost
less accumulated amortization and impairment loss.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost over their estimated lives of
5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Goodwill that has an indefinite useful life is not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale
is considered highly probable. They are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, financial
assets and investment properties that are carried at fair value
and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A
gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair
value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or
loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the
non-current asset is recognised at the date of derecognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while
they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses
attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group'’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains, net
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OClI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains, net. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains, net and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains, net in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to consolidated statement of comprehensive income
following the derecognition of the investment.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-
back plan, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the owners of the
Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or
reissued.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the
property will be recovered entirely through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Short-term employee benefits are recognition at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employee (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leaves) after deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group operates a defined contribution plans for
its employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions to publicly
or privately administrated pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating
to employee services in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
PRC government, the subsidiaries in Mainland China
participate in local municipal government retirement
benefits schemes (the “Schemes”), whereby the
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees
to the Schemes to fund their retirement benefits. The
local municipal governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of those employees of
the subsidiaries in the PRC. Contributions under the
Schemes are charged to the consolidation statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price which is the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled to in
exchange for transferring promised services or goods to the
customer. The Group allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation based on the relative standalone
selling prices. Revenue for each performance obligation is
then recognised when the Group satisfies the performance
obligation by transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

The Group enters into sale and leaseback arrangements
with individual customers, in which, the Group acts
as buyer-lessor and the customers acts as seller-
lessee. As the transfer of the asset does not qualify as
a sale in accordance with HKFRS 15, the transaction
is in substance a collateral financing and the Group
recognises a receivable from sale and leaseback
arrangements, and related interest revenue is
recognised over the lease period using the effective
interest rate method.

Property leasing income from investment properties is
recognised on a straight line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.

Consultancy service income is generated from advisory
services to the customers in relation to the financing
activities. The revenue is recognised either on a straight
line basis or at the point of performance obligation
have been satisfied base on the contract terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVPL
and FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
or loss when the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits,
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of an investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised
in OCl if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.

Basic losses per share is calculated by dividing:

o the losses attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted losses per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

o the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee.
The new policy is described below and the impact of the
change is in Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant portion
of the risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred
to the Group as lessee were classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses
recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received. Lease
payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of
the initial measurement of lease liability, any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less and lease
incentive received and initial direct cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The respective leased assets are included in the
investment properties. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the
change in fair value of FVPL.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost (other
than sale and leaseback arrangements) and financial assets
at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

The Group's financial instruments include equity instruments
at FVOCI, debt instruments at FVOCI, equity instruments at
FVPL, receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
and entrusted loan payment receivable, other receivables and
deposits, term deposits with initial term over three months,
cash and cash equivalents, secured bank borrowings, other
payables, security deposits received and other deposits
received. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (i.e. foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The normal operations and investments of
the Group are mainly in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, with revenue and expenditure
denominated in HK$ and RMB which are
primarily transacted using functional currencies
of the respective group entities. The Group
is exposed to the US$ denominated cash and
cash equivalents and the debt instrument at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The
transaction or balances denominated in US$ are
generally held by the Group companies whose
functional currency are in HK$.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), HK$ are pegged against with
US$ under the Linked Exchange Rate System,
and therefore, the Group does not have any
significant foreign exchange risk in respect of
transactions or balances denominated in US$.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of market interest
rate on variable-rate receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, cash in banks and
secured bank borrowings as disclosed. It is the
Group's policy to keep majority of its receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and
bank borrowings at floating rates of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

RE RIS M

AEEAREERK
BXR2UNEFERS
Bah AXEEH
EREERBNYES
BETRINRER
FAXAEBE R AR
FHE - UETTAHEMD
RekReFEHEAB
KB BEM 2 S
BAREREZER
TREAREE®HER
@ KRERARNE
TTRBMNRZHE
BRABABERNBERY
BEERH T AR M
5o

ARAREE(EE]
R - B E X
BT aEEXTH
o Ft e AEEY
BEEMNUXTEZ
RPHAERRTT BT
MEARINERR - B
it - I TR
DT e

MR ENERE
M2 PRIE T 2 IR
B RITREREHE
PIRITREFOZ B =K
BT 5 M RO E) - R
SEHRRZTER
RRK - AEBMIK
RRRFRBOER
Bl 2 HF R T2 B
R K ARTT 18 B0
BMENRERER

SAENEER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements and bank
borrowings.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates had been
50 basis points (2018: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2019 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$211,000 (2018: pre-tax
loss would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$19,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed bonds and
equity securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments of entities operating in Mainland
China which are quoted in stock exchanges in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. The Group
currently does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to other price risk.
Management closely monitors the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should
that needs arise.

At 31 December 2019, if the prices of the
respective equity instruments at fair value
through profit or loss had been 10% (2018:
10%) higher/lower, pre-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would increase/
decrease by HK$258,000 (2018: pre-tax loss
would decrease/increase by HK$237,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group's exposure to other price risk for debt
instruments at FVOClI is not included in the above
analysis as the management considers that such
exposure is insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Credit risk arises from the cash at banks, debt
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income, term deposits with initial term over three
months as well as credit exposure to receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group
would assess the credit quality of each potential
customer and define limits for each customer.
The Group also demands certain customers to
place security deposits and/or pledge assets with
the Group at the time the sale and leaseback
arrangements is entered into. The Group would
also review the repayment history of customers
payments for each customers with reference to
the repayment schedule from the date of sale
and leaseback and entrusted loan was initially
granted up to the reporting date to determine
the recoverability of receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements and entrusted loan
payment receivable. Furthermore, the Group
would assess and review the fair value of the
pledged assets continuously to ensure the value
of the relevant collateral could well cover the
borrowings granted to the customers and any
outstanding receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements.

In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group applies expected credit loss (“ECL")
model for impairment assessment. The Group
considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis. Certain receivable with significant credit
risk is conscious and have been credit impaired
as at year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the asset as at the year
ended date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information, especially the following indicators
are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
o external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse

changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the counter party’s
ability to meet its obligation

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the same counter

party
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

significant changes in the value of the
collateral supporting the obligation or in
the quality of third-part guarantees or
credit enhancements

significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the counter
party, including changes in the payment
status of borrower in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the
counter party.

ECL model for the receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, as summarised below:

The receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements that is not credit-impaired
on initial recognition is classified in “Stage
1" and has its credit risk continuously
monitored by the Group. The expected
credit loss is measured on a 12-month
basis.

If a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to “Stage 2" but is
not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.
The expected credit loss is measured on
lifetime basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is then
moved to “Stage 3". The expected credit
loss is measured on lifetime basis.

° In Stages 1 and 2, interest income is
calculated on the gross carrying amount
(without deducting the loss allowance).
If a financial asset subsequently becomes
credit-impaired (Stage 3), the Group is
required to calculate the interest income
by applying the effective interest method
in subsequent reporting periods to the
amortised cost of the financial asset
(the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) rather than the gross carrying
amount.

The impairment of the receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements was provided based
on the “three-stages” model by referring to the
changes in credit quality since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by
the Group in addressing the requirements of the
standard are discussed below:

The Group considers the receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements to have
experienced a significant increase in credit
risk when backstop criteria have been met.
A backstop is applied and the receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements
considered to have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk if the
borrower is past due on its contractual
payments.

The Group defines a financial instrument
as in default, when the borrower is more
than 90 days past due on its contractual
payments or the counterparty is in the
process of liquidation or insolvency. This
has been applied to all receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements held by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month
or lifetime basis depending on whether
a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred since initial recognition
or whether an asset is considered to
be credit-impaired. The ECL are the
discounted product of the Probability
of Default (“PD"), Exposure at Default
("EAD") and Loss Given Default (“LGD").

The calculation of ECL incorporates
forward-looking information. The forward-
looking factor included the market
conditions and economic growth. The
Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables
impacting credit risk and ECL for the
receivable portfolio. Judgement has been
applied in this process of determining the
key economic variables and their associated
impact in the loss rate.

RE RIS M

BTEER

B ¥ 14 T 2 M
RES KRN
REERTW
REEBRLEE
HE - TEHfE
B & 18 1120
Rk & B HE %
Ee BHE
EEEBAR
sk R E(E
ORI/ DI
B4R B R
(M 8 R k&
B REWNIE
KE([EAEX
K| ZHWER
BRIR &R

HEBESREE
5188 K AT IE 1t
&M o Bl iE M
HAEeEmHMN
MR o
AEEETTRE
29 A 3 & Rl
TETRWFA
HeanEER
a RFEHBEE
%%m%ﬂm
E%ﬁ%@ ffffff
ERHIBLAX
KRR 2R -
FER T FEf -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

The credit risk on term deposits with initial terms
over three months and bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

The Group only invests in debt securities with
low credit risk. The Group's debt instruments
at FVOCI mainly comprise listed bonds that are
graded in the high credit rating and therefore are
considered to be low credit risk investments.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in Mainland
China, which accounted for 100% (2018: 99%)
of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements and entrusted loan payment
receivable as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
related parties accounted for 75% (2018: 61%)
of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements as at 31 December 2019 and
2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2019 as 27% (2018: 33%)
and 99% (2018: 93%) of the total receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements was
due from the Group'’s largest sale and leaseback
customer and the five largest sale and leaseback
customers. The Group’s five largest sale and
leaseback customers are spread across diverse
industries such as manufacturing industries and
property development. Over 99% (2018: 99%)
of balance of the sale and leaseback customers
have good repayment history with no record
of late payment. For those sale and leaseback
customers with late payment, the management
of the Group has delegated a team to monitor
the level of exposure to ensure that follow up
actions and/or corrective actions and/or legal
actions are taken promptly to lower the risk
exposure or to recover the overdue balances.
Furthermore, the Group would negotiate with
certain customers with late payment by means of
debt restructuring, to recover the overdue debts
by instalments.

For some receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements the Group may obtain security in
the form of guarantees, security deposits, deeds
of undertaking, pledged of land and building as
well as secured over the leased asset which can
be called upon if the counterparty is in default
under the terms of the agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The Group has three types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

. receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements;

. debt investments carried at FVOCI, and

o other receivable and deposit

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group regularly monitors the internal credit
rating based on available information at each
reporting date for its receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements and entrusted
loan payment receivables. The following table
provides information about the exposure to
credit risk and ECL for receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements and entrusted loan
payment receivables as at 31 December 2019
and 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group writes off a receivable under sale
and leaseback arrangements when there
is information indicating that the sale and
leaseback borrower is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
e.g. when the sale and leaseback borrower has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs
earlier.

As at 31 December 2019

Internal credit  12-month or

rating lifetime ECL Stage
2EAZZH

ABEETR HHGEER Sl

A3 to Aaa 12-month ECL Stage 1

A3ZE Aaa REAERBEEERE F—&5

B3 to Baal 12-month ECL Stage 1

B3% Baal REARHEEER F-&5

Credit impaired Stage 3

EERE E=&5

Average
loss rate

FHEBRE

0.07%

2.50%
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Gross carrying Impairment
amount loss allowance
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FEHAE REBEBE
—E-n%F ZEF-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
970,397 (690)
319,830 (8,006)
1,290,227 (8,696)
50,557 (40,892)
1,340,784 (49,588)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—H

Gross carrying Impairment
Internal credit 12-month or Average amount  loss allowance
rating lifetime ECL Stage loss rate 2018 2018
1218 A3 2 8 RHAE REBREEE
NEEENER BHEEEER & 5l THEBEX —E-N\EF —E-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

A3 to Aaa 12-month ECL Stage 1 0.08% 669,107 (493)
A3ZE Aaa NEABHEEBE F—4&5
B3 to Baal 12-month ECL Stage 1 2.52% 344,559 (8,683)
B3Z Baal NEABHEEEBE &5
Caa3 to Caal Lifetime ECL Stage 2 4.44% 33,830 (1,502)
Caa3% Caal 2HEHEEESR FE_HA
1,047,496 (10,678)
Credit impaired Stage 3
EEHE F=&5 81,797 (70,472)
1,129,293 (81,150)
During the year ended 31 December 2019, there HE-_Z—hF+=
is no movement between Stage 1, Stage 2 and ﬂ —+—HLFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All of the Group’s debt investments at FVOCI
are considered to have low credit risk, and the
loss allowance recognised during the period
was therefore limited to 12-month expected
losses. Management consider “low credit risk”
for listed bonds to be an investment grade credit
rating with at least one major rating agency.
Other instruments are considered to be low
credit risk where they have a low risk of default
and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

Internal credit rating

R AR 15 B 57 AR

B3 to Baal
B3 % Baal

Internal credit rating

M AR B 7T AR

B3 to Baal
B3 % Baal

12-month or
lifetime ECL
REAHEH
HHEERSE

12-month ECL
REABEHREEEIE

12-month or
lifetime ECL
1218 A=k = HA
EHEEEE

12-month ECL
12EAEHEEEE

Average
loss rate

FHBRE

0.14%

Average
loss rate

FHBRE

0.16%
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2019
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Gross carrying
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2019
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2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for debt

instruments at FVOCI:

Balance at 1 January
Reversal/(provision) for the
year

Balance at 31 December

Reversal of impairment
provision for receivables
under sale and leaseback
arrangements

Reversal/(provision) for
impairment losses in debt
instruments at FVOCI

Reversal of impairment
provision, net

R—A—BZ&%
FERED(BHE)

RT-—A=t—Bz#&&%

EREBELHEERTZ
P& W R TR R (B B A 1 [

FBEMEEESERAR
BB 2 BT ARME
BEER S (BE)

RR 1B 3% 4 ¢ [l % R

TRINTEHERER
Hi2EREE AR

EREZEHTAN
518 B A ¥ ER

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T 7T T
(120) -
76 (120)
(49) (120)

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T T T
1,811 1,362

76 (120)

1,887 1,242



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents and credit facilities deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The following table discloses the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest dates on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived
from weighted average interest rate at the end of
reporting period.

Weighted
average
interest

rate
i
FHFI%
%

Non-derivative finance liabilities FfT£ &R EE
Other payables Hth B3R =
Security deposits REES 5.00
Lease liabilities HERE 4.25
Secured bank borrowings BEBRTER 5.21

As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF
+-A=+-A

On demand
or less than
3 months
RERER
FRE=M@A
HK$'000
BETT

8,245
15,281
586
183,793

207,905

3 months
to 1 year
=R
E-f
HK$'000
BETR

207
5,618
1,760

127,198

134,783

RE RIS M

EEERBETRERE - &
SEEREMEFEEER
RABEZREMNREEFER
BREERENKE  UES
AEBEBREES I
MERSRERBFE -
EREERBITERZD
R & R 8 57 B R R
7 e

TREBASERITLES
MEBEZHRTEHNIIHA -
It 5% TO AR 3B N R B X AJ
EREETHEBLREA
P AUBRBRSRERH -
ERmME - TwR1TTES
AREEBITEEEN - AR
RIMBRBERIGRZRIT
fEFE AR RREEE -
H 1A e e E 2 28
HRIAZEEERY - X
BREMNERAERERE -
i K SO E A B A - B
AR RERENER
B2 IR F R RGHH -

Total
undiscounted  Carrying
1-5 years cash flows  amount
-5 XERRE
E1F RELE KHE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR
- 8,452 8,452
8,848 29,747 29,326
1,955 4,301 4128
181,711 492,702 465,557
192,514 535,202 507,463
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Weighted
average
interest

rate
i
FHF| =
%

Non-derivative finance liabilities ~ T4 SR ERE
Other payables Hith (I3 E -
Security deposits REEZES 5.00
Secured bank borrowings BHEERTER 499

As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+-A=+-H

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 3 month”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, the aggregate principal
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HK$150,950,000 and HK$153,632,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the Directors believe that it is probable that the banks
will not exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that these
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

On demand
or less than
3 months
REREN
TR=MA
HK$'000
BT

5,249
11,325
158,523

175,097

Total
3 months undiscounted  Carrying
to 1year 1-5years cash flows ~ amount
=@A —FF XERARS
E—F k3 mEBRE  REE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETR BETT BETR
= m 5,360 5,360
22,159 14,915 48,399 47,689
96,923 281,199 536,645 494,541
119,082 296,225 590,404 547,590

MERREKEZBERZ
RITHEZE LMBEHE S
Mt Al Z KB T -
Z@AAIzEREENRN - B
—E-NFRZZFE-N\EF
+=-—A=+—8 %ZZ4R
TEFzZAeIREHEE
7 #150,950,0007T & 6 i
153,632,0007C ° & K& AR &
B BiknE - EFMEE
RIT A ETHEEERAE
ERZMIEE - EFAE -
ZERTERBEBREER
AT E R T ERAHE

oo

e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table details the Group’s aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows for bank
borrowings (with a repayment on demand clause)
based on scheduled repayments. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from weighted average interest rate
at the end of reporting period.

Weighted

average

interest  Less than
rate 3 months

miE
TRE FR=EA
% HK$'000
BETT
Secured bank borrowings with ~ BERKNERZ
repayment on demand clause BEARTER
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-NF
+ZA=1+-H 4.85 144,246
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+ZA=+-H 4.74 72,968

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders, to support the Group's
stability and growth, and to strengthen the Group’s financial
management capability. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

3 months
to 1year
=fiA
B-F
HK$'000
BETT

2,19

71572

RE RIS M

TRAIAEEMAER
MEMEE(REERERK
P Z|ITERARE BA B
REMEARER o WMERF
A - RIRBRIR & RAIR
EHAE R 2 A R

5 o

Total
Over contractual  Carrying
1-5 years Syears  cash flows amount
- ELEK
nFE  RENE REAR  REE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
B¥Tr BT A%Trn  BEBTx

8,978 - 155,643 150,950

12,239 - 162,779 153,632

AEBMEEHEHERANERAS
BAREREENRFTERSE
HAEZE FARSRRFRHEK
B35 - NERFAEEZRBE RE
R UMBAKEZYHEERE
N BRFRABERRE K
SEFASHABIRN TRIROKS
BROBEARTERR  BITHK
R EEENBIRIER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The Directors review the capital structure regularly and
manage its capital structure to ensure an optimal capital
structure and shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities. The Directors
monitor capital mainly using net debt to total equity ratio and
current ratio. These ratios as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
were as follows:

Net debt (Note i) FE R EED

Total equity (Note ii) #a vk w2 (PR 3EN)

Net debt to total equity ratio (%) B RAE B AR R L R (%)
Current assets mENE E

Current liabilities MEAE

Current ratio (%) Vi) tt R (%)

The Directors considered that the Group maintained healthy
capital as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 as the Group has
excess of current assets over current liabilities.

Notes:

(i) Net debt equals secured bank borrowings less restricted bank
deposits, term deposits with initial term over three months and
cash and cash equivalents.

(ii) Total equity equals to all capital and reserves of the Group
including non controlling interests.

ERRGRAEEBRESH L
TEHEERERE  HAHELRH
XRFERARRRERS  THR
NERNEBREBRHEEARALRE
NEREBRIEB ZERNEER
RRER - -EFEFTEERFER
B B S R R R Bt R
B MNRZBE-NLFRZZE-N
F+ZA=+—H ZFHEm
S 8

2019 2018
—Z2-hE —EB-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
N/AF & A N/AT i F
1,743,498 1,626,090
N/AF B A N/AZR i 3
1,134,802 1,436,525
371,651 321,466
305 447

EERA/ BRAKEZRDE
EBARBEE ~EER_F
—NEFER-ZF-)N\Ft-A=1—
HriR@gan -

Bt 3 :

(i) FEFREREERRITEOR
ZRBIRITER - VIR BB
ZEANERERARRE KRR

% EER -

(i) HEREESRAEEMERAR
[ SRR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values of
the financial instruments that are recognised and
measured at fair value in the consolidated financia
statements. To provide an indication about
the reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Group has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under
the accounting standards. An explanation of each
level follows underneath the table.

The Group’s financial assets that are measured at
fair values at 31 December 2019:

Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at FVPL
REZERMEE
FREMEEK SR
BEREZEBL

Debt instruments at FVOCI

BRBRERRANE

DI
B

Level 1
E—R A
HK$’000
BETR

2,575

31,676

34,251

Level 2
EZR A
HK$’000
BETT

RE RIS M

AEHENEERE
MBHREPHAE
BRALFTENERT
)R o ERATER
H i R fh At o RELEA
AREERERHA
BRI KK
EEKESERTASD
BREFEYTHE
B =B R R o F R A
RN T RAR °

RZE—NE+ZH
—t+—HBAXAKENUR
REFEZE®mE
=

Level 3 Total
E=R A 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT B¥ETR

= 2,575
= 31,676
- 34,251
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The Group’s financial assets that are measured at
fair values at 31 December 2018:

Level 1
F—H A
HK$'000
BETT
Financial assets CHEE
Financial assets at FVPL BRBRERANERE

ZEeMEE 2,371

Debt instruments at FVOCI BREMEERZRANERE
ZEEIA 69,870

Equity instruments at FVOCI BREMEERZRANERE
ZIETA -
72,241

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and
3 during the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into
and out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period.

RZE—-NF+H
—t+—HBAXKENURA
REFEZE®mE
=

Level 2 Level 3 Total
/A E=RA BEr
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETT BETrx
- - 2,371

- - 69,870

- 11,558 11,558

= 11,558 83,799
HE-T-NF+=
A=+—HLFESE

— @& B BEZHF

KR E=H Bz EH
mER(CT—)\F:
) o

RE B BUR 2R
RBEMRAIAED
MzBELENEAR
L Rur



Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RIS M

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as
publicly traded debt, and equity
securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use
of observable market data and rely
as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in
level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity instruments.

SR

FERA:

FE=RA:

ER ARG
REEBHRK
FEFEENE
BIANARE
RHEHRND
HRETIR - K
SEBBNER
EEMANMS
RERBRER
fB-%ETAY
AE—H -

WIERERTS
BEEMEMTA
MDA ERBRE
BERMETE %
SHERMR
EFBAERD
GE RS
DIKBEERN
EfbET e a8
TARARERE
2HERE AL
BOBRUBREY
& AIZIAS
AEZRA o

M—BRLRE
AREABEY
FREABREM
SEEREL - A
FZIEFIAE=
BRI o FE LR
AIAMEKE
A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

In relation with debt instruments at FVOCI
and financial assets at FVPL, the fair values are
determined by using quoted market prices. In
relation with equity instrument at FVOCI, the
fair value was determined by income approach.
The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as
the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

B BEMEE S
BAREREZER
TARBBBEZERR
ARERBZESHE
EME  ARERAE
MEREETE - BB
BEMEEKREREA
REREZRETA
mE AREFRBK
NEETE - AEEF
A8 L PR 1 5 R B AR A
RBEL T - &5
EEF BT MR E
EH - RIBEERE
FHERI N E HIHER -
mEzAE AR Z &
RIREEHRERY
B ABABETRE
MR ER REER -

AEERLEREE
BEREHRZAR
BF & TRITAE
NI EEZ TSR
BEARELER
FIT 18 R 2 (R (B £ T e
BWABEB)ZER
AR RSB EE
NAERBERAGE
—E2F=FARE
NRAEFEBARE
ABEREESR) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RIS M

Financial assets

Fair value as at

EREE MMfE
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
R=B-n% RZE-N\§F
t=A=t+-H t-A=t+-B
Financial assets at FVPL Listed equity securities: Listed equity securities:
FRERRRANERE - in Hong Kong: ~in Hong Kong:
LEREE HK$2,575,000 HKS2,371,000
EHRARS THREES:
-REE: -REE:
742,575,000 7 #2,371,0007
Debt instruments at FVOCI Listed bonds: Listed bonds:
BFREMZERERAR -in Hong Kong: ~in Hong Kong:
BEREZEBIR HK$31,676,000 HK$69,870,000
EhES: THES:
-REE: -REE:
7 %31,676,0007 7 #60,870,0007C
Equity instrument at FVOCI = Unlisted equity investment:
BFREMZERERAR ~in the PRC:
EREZREIA HK$11,558,000
FEMRARE:
-RE:

7 #11,558,0007T

Fair value

hierarchy  Valuation technique and key inputs

DAERE BERARIESALE

Level 1

F-R5

Quoted bid prices in an active market

EEMEMBZEAE

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market

R EETHABIEAE

Level 3 Income approach. The discounted cash

E=R3 flow method was used to capture
future economic benefits to be

derived from the ownership of these
investments

BAE - BRAEREEDARER
BAEREMERELNAREE
M

Key unobservable inputs: risk-adjusted
discount rate 17.5%

TEELERAARER  RRARE
BB %175%

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

BERERAHER
DMEZEE

N/A

TER

N/A

TER

The higher the expected

yield, the higher the fair
value

BRMHREES
REES

The higher the expected
cash flows, the higher the
fair value

REReRENE
MMESR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements is based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The impairment
loss recognised or reversed is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit loss of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group applies a three-stage impairment model to
calculate the expected credit losses and the impairment
model that involved significant judgement and assumption
from the management. In determining the credit risk stage
of each borrower, the Group takes into consideration
the credit profiles, historical repayment patterns, publicly
available information of these borrowers, reports from
international credit rating agencies and forward looking
factors such as market conditions and economic growth.
The Group measures expected credit losses based on
individual assessment of each borrower, after considering
their credit profile with reference to credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. Judgement is required
to determine whether a borrower experienced significant
increase in credit risk.

REGAVBHRERERB A
RETE ZFHARIERERSE
R-BEEEBENFTHEAAKRESFIK
RAF L I -

et R AR AN - EDERE
SEBMEMBRAE  BRARHEAE
BEKRTBEEZERRERABERT R
REBAEZHRKEHZES -

EROEZ PR T Z BUEGIAER
BEHEEERBREDERER
BHORREERBEBENERRNE
He REBEERXBOEERE
IEEERTANERRREER
BRREEREERER KRR
ERBAENEZEAE -

RNEE KA EREER
HHBEHEEEER BRERR
FREBEBEHNEXHERRE
Fe EHEEBENTEEAY
RERNEBRHERBE - £/
E & BRARE E R
REBZEEZEERANEES
B EBELEREX ZZEERA
MARATBER  BEREEFR
R B3R & DA R T B AROR R
EESHEERE - AEELE
EEERANGEEEE  ERNE
BERARERFE - 2RBEERE
B G#ENETBIEERRG2
TEHEEER - 252 HE e
EERANEERREEHEEL
hn e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. For the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018, the recoverable amount of cash-
generating units (“CGUs") was determined based on value-
in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions.
The calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact of
possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in Note 18.

Significant judgements are required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

RE RIS M

AEBESFUARERTERME
RE RBEE_T-NAFK=
E-N\E+A=+—HILFE "
ReELBEU(ReELENM])
FR Y E € B TR IEH B E AR
RNEREEFEEE - stEE
REREBEHENDTF MK
BENRERERA -

HMEER TERIBTIERR
AREE BN EF BN E 18K

==
B

BEMSHABRBEFEHEK
- EHERBEETERES
RHRAENRREETI AT
E - MEZEEENRERGAE
REFRNIBCRENTHE  %F
EZRRTEFLBRRTHREN
ISR R BELEMSHER -

AMETESZERBEGAD
B HAERERER AR
P SR FI AT PR R IS S AT B
3 0 B 5 32 48 o B 08 5 1885 T
R - HENERDHERTHE
TR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Information reported to the Managing Director, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of services provided. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group.

The Group is currently organised into three operating divisions: sale
and leaseback arrangements services, property leasing services and
asset management and consultancy services.

Sale and leaseback arrangement is engaging in collateral financing
activities. Property leasing service is engaging in rental of properties.
Assets management and consultancy service is engaging in
provision of referral and corporate financial advisory services.

Segment results represent the profit or loss of each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, gain on disposal
of debt instruments at FVOCI, reversal/(provision) for impairment
losses in debt instruments at FVOCI, changes in fair value of financial
assets at FVPL, finance costs, and share of profit/(loss) of associates.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

MEEREE(EEBEEREE(E
BEEREE]) 2 BUHRTERS
BN S BERRTG AN BERERH
W0 IR MR - R R A B A 2 5
W X BEEREE B A EE S
EE PG

AEERBOR/=EARLELE &M
HMZhRE DEHERBAREE
BIE N AR o

EROBLZHLEEERRETS - ¥
XHERBUENDZAE -BEEEE
R ARBHEREEN D EE R
B AR -

DEHEEESESMIENHER - B
PAUBDEPRITERA HEEB
Hit 2 EW RSB AREREZEBL
AzWas BREMEEMKERAR
BERBzEHTIEREBERED /(&
) EEBRERBRANEREZER®
BEZAREZY BEKARENR
g N 2w R (BE) - IR A
BAOERKRBAFEMA T BLERK
EE2RZFAENE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RIS M

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating and reportable segment. Segment revenue reported
above represents revenue generated from external customers. There

were no inter-segment sales in the current and prior years.

During the year ended BEE-ZE—-N¥
31 December 2019 tZA=+t—-HLEE

Revenue under sale and leaseback &% BA L HE T2
arrangements Wz

Entrusted loan payment interest ~ ZFEE R FIEF BEHW A
income

Property leasing income WMERERA
Consultancy service income EARBEA
~ recognised point in time -RE-HHIER
- recognised over time — [ 5 ] B 2R
Segment revenue o B

Segment results DEEE

Sale and
leaseback
arrangements
services
E&EH
RHRH
HK$'000
BETT

71,568

33

71,601

48,331

Tﬁlli%zlig BimgEREAER

2HR 7 A

DB EREEDT - LRERZD

ﬁBH&ﬁT&ﬁXEM\

BEFP RAFEER

BEFELESLZENEE ©

Property
leasing
services
MEHE
PR 7%
HK$'000
BETT

573

2,065

Assets
management
and consultancy
services
BEEEER

& R
HK$'000
BT

4,812
716

5,528

(2,375)

Total
#st

HK$°000
BETR

71,568

33
573

4,812
716

77,702

48,021
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RE M BREMRE
Sale and Assets
leaseback Property management
arrangements leasing  and consultancy
services services services Total
EREE WEMES BEERR
ZHE R AR 75 H ARG HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR AETT ABET
During the year ended BE-Z-N\F
31 December 2018 tZA=t+-HLEE
Revenue under sale and EROELHEET
leaseback arrangements W %5 93,288 = - 93,288
Entrusted loan payment interest % 55 & 2 7018 £ &
income WA 202 = = 202
Property leasing income PIEHRERA = 3,133 - 3,133
Segment revenue o ;U= 93,490 3,133 = 96,623

Segment results DEEE 47,874 5,869 466 54,209



Segment result

Unallocated
Other income (Note (i)
Central administration costs

Changes in fair value of financial assets at

FVPL

Gain on disposal of debt instruments at

FVOCI

Reversal/(provision) for impairment losses in

debt instruments at FVOCI

Finance costs
Share of profit/(loss) of associates

Reversal of impairment provision on interest

in an associate

Profit/(loss) before tax

Note:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T EEE

* 7 B

R ONC I E20)

R 1T B A

EEREREAANEBEREEZ
TRMEEZANEE

hEBBEMEEE S
BRARERBZBEHIA
&

BRAMEERSZRANE
REZEBIAZRE
BERm ()

[ELE=§ N

B E AR ZmA,

(B 18)

RN—EBE QAR 22
RN {51 ¢ 8 2 (ol

BBaa A (EE)

(i) Unallocated other income represents interest income from debt
instruments at FVOCI and bank deposits held by investment holding

companies.

BEMBEREME

2019 2018
—E-hE —T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
48,021 54,209
5,885 5,127
(36,422) (41,403)
204 (641)
1,022 -

76 (120)
(5.987) (5,823)
2,614 (122,547)

- 75,640

15,413 (35,558)

B 3 :

(i) AOEEMBRAEEBEMEZE KRS
BARBREZEABITAZFERA
RBEZERRBMFRITER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

operating and reportable segment:

Segment assets

Sale and leaseback arrangements services

Property leasing services

Assets management and consultancy
services

Total segment assets

Interest in associates

Equity instrument at FVOCI

Debt instruments at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVPL

Term deposits with initial term over three
months

Non-current asset classified as held for sale

Other unallocated assets

Consolidated assets

THEE

Bk EHE TP RS
) EE B IR
BEEERFEHRS

RIEZRETAR
BEEMEmMREZEANE
BEEFIE
ERBHEERAAERE Y
CREE
Mic R BE =AM
EHE R
DEABIELHEZ
EREBEE
Hiv kDB EE

RAREE

AT RRELED B
AEEEENAR

2019
—F-NF
HK$000
BET T

1,553,347
36,313

314,221

1,903,881
88,361

31,676
2,575

94,382

173,157

2,294,032

e raN
7]

Ho

P54
)

og

[t

P&z

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
BT T

1,630,631

73,200

79,374

1,783,205
1,591

11,558

69,870

2,371

110,212
239,407

2,218,214



Segment liabilities

Sale and leaseback arrangements services

Property leasing services

Assets management and consultancy
services

Total segment liabilities
Unallocated secured bank borrowings
Other unallocated liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEEE
E&EH & PR
MERBEE RS
BEEERFEARS

7 B A A AR
AN EDEMRITER
Hi KD EEBE

e
i
>
it

af

v

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than interest in associates, equity instrument at FVOCI,
debt instruments at FVOCI, financial assets at FVPL, term
deposits with initial term over three months, non-current
asset classified as held for sale and other unallocated
assets (including primarily unallocated property, plant and
equipment and cash and cash equivalents and prepayments).

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated secured bank borrowings not for sale and
leaseback arrangements services and other unallocated

liabilities.

GERBRENE

2019 2018
—®-n#E —2-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETF BT T
389,207 430,618
60 167

552 279
389,819 431,064
150,950 153,632
9,765 7,428
550,534 592,124

RERNBRAERNRDBZEANEE

i

PMBEEBDRTEZHRDE -
TEERBERNR 2R B8
Htt 2 MW SR AR ERE Z K
BITA FHEM2EESEA
RERBZEBIE #BRER
RRAANEREZERMEE - 1)
REARR BB = AR E BFR
DEBFIEHEZHERDEER
Hi RN EEEFEREARD
EME - BMERIXBEARRE R
ReFEEARBMKIE) -

FMBREBOIRETEEZHDE -
TERTBEREHEL RS2
AOREDHEMRRITERLEMAK
DEAE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Additions to non-current assets
(Note)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation charge on intangible
asset

Interest income from bank deposits,
term deposits with initial term
over three months and debt
instruments at FVOCI

Impairment loss reversed on
receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, net

Impairment loss reversed on debt
instruments at FVOCI

FRBEEZEM
(&)
nE BERRENE

BVAERHEER

RITER - NRHRER
ZEAMTEHERR
EREMEENER
MAEREZEBIA
2 BN

EROBELHRT
FEWSRIR 2R
BRADHE

EREMR2ARERAN
EREZEBIAZ
HEBREED

Sale and
leaseback
arrangements
services
E#&EA
ZHRH
HK$'000
BETT

890

8,363

1,811

=

Property
leasing
services
NERE

R %
HK$'000
BT

257

362

EY

Assets
management
and consultancy
services
EEEE
KB A RS
HK$'000
BT

3,522
533

1,259

5,775

Unallocated

9B
HK$'000
BETR

128

5,830

76

—E-NF+ZA=T—BILEERE

Total

At
HK$'000
BETR

3,857

1,913

1,259

19,968

1,811

76



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RIS M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Sale and
leaseback
arrangements
services
ExEH
ZH R
HK$'000
BETT
Additions to non-current assets (Note) ~ FERENE E 2 510
Cik=3) 149
Depreciation of property, plant and NE - BWERRENE
equipment 642
Increase in fair value of investment BEMEz DR EEN
properties -
Interest income from bank deposits, RITER - DieHRER
term deposits with initial term over ZEANEHERR
three months and debt instrumentsat ~ E B E M 2 B K
Fvocl AREREZEBIA
ZHEBA 9,395
Impairment loss reversed on receivables & & [B1 78 % HE 78 T fE Ui
under sale and leaseback BZREBERD
arrangements 1,362
Impairment loss recognised on debt iﬁ Hit2AKmZ
instruments at FVOCI MREREZER
TARRZREBSE =
Note: Non-current assets exclude goodwill, interest in associates, financial

assets and deferred tax assets and right-of-use assets.

HE—Z

Property
leasing
services
NERE
R %
HK$'000
BETT

23

3147

Bt 3

—N\EF+ZA=+—HIEFE
Assets
management
and consultancy

services  Unallocated Total
BEERE

Rt R RO B

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

BETT HBETT BETrx

24 2,475 2,648

4 529 1,198

- - 3,147

843 2,223 12,461

= = 1,362

= 120 120

IRBEETERERE  RELERAZ

i SRMEERELEHAEENR

ERREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of the
relevant subsidiary’s operations and information about its non-
current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

AEBEBUNMEEIENR - PE
i REE °

7K £ B 40 B Y /8 ) 7 4 0 B4
SRANRES 2 W2 - RIREE
BRBHAEERDEE AR
0T :

Revenue from Non-current assets
external customers (Note)

REMRAEFZW FREBEE (M)
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-AF - )N\F ZB-hEFE =ZZT—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T BT BET T
Mainland China B A 3, 77,470 94,965 60,122 44,830
Hong Kong BE 232 1,658 41,125 39,514
77,702 96,623 101,247 84,344

Note: Non-current assets exclude goodwill, interest in associates, financial
assets and deferred tax assets and right-of-use assets.

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group under reportable segment of sale and leaseback
arrangements services for the corresponding years is as follows:

Customer A EPA
Customer B XFB
Customer C ®PC
Customer D ZFD
Customer E ZFE

Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

M ERBDEETRERE RELEAFZ
i ERMEEREEHBAEENR
ERREE -

UTARERFERBERLOME L
RBB2/D > HYAKE B =

BE10% A E2EF:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
21,951 22,863
16,910 (Note) (P 5)
11,946 19,331
8,941 19,978
8,605 19,978

M HEAESEHAKELKESFB
10% A E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERBEREME
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest income FEWA
- bank deposits - RITIF K 4,298 1,529
- term deposits with initial term over - ¥ HRBBE=EAN
three months TE B 17 3K 12,878 10,231
— debt instruments at FVOCI -ERAEMEEW SR
NAEBERBZEBEIA 2,792 701
19,968 12,461
Government grant (Note) BT 48 Bl (B RE) 852 1,266
Others HAth 371 1,893
21,191 15,620
Note: During the year, government grant included subsidies and awards e FAR - BAFUASEa+TEEEM
of HK$852,000 (2018: HK$1,266,000) received from the relevant HR 15 2 7 8h & 5% ) 8 #5852,0007T (=
authorities in the PRC which is an incentive payment to the Group T — \4F : &%1,266,0007T) * AlAA
whereby no future related cost is required or expected to be made. SEXNzHBe  BABEGTE

FhUE B A AR AR RAB B AR AS ©

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZT-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BT T
Gain on disposal of debt instruments at FVOCI & % i H b 2 W &5 1%
AREEREEZEHBIA

Z W= 1,022 =

Gain on disposal of corporate membership HEAFgHE W= = 2,750
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plantand HEWE - MERRH 2

equipment (B18), = (5) 74

Others Hitp 77 =

1,094 2,824



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHREME
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cost of sale and leaseback arrangements EEEHELHEK AR

(Note 11) (Bt &E11) 19,305 42,427
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR B

— Audit services - Ei RS 1,200 1,420

— Non-audit services e 810 5,807
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) & B & F 5 2 (B 759) 36,814 27,788
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - i = & &% # T &

(Note 15) (Bt 5£15) 1,913 1,198
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16) 1 F# & E 37 & (M 5£16) 2,834 =
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) B A E (M EE18) 1,259 =
Legal and professional fees FEEREXEER 4,310 7,308
Consultancy and management fees charged by & £l & [ U BX 89 5% 30 &2

Shougang Group (Note 38) B2 E (Mf5138) 2,880 1,280
Short term lease expenses HHHEEER 1,297 3,763
Insurance Rbg 650 388
Annual listing fees FELETMER 634 536
Building and management fees EFRERE 536 708
Printing and stationery EN R K 3¢ B 516 989
Exchange loss, net PE 5 /&5 18 % =8 393 36
Office expenses WAERE 2,097 1,593
Others Hith 8,244 6,402

Total (including Cost of sale and leaseback HE(BREEROETHER
arrangements and consultancy services and BARBKA - HE
selling and administrative expenses) X RITEAZ) 85,692 101,643



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wages, salaries and other benefits T4 -FaehEMEFR
Directors’ fee EEMe

Retirement benefit scheme contributions ROKE T 5T &I 3R
Total employee benefit expenses EERNMAXEE

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included three directors (2018: two directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in the disclosures above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2018: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

Wages, salaries and other benefits TE  HalEMEF
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKTE R FT &8I 5k

RE RIS M

2019 2018
—E-hF —E)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
34,641 26,110
1,543 1,146
630 532
36,814 27,788

FR - AEBRIEREHEERE=
HEE(CE-N\F WMEBES) AH
BEMSFBR LEXHKE - RAFE
N BREHFEETHHTMBEAL(C
E-N\F ZR)UFARREETLIERR
TRAB  B2MEHBNT:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —FT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000

BWT T AETT

2,454 3,835

84 54

2,538 3,889



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BREMRE
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the MeNFUTHEBRNBELIFARAE
Directors and whose remuneration fell within the following bands is ErBRRFEEAHNT:
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % /% 11,000,0007C - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 #1,000,0017 &
75 #1,500,0007T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 75 #1,500,001 T 2
78 #2,000,0007T - 1
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the FA - AEBVESINEANMNE TE
Directors or the five highest paid employees as an inducement to EXhEEaHEESERIMAIRIN
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. AREE G BB ERBERAEE -
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Impairment loss reversed/(recognised): BEFBERERD S (ER)
— Receivables under sale and leaseback - EREHEZ IR TER
arrangements and entrusted loan FIEREREFTER
payment receivable, net RIAFE 1,811 1,362
- Debt instruments at FVOCI - BEREMEERREA
NERBECZEBIA 76 (120)

1,887 1,242



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBEREWE
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T T
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERZF B 25,064 48,250
Less; amounts included in costs of sale and BEFFASRBROEMELHEK
leaseback arrangements and ARG R AR 2 RIE
consultancy services (19,305) (42,427)
5,759 5,823
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENEB 228 -
5,987 5,823
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BRI
Current tax; BN HARH 18 -
- Hong Kong -BE 5 4
- PRC - 7,107 8,739
7.112 8,743
Over-provision in prior year: BIEEEBRERE:
- Hong Kong -&BE - (122)
- PRC - = 101
- (21)
Deferred income tax (Note 32) IE T BT 1S B (B 7£32) 7,718 5,809

Income tax expense s 14,830 14,531



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Notes:

(b)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on
28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profit of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for 2019 (2018: 25%).

The taxation for the year is reconciled to profit/(loss) per the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Tax calculated at PRC statutory income tax rate
of 25%
Tax effect of amount which are not deductible/ £

(taxable) in calculating taxable income: 0 H/(Tfi%ﬁ) ok
CORTRS%
Share of results of an associate H— g AR EE
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes T —J M
Income not subject to taxation BAEZBRX

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax
was recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdiction

B T 15 %

SHEZBIA

&5 18

B/ 488
Ea

Under provision in prior years BEFEBRETRE
Others HAh
Expense for the year FERX

A F (&5 18)
BHPBDETE SRR E25%

BRI AR

AERRLEMSHAOTIE

R E A BDAHE B RS R
ZWHBRE R R

Bt 3

(b)

—E-N\F=A=+—8" BHEMXE
BACE—EFHBEERN(ETHR)
BEOERYEHIEZR]) - B AFIBR
MBH - ZIEPERR=ZT—\E=A
ZTNBESKEERE  TRXBHE
TR - BEFESHMES  AERER
B2 B 2,000,000 7T )% H #51£28.25%
B R R BB - IR B 8 #2,000,000T
B F 1216 5% B R H - T/ &
FIEHMATERNEEZTENLEMNE
HEIR165% 2 B — R ERBUH B -

»
@
=

REFEACEMERETEEMESH
EDRCEMBHEEEREL R
T—NhE  FENBLRZHEAE25%
(ZZE—\F :25%) °

FEREEREFAZERER 280

(BB EERMNT
2019 2018
—E-AEF —N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
15,413 (35,558)
3,853 (8,890)
(654) 30,637
791 1,808
(1,503) (20,163)
9,641 11,031
2,702 (24)
- (21)
- 153
14,830 14,531



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

No dividend has been paid, declared by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Loss attributable to owners of the

Company (HK$'000) (¥ FIT)
Weighted average number of ordinary T3 AR h0 18 IR B
shares (thousand) (F1&)
Basic loss per share EREREIE

(BB

(expressed in HK cent per share)

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For
each of the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share option since
their exercise will reduce loss per share.

ARBIFEANRIGEER

RE RIS M

RBE-F-AFT-A=t+—ALA
B ARRI KIS IREMAKE
(ZE—NF E\E)-

ARRRBEARIEERERN#
SEHEBERUTHIEE

2019 2018

=Y B - N\E
(7,921) (58,882)
4,001,410 2,936,882
(0.20) (2.00)

BB EEENEBEARETAE
SNEEAR DN 8 AR
BT BEBBELRRMATE -
BE_Z—\FE_FT—NF+=
A=+—HIEEFE 88K
BEEBUYERIARRZHEA
TEEREETE  FRAEH
TEHERERERRD -



At 1 January 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2018

Opening net book amount
Exchange difference
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Addition

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2019

Opening net book amount

Adjustment for change in accounting policy

(note 2.2)

Restated opening net book amount

Exchange difference

Transfer from investment properties (Note)

Acquisition of a subsidiary
Addition

Depreciation charge
Disposal

Closing net book amount

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019, a Group’s commercial
property unit and a residential properties unit originally classified as
investment property were transferred to land and building due to the
change of use. For details of valuation process prior to the change, please

refer to Note 17.

R-ZZE-NF-A—H
R
2:HTE

REFE

BE-2-N\%
+ZA=t+-BLEE
ENREFE
ERZ®
WE—EHEAR
RE
=
TEER

EXGREFE

RZE-NE+-A=+-H

A
2HE

REFE

BE-2-N%
TZAZ+-HLEFE
FENREFE
HeHRREDHEER

(M5E2.2)

RENFAREFE
EHEH
BRENEEA(NT)
WE-REHBAG
AE
REER
&

EREEFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Leasehold
Buildings improvements

BT HENREE

HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
21,773 1,965
(5,088) (1,965)
16,685 -
16,685 -
(930) -

- 544

(489) (21)
15,266 523
20,630 626
(5,364) (103)
15,266 523
15,266 523
(13,028) -
2,238 523
72 -
19,453 -
. 254

(391) (231)
21372 546

Motor
vehicles

nE
HK$'000
BET T

636
(301)

335

335
(14)

1,636
(572)
1,385
2,040
(655)

1,385

Furniture,
fitting and
equipment
RE KE
k&
HK$'000
BETT

5,055
(4,941)

114

4,439
(3,974)

465

465

465
(496)
2,695
700
(692)
()

2,667

Total

@t
HK$'000
ARTT

29,429
(12,295)

27,735
(10,096)

17,639

17,639
(13,028)

4,611
(426)
19,453
2,695
954
(1913)
()

25,369

Hi: BE-P-AST-AST—ALTE -
RS BARENMEN —EREEE
MEBLR—BEENEBLEDRY
BHBAE L RET - AWLEH

MEERFHE  B2HEME7 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2019, all of the Group’s buildings are located on
land in Hong Kong and Mainland China with the remaining lease
terms of 41 and 31 years (2018: Nil and 32 years).

Depreciation expense of HK$1,913,000 (2018: HK$1,198,000) was

charged in administrative expenses.

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Office premises WNE

Land use right 4 A
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current portion ik 2k ¥a)
Non-current portion ERBE D

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the land use right
being part of commercial building property amounted to
HK$23,989,000 was transferred from investment property
(Note 17).

RE RIS M

RZZE—hFE+-—A=+—H A£H
FTEBFHMRESRTEAML - F
BREBHAENFREINF(ZE—N\F:ER
324F) °

FER S B%1,913,0007T (ZE—N\F :
75 #1,198,0007T) B ET AT FISZ A ©

REMBMRRIFEATERAE

Mz <8
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-hE e
+=-B=+-—H —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
4,041 6,246
36,786 13,028
40,827 19,274
2,211 2,118
1,917 4,128
4,128 6,246

HzE_Z-NF+=-_A=+—8”
IHFE BrAmEEFYENL
o (3 B 4 & 78 23,989,000 T B
M EMEE D (ME17) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BREMRE
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows FErEHWERINEUATHRES
the following amounts relating to leases: Bz 2/
2019
—E-NF
HK$°000
BT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEEFREER
Office premises iR/ 2,205
Land use right T fE A 629
2,834
Finance costs (included in finance cost) RMEMRANGIAREKEANA) 228
Expenses relating to short-term leases (included in % HEAMH SR
administrative expenses) (GtAfTHRAX) 1,297
The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 BHE_ZE-—NE+HA=+—H
December 2019 was HK$2,346,000. LFEE - HENBESREARES
75 12,346,0007T °
Rental contract is typically made for a fixed period of 2 years, HEGRBER2FMETHR -
but may have extension option as described in (d) below. B RTREE A LAT (d) # P st 9 3E R
BEo
Lease term is negotiated on an individual basis and contain M B 16 FRR AR B (8 Bl 15 5 1 v
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease R ERBEERESR KRR
agreement does not impose any covenants other than the Mg - HEBREIL T RMEAE
security interest in the leased asset that are held by the lessor. ABEHNHEEEPHERER
Leased asset may not be used as security for borrowing AN R 2258 - HEBETE
purposes. REBEER -
Extension option is included in property lease of the Group. EHEBEAREEASENYEM
It is used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of E-HBERAEEELSTFEAMN
managing the assets used in the Group'’s operations. BEFE ©vilRAXEEHRE

EEREEN -



At fair value

At 1 January

Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss

Disposals

Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Note 15)

Transfer to right-of-use assets (Note 16)

Exchange differences

At 31 December

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEYE BELEE

(MF5E15)
EEFHREEE M E6)
P& =%

R+=—A=+—8H

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for investment properties:

Rental income

Direct operating expenses from properties that E A& W A ¥ 2 B #

generated rental income

HE WA

R PR

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2018: Nil).

GERBRENE

2019 2018

S —2-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
66,705 117,663
2,400 3,147

- (52,351)
(19,453) -
(23,989) -
(963) (1,754)
24,700 66,705

AREVERFAEEE B ERERD
TR

2019 2018
—Z2-hE —F-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T 7T T
573 3,133

(12) (214)

K- AE+=A=+—F  £~%HE
EREMAKBERREZ RBED
DEB(CE—\F 8-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BREMRE
The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair TRIEZGEETEDTRADEINERD
value, by valuation method. REWE -
Significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)
EXEBLZBERAKB(E=Z&A
2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
Recurring fair value measurements REERAETFE
Residential property units located in R BAENTEMESN
Hong Kong 24,700 37,500
Commercial property units located in 7 R Bl 3 B P ) 5
Mainland China 42 - 29,205
24,700 66,705

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year. RERN - F— = ZHHELEEE -



For the year ended 31 December 2018
Opening balance at 1 January 2018

Change in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

Disposals

Exchange differences

Closing balance at 31 December 2018

For the year ended 31 December 2019
Opening balance at 1 January 2019

Change in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
Transfer to property, plant and equipment
Transfer to right-of-use assets
Exchange differences

Closing balance at 31 December 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Residential
property
units located
in Hong Kong
NREB
FRERE=E 7S
By
HK$'000
BT T
BE-=2—N\&§
+ZB=+—HLFE
R—ZE—NF—H—H
B 5 1)) 45 g4 86,940
REiRE AR ERER
ZRAREE
2,911
e (52,351)
&5 =% -
RZE—N\F
+=—A=+—RA2
FRER 37,500
BE-Z—h&
+—B=+—HLEE
R-ZE—-—NnFE—H—H
B G ) 45 B4 37,500
RirE2EKERER
ZAREEE
2,400
EEYX - HWENMKE (15,200)
EEFHABEEE =
&5 =% -
R-ZT—h&F
+—A=+—HZ2
FREH 24,700

FEMBEREME
Commercial
property
units located
in Mainland
China Total
2 7 B A i
S ESEL/ES
B st
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETIT
30,723 117,663
236 3,147
= (52,351)
(1,754) (1,754)
29,205 66,705
29,205 66,705
= 2,400
(4,253) (19,453)
(23,989) (23,989)
(963) (963)

24,700



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2019 and 2018 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on those dates by Greater China Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. Greater China Appraisal Limited is a registered firm of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications
and experience. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the same
location and conditions and where appropriate by capitalisation of
rental income from properties.

Market comparable approach has been adopted for valuing the
Group's residential property units. One of the key inputs used in
valuing the Group’s residential property units was the price per
square feet, which ranged from HK$17,174 to HK$24,460 per
square feet (2018: HK$16,372 to HK$23,921 per square feet). An
increase in the price per square feet used would result in an increase
in fair value measurement of the residential property units, and vice
versa.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a Group’s commercial
property unit and a residential property unit were transferred to
land and building. Market comparable approach has been adopted
for valuing the abovementioned properties. One of the key inputs
used in valuing the Group’s commercial property units and the
Group's residential property units were the price per square foot,
which are HK$5,286 (for the year ended 31 December 2018:
HK$5,079) per square foot and HK$25,041 (for the year ended 31
December 2018: HK$23,064) per square foot, respectively.

AEBREVER-_ZTE—NER=Z
—N\E+-_A=+—BzARELE
AEBTEABRZBIAEREERS
BEMEEFEBRATNZEHE
TZHERfE - 2EFEFRATAE
EENEMEeER R BEREE
B RER - HED2EMRERAMC
ERRBZEUDMERSGEBEZTHER
B WEANMCERSUA (HEA) 5T
REBOEEMESMNIZMSEL S
ERHE o AR ENEEYEEME
FIERNEZGASEBEZ—RFFEAR
B HERNTEFHRBEEKI17174
TLEA24,460L (ZE—N\F : GFH
IR A #16,372 L 28 #£23,9217T) ° £/
MBFAREREABEEREEDE
BUNNARBEAELRH K2R

HE_T-hWhF+_A=+—8LHF
B —HEEmEMEEMNR—EHE
EYEBNVERET LM NET o Ll
MEZRTHHEFETG - FHEEAE
ENEmEDEENRAEBNEIED
EENRMFANEIEHAREZ—
EBTHFRER HEXKSRIEFES
R&#s5, 2860 (BE_E—N\F+=A
=+ —HIEFE B%50797T) KB
25,0t (BE_E—N\F+_/A=+—
BIEFE : B¥23,0647T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

The following table analyses the level 3 investment properties
carried at fair value, by valuation techniques.

Fair value at Valuation
Property 31 December technique(s)
DA
mE R+=A=t-8B  HEHH
2019 2018
“E-AfF ZE)N\F
HK$'000  HK$'000
BBTR BETT
Residential property 24,700 37,500 Market comparable
units located in approach
Hong Kong

URNEBNEIENE 24,700

By

Commercial property =
units located in
Mainland China
RRPREAEEED =
X8

37500 MG B A&

29,205 Market comparable
approach

29,205 ME L& 7%

Unobservable
inputs
BELBE
BABE

Market unit
sales price

misENER
Market unit
sales price

mEEUER

RE RIS M

RER - HERRLEES -

TREGBERMOTRAREAKRZ
F=RHEREYE -

Range of Relationship of
unobservable unobservable inputs
inputs to fair value
BEBEBA BEiBERABEBHE
YEEE DEZEE

2019 2018
“E-hE ZE-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

17174t0 16,372 to The higher the unit
24,460 23,921 selling price, the
higher the fair value
171742 1632% BNEEBHR
24,460 23921 AREHR

= 5,079 The higher the unit
selling price, the
higher the fair value

= 5079 EUEEHS -
AREBR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

At 1 January 2018
Cost

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2018

Opening net book amount

Acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 36)

Exchange difference

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2018
Cost

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2019

Opening net book amount

Acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 36)

Addition

Amortisation charge

Exchange difference

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2019
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

R=-Z2-N\¥-A—H
BN

FREEE

BE-_ZE-N\E+=A
=t+—HLEEE
FRMEFE
U B8 — R BT B A &)

(M 5 36)
M 3 2= 58

FRREFE

R-ZB-NF+ZA=+—H
DN

BREFE

BE-Z-hF+=A
=t+—HLEEE
FHRMEFE
U B — I B /B A &)

(M 5E36)
NE
BiHE R
& 5 =%

FAREMmMFE
R-ZE-NF+=-A=+—H

B AN

255

AR EDF(E

Amortisation expense of HK$1,259,000 (2018: Nil) was charged in

administrative expenses.

Goodwill
(Note a)

BE

(Hf i a)
HK$'000
BETT

52,935

52,935

52,935

921
(3,008)

50,848

50,848

50,848

50,848

6,479

(667)

56,660

56,660

56,660

Supply chain
financing
platform
(Note b)

fit fE i
MmEFA
(Mt 7Eb)
HK$'000
BT

12,689
208
(1,259)
(265)

11,373
12,589
(1,216)

11,373

Total

Aot
HK$'000

BETT

52,935

52,935

52,935

921
(3,008)

50,848

50,848

50,848

50,848
19,168
208
(1,259)
(932)

68,033

69,249
(1,216)

68,033

555 7 B 81,259,0007T (B —/)\F -
)BT AITHEASA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis or when
there are indications the carrying amount may be impaired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group allocates
its goodwill to the relevant CGUs or group of CGUs, and
compares the recoverable amounts of these CGUs or group
of CGUs to their respective carrying amounts. A summary of
goodwill allocation for each group of CGUs of the Group is as
follows:

Sale and
leaseback
arrangements
services
E#®EHE
ZHE IR
South
China
Leasing
mAEHE
HK$'000
BETT
At 1 January 2018 R=ZE-NF-A—H 52,935
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36) Ut & — & Ff /8 2 &) (Pfi 5% 36) =
Exchange difference BN EHE (3,008)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
T=EET=[E 49,927
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B — I Bt B /A B (PR 2E36)

(Note 36) =
Exchange difference EHER (561)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-1E

+=-A=+-A 49,366

RE RIS M

BEEEFINHREEER/NRE
A RE B B R 1R XORE A
A LB EAEME  NEES
HEmE ok E=MRMRSELEN
FRMEELBUAR X HZF
ReELENRRSELENMA
AR EEREELEBNERE
BEETLER - AEE&ARNRS
ELBUMBESOKEBENT

Asset management and
consultancy services

EEEER
EARY
Shouhua
Jingxi Jingxi
Cooperative Supply
Innovation Chain Total
HERA
WEAH REMAERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT

- - 52,935
921 - 921
- - (3,008)
921 - 50,848
- 6,479 6,479
(10) (96) (667)
9N 6,383 56,660



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The recoverable amount is calculated based on the higher of
value-in-use calculation or fair value less costs of disposal.

The recoverable amount of South China Leasing was
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The value-
in-use calculations used cash flow projection based on
financial budgets prepared by management covering a five-
year period. The key parameters used in the value-in-use
calculations are as follows:

Interest rate spread F &=
Discount rate B I8 &
Terminal growth rate 4RI R R

As a result of the impairment review, the recoverable amounts
of South China Leasing is higher than the carrying amount
as at 31 December 2019. As a result, no impairment loss was
charged during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

The recoverable amount calculated based on the value in use
calculation exceeded carrying amount by HK$96 million as
at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$114 million). In the event
that the Group reduces its interest rate spread to 1%, the
headroom will be removed. If either in the case the discount
rate increase to 12% (2018: 30%) or terminal growth rate
decrease to zero, the headroom will be removed.

Al & I AEREETET
A RABEREER R ZESH

&
al =+ °

MIEEZA NS RREER
BEMEMEE &EREEREHR
ENERRERR ZBMWE”E”ZBi
FHREREFRAFE - £ERE
B EMATIESHEMT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E)N\F
2.0% 2.0%

11.0% 6.5%

3.0% 0.0%
ETHERSE  R-T-NF

“A=t—B -EmHHEENT
WEEBERREREE- - Bit - &
E-ET-NFT-A=T—HLF

EXRFTRBEBE(CZE—N\F:
7)o

RZBE-NF+=—A=+—8"
BRETAEBEFESLHITKE
% R8 8 4 BR | (B 75 96,000,000
T (ZZE—N\F : % %114,000,000
L) e MAKEBMNEERESE
1% » BIjF 2= M&"Hﬁu o fiw B3R =&
EIER% (ZF—NF :30%) 8k
BIPRERBEEZE  AFEH
A% i B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The recoverable amount of Jingxi Supply Chain was
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The value-
in-use calculations used cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. The key parameters used in the value-in-use
calculations are as follows:

Gross profit margin E | &
Discount rate Bh I8 K
Terminal growth rate 4RI R R

As a result of the impairment review, the recoverable amounts
of Jingxi Supply Chain is higher than the carrying amount as
at 31 December 2019. As a result, no impairment loss was
charged during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The recoverable amount calculated based on the value in use
calculation exceeded carrying amount by HK$18 million as
at 31 December 2019. In the event that the Group’s business
experiences a general decline that lead to the decrease in
gross profit margin by 10%, the headroom will be reduced
to HK$3 million. A rise in discount rate to 24% would also
remove the headroom. If the terminal growth rate decrease to
zero, the headroom will be reduced to HK$13 million.

The Group acquired the software platform through the
acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36). The Supply chain
financing platform is a software platform to support the
supply chain financing services of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors are not aware of any
events or changes in circumstances which would indicate
that the carrying amount of the intangible assets may not be
recoverable.

*  For identification purpose only

RE RIS M

ROHEE ZAIKRE S EREE
REEEMEE - EREERE
REREEEBHECHBEEE
TEHBRERERAFE - &R
BEFEMAIEZEMT

2019
—E-hF

1.5%
17.5%
3.0%

ETREZESEE R-_ZT—NF
+-A=1+—8 FAHEHEHD
AEEESREEE - "l
BHE-_Z—NF+ZA=1+—H
IEFERFIRAERIE -

R-ZE—AF+=-_A=+—8"
BREEBEEFESEHTKE
< %8 8 [ AR T 8 5 %618,000,000
Lo MASBEREREB TLE
BEFMREK10% @ BIF = 08
Z751#3,000,0007T © {48538 & i
INE24% + BIFE 2= I5 88 15 M BR -
MR IEEERBREEE  AIFE
#% 8 2 78 #13,000,0007T ©

74 52 8 38 — P B 28 7
BT WA T A (HIRE36) - fm s
BETAR—ARETE X4
7 8 ) 5 7 R PR -

NE s = A= =
EETATERMEFXBEREN
FRBEVEENRAEENEE
B E

* [EHE %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
2019. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely
of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. The
country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place
of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same
as the proportion of voting rights held. All of these associates
are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated

financial statements.

Nature of
Name of entity relationship
BEREH BREOLE

PETENAEREERCE(ER  Assocate
A%) (“Shouhe Venture Capital”)
RRIENAIXREERLR ¥
(BERA®)[EMEIX])
REBERES R @Beiing Associate
West Business Factoring Company
Limited*) (Note)
REEFREERAF () YN

oA\ =

=AY

S

jeall]

Place of
business/
country of
Principal activities  incorporation
CESE Y
IEXKRED MK LER

Investment The PRC
management
REER HE

Provision of factoring ~ The PRC
services in PRC

RPERHEFRERE +HE

Note: On 24 July 2019, the Group completed an acquisition of 41.41% equity
interest in R 78 7 % % ¥ A R A 7 (Beijing West Business Factoring
Company Limited*) (“Beijing West Business Factoring”) at a consideration
of approximately RMB75,263,000 (approximately HK$85,526,000) from
IR EHRERZEREDE(ERSE ) (Beijing Services
New Shougang Venture Capital Investment LLP*), a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of 1t = & &l & € 4 BR 2 7 (Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd.)

(“Shougang Fund”).

*  For identification purpose only

*

UNTHEAREBR_ZTE—NF+=A
=t+—HBzEBERR c T EBBERAE

ek 2 3

BAK  BAKREEERFE

AMRECERTAEETRER M -
PTG R 25 L B B P 5 4% 32 4 L ) 48
Rl - FIAZEHEQBGERERE

EMBEREAR -

Effective% of
ownership interest Carrying amount

FEREGZERAA L REE

2019
ZE-NE
%

24.28%

1.41%

B :

2018 2019 2018
“2-\& ZE-hfF ZZ)\%F
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT  EETR

24.28% 1,573 1,591

- 86,788 -

88,361 1,591

R-ZB—-AFELtA-+mWA K&EEH
Bk B AR 5 AR Al 1%
BrEERGE(UREHESER
ARl((EMES ) NIEZERB AR
WERAREREERAR(RAR
EREBNDZMNMN%EHE REBHA
R #75,263,0007T (49 7 # 85,526,000
JT) °

E 13 5l 1 %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cost of investment in associates: REBERARAIZRE
As at 1 January mw—H—H
Addition to interest in associates during the year A B R B & A
T %

As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H
Share of operating profits JE b 48 &
Share of other comprehensive loss FEEEMEEEE
Interest in associates REE AR 2R

Included in the cost of investment in Beijing West Business
Factoring, an associate of the Group, is goodwill of approximately
HK$24,578,000 arising from the acquisition during the year.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS. They have been
amended to reflect adjustments made by the Group when using the
equity method, including modifications for differences in accounting

policy.

GERBRENE

2019 2018

S —2-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
1,591 -
85,526 1,573
87,117 1,573
2,614 18
(1,370) -
88,361 1,591

RATREERE(KEEB B ENR])Z
RERAEFBEFANBELENN
£ 4956 124,578,000 °

ARAREEI2BRZLZRANMHEER
BMEINEHWT - ATHBEERBER
REBAMBERELENERHOBZEQ
APEREMECE - HEEHET
&R AR BRAN R [ £ 2 1 s VR I 1
HEOAE  BEAEATBRRERAERL
HEET °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN BEREMHE
2019
—ZE-hHF
HK$'000
BEET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets IERBEE 7,110
Current assets MENE E 576,543
583,653
Liabilities =i
Current liabilities mENBE (433,424)
Net assets EEFE 150,229
Revenue W = 181,140
Expenses, including income tax S (BIEFTET) (174,828)
6,312
The information above reflects the amounts represented in Pl ERN KRR AEERENY
the financial statements of Beijing West Business Factoring BHRENSB(ALEARNEBRE
(and not the Group's share of those amounts) adjusted for &8 EMAEEEZEE AR
differences in accounting policies between the Group and the WEMBEERETHAE -
associate.
Movements of interest in Beijing West Business Factoring are RRAARERBECESEH N
as follows: T:
2019
—E-hF
HK$'000
BT T
Interest in an associate R—EBEQATZ2ESR
Acquisition of an associate W B — I B & R ) 85,526
Share of results JE(L ¥ 4E 2,614
Exchange differences fE N =% (1,352)

At 31 December e = e =] 86,788



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in Beijing

West Business Factoring is as follows:

RE RIS M

25 MBENBZENRAR
EREB 2R ZREEZHRA
T

2019
—E-hEF
HK$°000
BET T
Summarised financial information MEERSE
Opening net assets as at acquisition of an associate R —FBE R ARRNFNE
EFE 147,183
Post-acquisition profit for the period B U B 18 s 6,312
Exchange differences N =% (3,266)
Closing net assets as at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NEF+A=+—RHZF
REEFE 150,229
Group's share in % SEELRES 41.41%
Interest in the associate Y RN Z*& 62,210
Goodwill kS 24,578
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—RH2Z
BREE 86,788
In addition to the interest in Beijing West Business Factoring BRALHBECARANEREZ
disclosed above, the Group also has interests in an individually HEZ AN ANEB IR — R A

immaterial associate that is accounted for using the equity

method.

Carrying amount of an individually
immaterial associate

Amount of the Group'’s share of profit

—EEMNMEBTEANLZ
Bt NA 2 BREE

AEE B LGNSR

WEAEZERTEBTEL 2
g AR B R 2

2019 2018
—E-hE et BYIE =
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
1,573 1,591

= 18



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

Current assets
Non-current assets

=
if &

& ms
3 Tk
mt

¢
=
=

At 31 December, the Group’s receivables under sale and leaseback

arrangements were repayable as follows:

Within one year

Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 3 years
Between 3 and 4 years

Overdue receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements

Analysed as:

Current receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements
(receivable within 12 months)
Non-current receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements
(receivable after 12 months)

Provision of impairment loss allowance

Fixed-rate receivables under sale and leaseback %
arrangements

Variable-rate receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements

EREMEL R TREK
161 2 5% TR

R+ =18 AR %)
[ 7 % $F 38 T 8
#ﬁ@%ﬁ

(R + =18 A& e d)

BB &5 18 B

& HEZ B R TR

EE /%\ TA IE
‘é@ﬁﬁ%ﬁTEW
B QL]

2019
—E2-1F
HK$'000
BT T

426,614
864,582

1,291,196

2018
T —\F
HK$'000
ABETIT

505,042
543,101

1,048,143

R+-—A=+—B AEEEREHEZ

BETR T 2 MR

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BETT
416,952
388,166
476,415
1,281,533
9,663
1,291,196
2019
—E-hEF

HK$'000
BETT

470,851

869,933

1,340,784
(49,588)

1,291,196

867,820

423,376

1,291,196

ES=RUNNE

2018
—N\F
HK$'000
BT IT
493,717
371,959
85,915
85,227
1,036,818
11,325

1,048,143
2018
—)\F

HK$'000
BT T

509,061

620,232

1,129,293
(81,150)

1,048,143

549,830

498,313

1,048,143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The interest rates represent prevailing People’s Bank of China
Renminbi Lending Rate ("PBC rate”) or Offshore Chinese Renminbi
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“CNH HIBOR") as at 31
December 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Effective interest rates per annum of the above receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements for the year are as follows:

YIRS
F& W E B RIR

FEWF B IR

Effective interest rates
Fixed-rate receivables

Variable-rate receivables

Interest rate of variable-rate receivables is reset when there is a
change of the prevailing PBC rate or CNH HIBOR.

As at 31 December 2019, carrying value of the receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements of HK$308,478,000 (2018:
HK$335,876,000) have been pledged against specific bank
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 31). The pledges will be
released upon the settlement of bank borrowings.

FERER=B—

RE RIS M

NERZZE-N\EF

TZA=t—HARHRARTPEAR

%Eﬁ}\ﬁﬁ%%,;*”ﬂ
MERDXBEFF A

RIARBRITER
TRXRARERE

([&FAB|RTT I—J%}\E%Tﬁ%&)

WAFEE » SR OIHEZ PR TR
RBEZERERERMT

2019
—2-nF
HK$'000
BT

5.0% to 7.5%
502 £75E
5.0% to 7.7%
50EZ£7.7E

& W% B R IR B A

ERMREEERT

HRBHEER -

RZF—

IS =

2018
—E—N\F
HK$'000
BT T

5.0% to 12.0%
5.0E £12.02
5.0% t0 6.9%
5.0E £6.9E

BRRITARBRIT
EEIN:L T

A=+—H &#&

B A8 % HF 18 T IR B R (E B

#308,478,000L (= & — J\ &F:

o

335,876,0007C) B E FIRITIEAK T
AEBARITER ZER (31 © K
HHERIBITEREERER -

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-NF—H—H

Net reversal for the year FEEDFE

Write-off 85

Exchange differences X Z &

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

E-F-A&—A—H

Net reversal for the year FEEEFE
Write-off Hit 8
Exchange differences ME 5, =5

At 31 December 2019

S
N—=

—2-—nF+=A=+-A

HK$'000
BETIT

110,080
(1,362)
(21,313)
(6,255)

81,150
(1,811)
(28,838)
(913)

49,588



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The provision for receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements amounted to HK$49,588,000 (2018:
HK$81,150,000) of which an amount of HK$40,892,000
(2018: HK$70,472,000) is related to credit-impaired
receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements and those
borrowers were either under severe financial difficulties,
placed in liquidation or in legal proceedings. In the opinion of
the Directors, these amounts cannot be recovered due to the
debtors’ default in payment.

Security deposits of HK$29,326,000 (2018: HK$47,689,000)
have been received by the Group to secure the receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and classified into
current liabilities and non-current liabilities based on the final
lease instalment due date stipulated in the sale and leaseback
agreements.

Analysed as: DT
Security deposits received BERRFBEZES -
— due with one year
Security deposits received PR ERS - —F&IH

— due after one year

In addition to security deposits, the receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements are secured over the leased assets
mainly aeroplane engines, machineries and build and transfer
project of a scenic belt as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral
of the receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
in the absence of default by the lessee. Estimates of fair
value of collateral are made during the credit approval
process, determined using valuation techniques commonly
used for the corresponding assets. These estimates of
valuations are made at the inception of sale and leaseback,
and management would review it periodically. The Group
also takes into consideration the financial positions and
the guarantors of the relevant customers and the expected
timing, legal possession status and other uncertainties on
realising the pledged assets in the impairment assessment.

—F N2 H

E% DML HIETEWRIE R
15 /578 #49,588,0007T (= Z — )\
£ ¢ % #£81,150,0007T) © H
140,892,000t (Z & — N\F : &
#70,472,0007T) EL 8% 4 {5 B RVE
MEROEZHEE TEKRES
B mMABRERARERENS
N2 BB B E S IAEF
Mo EBEERE EHEBAMNKE
4 ZEFETREWRE -

AEBEWERRBZSEE
29,326,000 (Z&F — \F : B
47,689,0007T) * tTEAE % B %Z
BEIE T W R IEMER - WRE
BRI A REHES
BB HEAMBEREARE
BEEIERBEE -

2019 2018

= —z2—)\&F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
20,899 33,484
8,427 14,205
29,326 47,689

BRTRER I EREMALEEEA
TRUFKER-_ZF-AFR_-F
—N\FE+-A=+—HUHEESE
E(EBRMRMESIZE - K E
TERMEERRB)ESER -

HABALEEZLD  AEETE
HEXBEMZFEROBE LG
AT KRR ERR - REE
EHBED BRI ER
AAEEREREETANGET
EWETE » xFEEMFINER
CIEFMREEL  YAREREE
HIE B - WO ERFEE - ANEE
NeEZREMEEES 2T HMRN K
BERANREREEREE TR
AR AREAAREMD



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unlisted equity investment MR ERE
On 1 August 2018, Gold Cosmos Development Limited (“Gold
Cosmos”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, injected
RMB10,000,000 to Jingxi Supply Chain as its registered capital,
which then holds 10% equity interest in Jingxi Supply Chain
pursuant to an agreement signed in April 2018. Jingxi Supply
Chain is established in the PRC and engaged in supply chain
finance business. Gold Cosmos also entered into a capital injection
agreement with Shougang Fund and Jingxi Supply Chain in June
2018, pursuant to which Gold Cosmos agreed to contribute
additional capital of RMB200,000,000 to Jingxi Supply Chain and
thereby increased the equity interest Gold Cosmos held in Jingxi
Supply Chain from 10% to 70% (“Capital Injection”), subject to
certain conditions precedent. In July 2019, the Group completed
the Capital Injection in Jingxi Supply Chain. As such, the Group had
classified its equity interest in Jingxi Supply Chain as an investment
in subsidiary and has been disclosed in Note 36.

The Directors have elected to designate this investment as equity
instrument at FVOCI as the Group intends to hold this investment
for long-term purpose and realise its performance potential in the
long run. As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the investment
determined by income approach was RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,558,000).

e MBS M

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
- 11,558
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RBER-ZE—N\FHAETH— O
% (M) 7 PO A pE 88 )F & A R%510,000,000
TIEREFMER - AEFERAMHE
HE10% s o PO FE S pA R B AR S P
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W xE - REit AKBEEHERR
THEENRESBARWBELAT Z
JEWE N 36 E -

EECEERETHRREABREMS
AW IR A AERIEZIRELA - Jhh
RAEBERRPEEZRETERS
RNERERREH R \F+=
A=+—HB KA ZEETHERER
1B B A R ¥10,000,0007T (18 & 8
#11,558,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

2019 2018
o —)\f
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Listed bonds, with fixed interest of 3.88% to &% & IRE E3.88EE
5.30% and maturity dates from October S30EFERIEBBR
2021 to May 2025 I e W
“E-HFHA 31,676 69,870

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the investment in listed
bonds is determined by reference to the quoted market bid prices
available and a gain on changes in fair value on the listed bonds
of HK$1,735,000 has been recognised in other comprehensive
income during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: loss of
HK$126,000).

Details of impairment assessment and risk exposure are set out in
Note 3.1.

Pursuant to the entrusted loan contract entered into between an
independent third party and the Group on 23 August 2018, the
Group agreed to provide the independent third party with entrusted
loan amounting to US$1,039,983 (equivalent to HK$8,175,000) at
a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum, with a maturity date of 22
January 2019. Interest income of HK$202,000 has been recognised
in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2018. The
amount was subsequently settled in January 2019.

RZZE—AF+=-_A=+—H W&
FRENARBNILEABNMBE
AEREBEET YERBE_ZT—AN
F+-A=Z+—RALEFEENHME2EK
TR ETEHFAREEHERKRTE
#1,735,000t (= —N\F : H1E B
126,0007T) °

MERFERRARFZEFBEHNHE
31

BE—EZBIF=—"HRAEER_Z
—NENAZT=ZRITIZEEER
A AEERERNZBILE=HIE
M EFEEF,039,983% 5T (HHER B
8,175,0007T) * =& E M X F7E 7t
g H#EA—T—NF—A=+=H-
A EW A BEE202,000cEREE-T
—N\F+_A=+—BUEFEREZRME
R ZNBEEBER-E—NF— A%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other receivables H b fE W IR

Prepayments TE RIE

Deposits bideiy

Non-current FETR &

Current k2l

Listed equity securities measured FRERERZANBEFEZ
at FVPL FHRAZE S
- Hong Kong -&BB

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined by
reference to the quoted market bid prices available and gain on
changes in fair value on the listed equities of HK$204,000 has been
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: loss of HK$641,000).

Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk is provided in
Note 3.1. For information about the methods and assumptions used
in determining fair value refer to Note 3.3.

RE RIS M

2019 2018
—E-hF —E)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
3,565 2,353
4,531 2,131

947 2,288

9,043 6,772
3,019 -
6,024 6,772
9,043 6,772

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T
2,575 2,371

FARABENAREIIRZMBH
MEEAEBREET  BEREEZ
T-NWF+_A=+—HIEFENIE
ERETRADNAELBERREE
204,000 (ZE—NF:BHEEE
641,0007T) °

7R & [B) Py [E B (B AR [ B B0 AR B B R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

As at 31 March 2019, the weighted average effective interest rate
of the Group’s term deposits with initial terms of over three months
was 3.7% per annum (2018: Nil). The term deposits with initial
terms of over three months denominated in RMB were principal-
guaranteed and deposited with a bank in Mainland China. The
Directors classify the above deposits as financial assets at amortised
cost as the business model for the term deposits with initial term
over three months is to hold to maturity, and the contractual terms
only give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal. The conversion of the RMB-denominated
balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of
the Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Government of the PRC.

Cash at banks and in hand RITREFRS
Analysed by denominated currency: REEEES
HK$ ks

RMB AR

usD ETT

MN-ZBE—-HE=ZA=+—8 K&£E¥
1R EAPR #838 = & A &Y E BATFE 32 INHE T
HEBMNEAEEFIT% (ZT—\F:
B) e LARBEEZVBHREBER=
BEANERERAEREATFTRRERF
BERH—RIBT - ESHELARATRD
BREBBHEHNKARBZEREE -
HAEVBHRBBE=MANTEHEFR
ZEERBAABEZIE BEHK
FETELEZHREREBABRAIMAR
S RASHMEMBERLE - AREFHEL
BERKIIERYEPREANEDLE S
78 18 7 P B IR T R A /9 S BB 22 48 A
NOER o

2019 2018

o —2-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
607,782 806,150
118,795 231,016
446,077 575,134
42,910 -

607,782 806,150



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group's deposits carry interest rate at prevailing bank deposit
rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.45% (2018: 0.01% to 2.51%) per
annum. The conversion of the RMB-denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the Mainland
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Government of the PRC.

On 21 November 2018, SCG Investment (BVI) Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company), as vendor, entered into sale and
purchase agreement with Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Shougang Holding”), as purchaser, in relation to the disposal of
Upper Nice Assets Ltd., which holds 619,168,023 shares of Global
Digital Creations Holdings Limited (“GDC") (a former associate of
the Company), representing approximately 40.78% equity interest
in GDC (the "Disposal with Shougang Holding”), at a consideration
of HK$154,792,006.

Resolutions regarding the Disposal with Shougang Holding were
duly passed by the shareholders of the Company by way of poll at
the special general meeting held on 28 December 2018 and the
equity interest in GDC with carrying amount of HK$110,212,000
has been transferred from interest in an associate to non-current
asset classified as held for sale on 28 December 2018. The sale of
the equity interest in GDC is highly probable as all the conditions
precedent have been met on the date of the aforesaid special
general meeting.

RE RIS M

REEZFREZERITRITIFRF R =X
N FO0EZE245FE(ZF—\F:0.01
EZE251E)FE - AREHEHZHE
BERINEREPBRAMELE S EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

As at 31 December 2018, non-current asset classified as held for
sale is measured at the lower of its then carrying amount and fair
value less costs of disposal.

The disposal of 40.78% equity interest in GDC was completed on
8 January 2019. The difference between the carrying amount of
non-current asset classified as held for sale and the sales proceeds,
which amounted to HK$44,580,000 has been recognised in equity
as a deemed capital contribution from the intermediate holding
company upon completion of the Disposal with Shougang Holding.
The property revaluation reserve amounted to HK$18,673,000 and
translation reserve amounted to HK$17,670,000 derived from share
of associate’s reserves in prior periods was reclassified to retained
earnings upon disposal.

Accrued salaries and bonuses FEET ¥ & RIEA
Accrued legal and professional fees B EREREXER
Other tax payables H M FE 75 18
Interest payables FE 1 F) &

Others E A,

RZE—N\F+_A=+—H oA
FEHERERBEENEERERE
HARERHERAZREEFTE -
HERRHBBIOTSHRE 2 ETEDIRL
—E-AF—ANBREK > DEAEEE
HEZHERBDEENETBER L ERN
15318 2 MM =588 %44,580,000TE
RegHERhHEEETHEBEER
FRERABEIEPEZERBRETIE - &
BAPEEEHBE R AFERELED
) % & R 78 1518,673,0007T K [E K
BB ¥17,670,000 N HEEEER E
TR EEREAF -

2019 2018
—E-hF —E)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
7.347 3,858
2,307 4,235
10,177 7,502

891 1,390

4,500 3,581

25,222 20,566
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The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

— Receivables under sale and leaseback

arrangements

— Entrusted loan payment receivable
— Other receivables and deposits
— Term deposits with initial terms of over

three months
— Cash and cash equivalents

Equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Debt instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost

— Other payables (excluding accrued

salaries and bonuses)
— Secured bank borrowings
— Security deposits received
— Lease liabilities

THMEE
BRBHKARIEZ
TRMEE
-EREBE LR TER
A

- W EFEE KA
-HMEERRIBERES
- IR MR BB = 1A ANE
Hi 17 3K
-HekREeFEEH

BREMEEREZRANE
RIEBZRETAR

BEEMEEMREZEANE
BREEFIE

ERBHEERANERE Y
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TEMAE
BRBHEKARE ZBE
-HENRE(TRREE
FHE e RIEAD)
-DHEARITER
-DREEE
-HER®E

RE RIS M

AEERABATZEZRIA:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
1,291,196 1,048,143
= 8,349

4,512 4,641
94,382 =
607,782 806,150

= 11,558

31,676 69,870
2,575 2,371
2,032,123 1,951,082
17,875 16,390
465,557 494,541
29,326 47,689
4,128 =

516,886 558,620



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

Non-current portion
Secured bank borrowings

Current portion
Secured bank borrowings

AN
BRI RITERK

B &R
2 IR IT AR

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable in accordance with scheduled repayment dates as follows:

Carrying amount repayable:

Within 1 year

Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 3 years
Between 3 and 4 years

EEEREE:

—FR

—EMF
ME=%F
=EOF

2019
—2-nF
HK$°000
BT

168,539

297,018

465,557

R-ZE-hER-T
B R&EEEiRE
fExmT

2019
—E-hEF
HK$'000
BT

146,068
84,269
84,270

314,607

E=f

2018

et BT
HK$'000

BT T

255,682

238,859

494,541

—NE+=-A=1+—
BHEIEE 2

2018
—E-NE
HK$'000
BT T

85,227
85,227
85,227
85,228

340,909



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Carrying amount of bank borrowings that contain a repayable on
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) but repayable:

Within 1 year —F RN

Between 1 and 2 years —EMF
Between 2 and 3 years ME=F
Between 3 and 4 years =EOF
Between 4 and 5 years MERF

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the borrowing of HK$150,950,000
(2018: HK$153,632,000) and HK$314,607,000 (2018:
HK$340,909,000) were denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively.

For the bank borrowings pledged by certain assets are disclosed in
Note 34.

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s secured bank
borrowings are as follows:

Effective interest rate: BRI
Variable-rate secured bank borrowings FEREEMRITES

RE RIS M

B AMBEREE]

ETE GItERB BIE

2019
—F-NF
HK$000
BET T
142,751
2,825

2,899
2,475

150,950

465,557

RZBE-NER=F

2018
—N\F
HK$'000
AETIT

142,674
2,748
2,825
2,904
2,481

153,632

494,541

—N\FF+ZA=1—

B 78 #150,950,0007T (=& — \ 4 :
75 #5153,632,0007T) & 75 #314,607,000
T (=Z—)\F : #¥340,909,0007T) 2
BROBANBER AREE -

RITERANE TEEERRBERHE

34 -

AEECERBTERERNEEE

-
2019

—E-nF

2.63% to 5.70%
2.63E £5.70E

2018
—N\F

2.19% to 5.89%
2.19]2 £5.89&
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The interest rates for the Group’s bank borrowings vary from
different subsidiaries. The interest rates vary from Hong Kong
banks’ prime rate minus 2.75%, Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1% to 2.5% and variable PBC rate plus a
percentage spread of 20% (2018: Hong Kong banks’ prime rate
minus 2.75%, HIBOR plus 1% to 2.5% and variable PBC rate
plus a percentage spread of 20%). Secured bank borrowings of
HK$150,950,000 (2018: HK$153,632,000) are exposed to the
fluctuations of HIBOR and Hong Kong banks’ prime rate while the
remaining HK$314,607,000 (2018: HK$340,909,000) are exposed
to the fluctuation of PBC rate. The interest is repricing every
month for secured bank borrowings of HK$10,950,000 (2018:
HK$13,632,000), and repricing every quarter for secured bank
borrowings of HK$454,607,000 (2018: HK$480,909,000). The
proceeds were used as funding for sale and leaseback and other
financial services business and general working capital for the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no secured
bank borrowings early repaid (2018: HK$14,029,000).

For assets pledged as security for bank borrowing, please refer to
Note 34.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets BEEFIEE E
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE

REBNTE B AR ZBITERFE
BBEFRR o FIEN FLEBRITRESR
FIEF2.75E - BEAERITRERE(E
BIRITRIZERE D MNEZE25E KIZE)
ARBEZRAR EF0B(ZZE—/\F:
BEBRITHERNEF275E - HHR
TREREIMEZ25ERFHARE
BERFIREF20E)  SETFRITER
75 #150,950,0007C (=& — )\ F : B #&
153,632,0007T) BAEA X BB IRITR E K
BEBEBRITZERMNRESH AR -
&~ 2 7 #314,607,0007T (ZZ— )\
£ : 7 1£340,909,0007T) | BE R AR
BERMNEES 2 AR - B EFRT
&5 #10,950,0007C (= F — \F 5
#13,632,0007) 2 M BB HEHEEB K
B R 17 2 58 #454,607,0007T (=
T — )\ 4 : ##480,909,0007T) 7 & &
ABFEHEE HE-TE—NEK=
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HRECREAASEESREE K EM
CRMBRBEBESR—REEES -
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ERAARITEREREENFE &
2B 7E34 -
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ERBEERABEIRE - T RE
FER IR G R S 2 B AV Z DA

2019 2018
—®-NEF —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T BT
20,036 28,174
(9,948) (10,168)

10,088 18,006



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBREME
The following are the major deferred assets/(liabilities) recognised ITAERRZEIZEREE (BE)
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: UREREFERBAFEZES:
Provision
of loss
allowance for
receivables
under sale
and leaseback  Revaluation
arrangements  of property Total
FFRREZEE
THETZ
FE W 5K 1E
BEEE MEEM st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T

Movements -0
At 1 January 2018 R=-ZE—-NE—H—H 35,881 (10,621) 25,260
Charged to consolidated statement of T A 474 2 H Uz &

comprehensive income (5,669) (140) (5,809)
Exchange differences E W Z % (2,038) 593 (1,445)
At 31 December 2018 and R-ZB-NE+=AH

1 January 2019 Et—HBR=ZZE-hF

—HA—H 28,174 (10,168) 18,006

Charged to consolidated statement of 5t A 4R A& 2 MW 25 X

comprehensive income (7,825) 107 (7,718)
Exchange difference &N =% (313) 113 (200)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—N&F

+=BA=+—H 20,036 (9,948) 10,088



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. At the end of reporting
period, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
in respect of unused tax losses of HK$453,562,000 (2018:
HK$412,354,000) available for offset against future profits
subject to approval from the relevant tax authority due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. All unrecognised tax loss
have no expiry date.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the Group's subsidiaries in
Mainland China from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary difference attributable to the retained
earnings earned by the subsidiaries in Mainland China amounting
to HK$62 million as at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$33.9 million)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is decided that the retained earnings
will not be remitted out of Mainland China.

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({FF £ A I H B + i
(B T E 1716 451) ) effective on 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on
LAT ({REARHEMBE L3 B ERETIRGIE AR ) effective
from 27 January 1995, all income from the sale or transfer of state-
owned land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the
PRC is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
of the appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures in relation to the gains arising from
sales of properties in the PRC effective from 1 January 2004.
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BREEBK0ITZE AR

Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 RN_TE—-N\FE—A—B -
and 31 December 2019 - N\E+ZA=+—HEK
—E-hF+-A=+—H
Issued and fully paid: EERTREHE:

At 1 January 2018
Issue of shares upon rights issue (Note a)

At 31 December 2018 and

Cancellation of shares (Note b)

At 31 December 2019

Notes:

(a

(b)

R-ZE—-—N\EFE—H—H

1 January 2019
&t 85 A% 17 (Bt 5t b)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company allotted and
issued 1,336,096,234 new shares on the basis of one rights share for
every two existing shares held at the subscription price of HK$0.138
per rights share to existing shareholders (“Rights Issue”). These shares
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares. The gross
proceeds from the Rights Issue resulted in an increase in share capital
of approximately HK$184,381,000 and transaction costs incurred
amounted to approximately HK$4,860,000 is recognised in consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company repurchased
23,649,000 of its own shares. The total amount paid to repurchase
the shares was approximately HK$3,410,000 and was charged to share
premium within shareholder’s equity. All of the repurchased shares were

cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Bt B 3 1T B A (BY Rt a)

RZZE-—hF+=—A=+—H

R-E—-N\E+-_A=+—HRK
—E-NF—H—H

HREMBEREWE

Number of shares Amount
BHEE &4
HK$'000

BT T

10,000,000,000 100,000
2,672,192,469 26,722
1,336,096,234 13,361
4,008,288,703 40,083
(23,649,000) (237)
3,984,639,703 39,846

B :

(b)

BE-_Z—)/\E+-_A=+—RHILtFE -
AABMBRERREUREETRER
D AR08 TIREBFAMBIRAE K
MERE—RERRHOHEERHERE
171,336,096,234 88 T A& 17 ([ A& 1) - &
EROEEFTHEREROZE RS E
Bl o REHEBROAERBLESRA
3 h0 4978 #184,381,0007T & Fr E £ &
5 AN B 49 7% #4,860,0007T © B R 4R
EEHEBERANER -

BE-T-—NF+ZA=+—HLHF
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RAEMBHRENE

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for non-current

assets are:

Investment properties (Note a) KEME(MTa)

Property, plants and equipment (Note a) M - B E kR (i sTa)

Receivables under sale and leaseback EREEZHEETZEK
arrangements (Note b) KA (Bt 7EDb)

Notes:

(a) The Group's investment properties with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$24,700,000 (2018: HK$37,500,000) and the Group’s land and
building with carrying value of HK$14,921,000 (2018: Nil) were pledged
to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding amount of
HK$10,950,000 (2018: HK$13,632,000).

(b) The Group's receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements with
a carrying value of HK$308,478,000 (2018: HK$335,876,000) were
pledged to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding
amount of HK$314,607,000 (2018: HK$340,909,000).

The Company has two share option schemes, which were approved
and adopted on 7 June 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) and 25 May
2012 (the "2012 Scheme”) respectively, pursuant to which share
options may be granted to directors (including executive and non-
executive directors), executives, officers, employees or shareholders
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of its associated
companies and any suppliers, customers, consultants, advisers,
agents, partners or business associates to subscribe for the shares
of the Company. Both share option schemes are valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption date of the
scheme.

ETERERFRBEENEMMZ
BERMER:

2019 2018
—®-nF —z-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
24,700 37,500
14,921 —
308,478 335,876
348,099 373,376

GEE

(a) B T 42 {8 78 24,700,000 (=& — )\
£ # #37,500,00070) 2 A E B R B
Y % & BR T {E B 814,921,000 (=&
—NF E2AEELHEEFE
ERFRIT EAREERITEX
7% #10,950,000C(Z T — N\ F: B ¥
13,632,0007T) 2 K H#

(b)y  BR M B 7 %308,478,0007C (= F — N\
B %335,876,000T) 2 A &£
ErEELHE Tz EBKKREREK
WTFRIT EARERRITEIE
#314,607,000T (= & — )\ F: B &
340,909,0007T) Z ## -

AARIEMEBRES - 25K
ZE-FNAEEB(Z2EZ2=F5E))
RZE——FRAAZ+HA(ZE—Z=
FErEl]) B E W ERAY - 15 L B AR
AIRE R FAD R S HAE R MY B A R) =k
HEMEE A Aa s ER(BERTRIE
WITES) TBHRABE 28 BE - &
BRBRREREMEERS - TF  BHh
A Bl R ABANEBZHU
RIBARQBRD - WIABRET 85
BRRRZTEIERMBER +F
/H\;qF'HEJE%Z ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The 2002 Scheme was terminated on 29 May 2012, no further
options can be granted under the 2002 Scheme. The share options
granted under the 2002 Scheme prior to its termination shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the 2002
Scheme.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the maximum number of shares of the
Company available for issue upon exercise of all share options is
115,219,246, representing 4.31% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the commencement date of the 2012 Scheme. The
total number of shares of the Company issued and which may fall
to be issued upon the exercise of share options to be granted under
the 2012 Scheme to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of grant. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by
the Company and shareholders” approval in a general meeting. No
share options has been granted under the 2012 Scheme.

Under both share option schemes, the exercise price in relation to
each share option is determined by the Board of Directors at its
absolute discretion and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of
share options; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of share options; and (iii) the nominal value of the share of
the Company on the date of offer of share options. Each grantee
is required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant of share
options. The offer of share options must be accepted within 60 days
and 30 days from the date of the offer, under the 2002 Scheme and
the 2012 Scheme respectively.

RE RIS M

—EE_FiER=-FT—=-FAA
—t+hHEKLE  BTEBRE-ZZT—
FrralE— P REBRE - RZEZ
“FFERLEATRIBEZAEREZE
BEBSEESN YARE-_TT=
FE FUAITHE -

BREZZT—Z—F:8 EEHTEE
fRiEmAI T2 ARR &= KRG EE
#115,219,246% * (E R RARIR=ZT—=
FEEFRBHERITRA431% - &
EEAREBEHBESAER =@ A
FMRETERE-_ZS——FH8mEL
BORETEITZARBRMDEE - T
SHEARBEEBHARREBITRAZ
1% o (WE— PR D BB 1%RE 2 B
BRiE - ANAFBEHBERREREE
RS EHE - BERE-_F—Z
FEEIRHERE -

REMABRESS - SBREZTT
FESHESSRRNBET  HEXE
BRABIRUATZESE  ()RELE
P #E BB AN R R B 1 B R P = B3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAEMBHRENE

The following table discloses the details of the share options and
movements in the share options under the 2002 Scheme during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Category of grantees

ARAER

Employees of the Group

AEEER

Date of grant

RHiAH

14 December 2010

—Z-%F

+-A+EA

Exercise period

TES

14 December 2010~
13 December 2020
“E-Z%+-AtmEZ
—Z-FF+-A+=H

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Category of grantees

ESE N

Directors of the Company
NG

Employees of the Group
FEEEE

Other participants

Et2EE

2

Date of grant

RitAH

22 January 2008

ZZEN\E
;e =
14 December 2010

“T-FF
TZRATHA
22 January 2008

—ZENE
—A=t=H
14 December 2010

ZE-TF+ZA
+HA

Exercise period

TEH

22 January 2008-
21 January 2018
2R \F-A-tZHE
ZZ-N\E-A=t+-H
14 December 2010-
13 December 2020
“E-ZF+-f1MAZE
“ZCRESTATER
22 January 2008~
21 January 2018
“EE\F-A-tCHE
—Z-/\#—-A=t-H
14 December 2010~
13 December 2020
“Z-ZF+-f{tMmAZE
ZE-FFT-A+=AR

Exercise price

per share

BRITKE

HK$0.530

#0530

Exercise price
per share

BRITERE

HK$0.724
AB0.7247T
HK$0.530
%0530
HK$0.724
BE0T4T
HK$0.540

70,5407

TERBEBERBEE_FT-NFR-_F-N
F+-A=+-BLFE RE-FT

—%F

HEBRERES

B2HB:

BE-Z-NEF+-A=+—HLEE

At

1 January
2019
RZB-n%
-A-H

3,586,880

BHE

At

1 January
2018
RZZ-N\F
-A—-H

17,450,000

4,220,000

18,500,000

600,000

40,770,000

Number of share options
BREZA

Lapsed  Adjustment as
during  aresult of the
the year rights issue
ER R
EHNAE
(Note)
(hat)

EREN

At

31 December
2019
R-E-h&
+=A=t-H

3,586,880

At
31 December

3,586,880

ZE-N\F+ZA=t+—HLEFE
Number of share options
BREZA

Lapsed  Adjustment as

during  aresult of the

the year rights issue

EREERM

EREM  EHHHRE

(Note)

(F &)

(17,450,000) =

(700,000) 66,880

(18,500,000) -

(600,000) -

(37,250,000) 66,880

3,586,880



Note: As a result of the Rights Issue which was completed on 31 October 2018,
the relevant exercise prices were adjusted from HK$0.54 to HK$0.53
under the 2002 Scheme and the numbers of outstanding share options

were adjusted accordingly.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RIS M

MaE: AR _E-NF+A=+—HEXD
®h - — TR _FHETHEBTEEL
054 B 2B K053 - WHE
HEMNGBREHE -

RARTTER B E kA AR &

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: FHTEEZSHNT
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF

Average Average
exercise price Number of  exercise price Number of
in HK$ per share options in HK$ per  share options
share option (thousands) share option (thousands)

BHEBRED BHhEREDN
FHITHEE BREKE FHTEE  BREHE
(B%) (F) (B¥) (F17)
At 1 January R—H—H 0.53 3,587 0.70 40,770
Lapsed B R = = 0.72 (37,250)

Adjustment as a result of 4 B% T B 28

the rights issue = = 0.53 67
At 31 December R+Z—HA=+—H 0.53 3,587 0.53 3,587

As at 31 December 2019, all outstanding options (2018: all) were

exercisable.

On 11 July 2019, a subsidiary of the Group,
HEREREZMACRI) AR 2 A (Ecko
Investment Company Limited*) completed a capital
injection into Jingxi Supply Chain, pursuant to
the investment agreement entered into between
Shougang Fund and Jingxi Supply Chain in June 2018.
The total consideration for the capital injection was
RMB200,000,000. As a result of this capital injection,
the Group’s shareholding in Jingxi Supply Chain
increased from 10% to 70%. Jingxi Supply Chain is
engaged in the operation of supply chain financing
services in the Mainland China.

*  For identification purpose only

*

N=B-NET-A=+—R - 2HH
RTEOBRE(CE-NAT 28
T -

R=ZZF—-hFLA+—H"
AEE BB QR R
BEREEZACRIDER
AR REESMESHERA
HEFENR-_ZT—)\FNAF
MR E W 0 ERE R
HEERNTE - TENE
KRB A& A R #200,000,000
JC ° HRILIEE - AEE
R P e 58 H AR AR 10%
AN ET70% o K 7o 4 fE §E
A B A 3 1 = 4 R R
BER -

E 13 5 %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets
acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Cash consideration HeRE

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the
acquisition are as follows:

WERE CURBEEF
BEEREEBEFBENOT:

HK$'000
ABETIT

227,273

ARRKWBHEIANEE N
BEMT:

Fair value

AfE

HK$'000

BT T

Property, plant and equipment - BERZE 2,695
Intangible asset EEEE 12,689
Other receivables and current asset HthERFBEBRREEE 2,045
Cash and cash equivalents ReFBSEFEEE 311,871
Other current liabilities Hinsa’E (1,480)
Net identifiable assets acquired EWERAIHENEEFE 327,820

Less: fair value of 10% equity interest W ST AT FTFE10% AR 1 1Y

previously held NV (8,631)
Less: non-controlling interests TR FEYE IR RE & (98,395)
Add: goodwill e 6,479
227,273

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable
to the synergies expected to arise from the business
combination and enable the Group to rapid entry into
the fast growing supply chain finance business in the
PRC.

The Group elected to recognise the non-controlling
interests in Jingxi Supply Chain at its proportionate
share of the acquired net identifiable assets.

BWRBELENEEREANE
% & OF 8 H3 55 2K &9 169 R 2%
& EARKEFAREEA
TERRERNEEES
BET -

AEEEEREGEMERE
HY AT 38 F B E R B B L
{51 1 38 5 7O 1L B S O JF
Pzt o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The acquired business contributed revenues of
HK$716,000 and net loss of HK$2,378,000 to the
Group for the period from 11 July to 31 December
2019. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2019, consolidated pro-forma revenue and loss for
the year ended 31 December 2019 would have been
HK$78,203,000 and HK$3,601,000 respectively.

On 15 November 2018, the Group acquired 86.71% of
the issued share capital of Shouhua Jingxi Cooperative
Innovation for consideration of HK$1,763,000. This
acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase
method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result
of the acquisition was HK$921,000. Shouhua Jingxi
Cooperative Innovation is engaged in provision of
corporate financial advisory services. Shouhua Jingxi
Cooperative Innovation was acquired so as to continue
the expansion of the Group's assets management
division.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets
acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Cash consideration Be

*  For identification purpose only

KB

* EHEF %

RE RIS M

BE-Z—hFtA+—AHie
E2+-A=+—81-8/8
BEWBEERAEASEEF B
Y 25 75 #£716,0007T & % &5
18 75 %2,378,0007T ° fif Ux
BEERN_T—NF—HF—
HE4E  BIBZEZE-—ZT—NF
+- A=+ —HILFENELE
AEERZREEED R
A7 1578,203,0007T N B S
3,601,0007T °

RZE-—N\F+—A+H
B ANEEWRBEEERAR
B B ¥ #986.71% & %% 17 i%
& RA{E BB 1,763,000
TC o UL UK BB B UK B R
AR - ARBEEANEE
$ % 5B 921,0000T - B
=R E A I E R H
TEREFRMBRE - WEE
BERABRAF AL
BAEENEEEED
R -

WERE CURBEEF
BEEREEFBENOT:

HK$'000
AETIT

1,763



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Interest in an associate

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Other payables

Net identifiable assets acquired
Less: non-controlling interests
Add: goodwill

ME - BENZE
R—REBE AR s
H {th & 4 5K IR
RehBHEFEHEA
H Al & 15 5K IR

BB R A R 1
W 3k 1 AR
0

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Shouhua Jingxi
Cooperative Innovation is attributable to expected
synergies arising from future market development
and the assembled workforce of Shouhua Jingxi
Cooperative Innovation. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they
do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable

intangible assets.

The Group elected to recognise the non-controlling
interests in Shouhua Jingxi Cooperative Innovation at
its proportionate share of the acquired net identifiable

assets.

REBEEBAKENEE
KRN ABENT

HK$'000
ABETIT

6
1,573
335
1,763
(2,706)

971
(129)
921

1,763

WEEERABEAIEL
HBEETIRE B E R
BT 2 R T 95 % R ML
EBT 2R HRE - &
F M 5 I B R B ) B R
R REASELATFAARE
MENEEZHERBIZE -

AEEEZREGEMREE
FY R 38 5 73 B E AV LL I B
R E R R B Y 3F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, no revenue was
generated from Shouhua Jingxi Cooperative Innovation
and net loss of HK$432,000 was attributed to the
Group. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2018, consolidated pro-forma loss for the year ended
31 December 2018 would have been HK$51,202,000.

Cash consideration paid ENReRE

Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired &l : FTWBEE MR & RIE &
£EEAE

Net cash inflow REm A FE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, acquisition-related
cost of HK$270,000 (2018: HK$47,000) was included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and in operating cash flows in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

RE RIS M

Hz—_Z2—-N\HF+=A
=t+—HItFE HERMA
1 (R 8l 37 37 4% B A T fr] IR
& ANEBEAFEIREE
432,0007T ° fi Ui B8 2 A R
—ZT—)N\F—A—A8 " 8l
22 )N\F+ZA=+—
AEFEMRAEEZER
18 /&7 #51,202,0007T °

2019 2018
S A S
HK$°000 HK$'000
T T T
227,273 1,763
(311,871) (1,763)
(84,598) -

HE-_ZT-h&+-_A=+—HL
FE - U HE FE R A A B 270,000
L (ZF— N\ : B ¥47,0007T)
ERGZEE2ARERFTAITHA
TRRGERERERTALE
WERE °



Profit/(loss) before income tax

Adjustments for:

Changes in fair value of equity
instruments at fair value through

profit or loss

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangibles assets
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of debt
instruments at FVOCI

Impairment loss reversed on interest

in an associate

Reversal of impairment provision,

net

Change in fair value of investment

properties
Finance costs
Interest income

Share of (profit)/losses of associates

Operating cash flows before

movements in working capital

Changes in working capital:

Receivables under sale and leaseback

arrangements

Entrusted loan payment receivable
Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables
Other payables and accruals
Contract liabilities
Security deposit

Cash (used in)/generated from

operations

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

BRAFSHANER S (BE)
EEE:-3
BBBERRAAER
BZRETAEZAR
B2
ME - BERKREZ
e
EREEENE
B A E#iH
HEME BMELRE
Bi1E(a)
HEEBEMBE2mK S
BAREREZER
TRz
—HBERTZER L
B 15 /E5 18 B (ol
BB s B [0 R R

BEME Y DB

BB A

A B A

i AN
Cai A1), & 18

LEESEPM KR
BeRE

LEELE:

EREMELHFETEK
IR

FE U & FEE IR

BEANRE REMEMBE
Wk IR

H B 5 M B AT &

BHAE

RERE

rE(FMA) /BB E

2019

—E-NEF

Notes HK$'000
M 5 BT T

15,413

(204)
15 1,913

16 2,834
18 1,259

(1,022)

(1,887)
(2,400)

1 25,292
(19,968)

(2,614)
18,621

(229,876)
8,349

(502)
3,675

(3,992)
(18,731)

(222,456)

2018
—E-)N\F
HK$'000
BETIT

(35,558)

(75,640)
(1,242)
(3.147)

48,250

(12,461)

122,547

44,514

720,077
(8,364)

(773)
(6,192)
(6,650)

(39,852)

702,760



In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount (Note 15)

(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, plant

and equipment (Note 7)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment

BR M % 8 (M 5E15)
HEWE BMEKRE
(E518), W25 (B 5E7)

HEME BEEREMAEF

KR

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
movements in net debt for the year ended 31 December 2019

and 2018 presented.

Cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits with initial term over three

months
Borrowings
Lease liabilities

Net debt

RehREFEER
MNig IR BB = A K

fe

HEAE

TS 2

Vel =N
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RE RIS M

EmaRaengxkt HED
X BERRBGAERARHE:

2019 2018
—2-nE —E2-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFRT BT
5 5

(5) 74

- 79

REHINFAREE_T-NFR
—E-N\FF+A=+—RHILF
BRI FERRFEREB DN -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
607,782 806,150
94,382 -
(465,557) (494,541)
(4,128) -

232,479 311,609



Net debt as at 1 January 2018

Cash flows
Foreign exchange adjustments

Net debt as at 31 December
2018

Recognised on adoption of
HKFRS 16 (Note 16)

Cash flows
Foreign exchange adjustments
Other charge

Net debt as at 31 December
2019

R=F—/\F—A—H
HFE

Reme

SME 3 B

RZBE-N\F
+-A=+—~
RFER

RENEBHBRE
£ B 551655 B 7
R (KFzE16)

RenE
SEBE
Ll

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Other assets
HittE &

Term

deposits

with initial

Cash term over

and cash three
equivalents months
NIRRT

AeRBE: BB=EAN
EEER EHRER
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETn
288,221 12,048
539,168 (11,363)
(21,239) (685)
806,150 =
806,150 -
(174,727) 94,788
(23,641) (406)
607,782 94,382

Liabilities from
financing activities

RETDAR
Borrowings Lease
RN HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(896,494) -
350,590 -
51,363 =
(494,541) -
- (6,246)
(494,541) (6,246)
32,602 2,346
(3,618) -
- (228)
(465,557) (4128)

Total

At
HK$'000
ARTT

(596,225)
878,395
29,439

311,609

(6,246)

305,363
(44,991)
(27,665)

(228)

232,479



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Controlling Shareholder of the Company defined under
the Listing Rules is Shougang Holding which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned enterprise
under the direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC.
Accordingly, the Company and the Group are controlled by
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as “Shougang Group”). The transactions and those balances with
Shougang Group and other PRC government-related financial
institutions are disclosed below:

Key management personnel includes directors (executive,
non-executive and external directors) and the senior
management of the Group. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services is shown
below:

Wages, salaries and other benefit T4  FaehHMEFR
Retirement benefit scheme contribution & #K18 F| 51 21 4 %

Total employee benefit expenses

BERMFAX A

RE RIS M

RELITHRAUNZER  AREZER
BRERAEMIZER mMEmZERANSE
MEEBRAR (B EE RS E &=
HzBEBLEE)ETZ2EMBRR -
At - XRARIRAEEXEMERAFR
REAIREMBAR (SERIEMHER])
Y o B 5 5 B N H qth o B K AT AR
AeRmEBET IR RAERKEN
T

TZEEABBRESTWMTE
FORTESERINFER) KA
SEEREBRAL - HEERK
ENSENEREEABHH

TH
2019 2018
X A
HK$°000 HK$'000
T BT T
7,638 59N

39 36

7,677 5,947



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RIS M

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-HA=+t—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue under sale and leaseback E#EHETHETITZRS
arrangements (Note ii) (B &Eii)
Subsidiaries of Shougang Group EE LIS PGy PN 46,873 63,853
Associate of Shougang Holding EE R el /N 827 2,543
47,700 66,396
Consultancy services income (Note i) &% 5 BR %% Wt A (Bff &%i)
Subsidiaries of Shougang Group EEEI- A= 1,065 =
Management fee expenses (Note i) &2 & A B X (K &Fi)
Shougang Holding EEREY 2,880 480
Associate of Shougang Holding ER 2yl /N - 236
2,880 716
Lease payments (Note i) HE R D
Subsidiary of Shougang Holding BH#ER 2B AR 2,346 391
Consultancy services expenses & 7 AR 7% B % (B &E0)
(Note i)
Shougang Holding B 1 g - 800
Notes: B 5 -
(i) The transactions were carried out in accordance with the relevant (i) ZERZFBREBEEBAHEHER M
lease and other agreements. The relevant rental deposit is HHEET FRABESREARE
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (Note i~ 1R e Ho At 8 U R IR A (B

24). £24) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

The transactions were carried out in accordance with relevant sale
and leaseback and loan agreements summarised as below:

M

@)

©)

Pursuant to the sale and leaseback agreement, South
China Leasing provided sale and leaseback amounting to
RMB70,000,000 to Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co. Ltd,
an associate of Shougang Holding, for a term of 3 years
commenced from August 2016.

The Company entered into the master facility agreement
with Shougang Group Co., Ltd., pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to provide or procure
its subsidiaries to provide the uncommitted facilities to
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. and/or its subsidiaries in an
aggregate principal amount of up to RMB5,000,000,000
for a term of 3 years commenced from June 2018.

Pursuant to the sale and leaseback agreement, South
China Leasing provided sale and leaseback amounting
RMB60,000,000 to R EH ZIRIFEHEEAR LD
A], a subsidiary of Shougang Holding, for a term of 1 year
commenced from February 2018.

Included in receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements of the Group as disclosed in Note 20, there
are receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements from
subsidiaries of Shougang Group with total carrying amount of
HK$984,612,000 (2018: HK$641,510,000) as at 31 December
2019 and receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
from an associate of Shougang Holding with total carrying
amount of HK$21,203,000 as at 31 December 2018.

miEE: ()

%
"

M

3)

RE RIS M

ZEXSREBEEMERDEALE
BhEET BEWT:

RIBERBEMARZE  BA
HERBMNESHESE
PR (e 8 1 AR 2 B
ARENRHEZLHESE
& A R #70,000,0007T °
BEH=F BT F
AR -

ANFEEMEEBESRA
RIFT L BREHBHE B
gt AR E B A i E
ERHSEFEELHBEA
AAEMERAERARQF
RS E B AR R E
5,000,000,0007C 2 FE 7%
wmERE AB=F 8=
Z-NEXARR -

BREEZEHEHE 8
FHERMKBES SR
FESEEBRAF(E
M #22 B% B BT B 2 AD) R
ErDAcEAARE
60,000,000 © A& H§ —
F BT N\F_AH

% o

BERWI20MEENAERE
BEIMLZHIE TEKFIE R
E—NF+-_A=+—8" kg
EMEE WBEAREROMAR
HETREKRRIERAREAEE
984,612,000C (ZZT— \&F : B
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E AR EROATHEETREK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial assets at
FVPL included listed securities of 12,370,000 shares (2018:
12,370,000 shares) of Shougang Concord Century Holdings
Limited (“Shougang Century”) with carrying amount of
HK$2,486,000 (2018: HK$2,326,000), and 230,000 shares
(2018: 230,000 shares) of Shougang Concord International
Enterprises Company Limited (“Shougang International”)
with carrying amount of HK$89,000 (2018: HK$45,000).
Shougang Century and Shougang International are associates
of Shougang Holding.

Apart from the transactions and balances with the Shougang
Group as disclosed in Note 38(b) and 38(c), and the
investments in related companies as disclosed in Note 38(d),
the Group has entered into various transactions in its ordinary
course of business including deposit placements, borrowings
and other general banking facilities, with certain banks and
financial institutions which are government-related entities.
As at 31 December 2019, 100%, 100% and 98% (2018: Nil,
96% and 97%), respectively, of term deposits with initial term
over three months, bank balances and bank borrowings are
held with these government-related financial institutions.

RZEBE-NF+=-_A=+—H" ' &
SEZEBESRKREANERE
ZERMEERELTESERE
FEEERAR(BEREEDZ
12,370,0000% & 0 (=& — N\ & -
12,370,0000% f% 17) BRE B A8
2,486,000t (ZF — NF: B K&
2,326,000) R ERBEBR ¥R
FRAR(TERERE])Z230,0000%
5 (ZZF — J\F : 230,000 i
1) BR I 1& /& 75 89,000 L (=&
—)\F : B#45000T) - HRE
ERERBEBEAEMIITER 2B E

NA] e

B Bt 5 38(b) K2 38(c) AT # F5 2 5 5ff
S B 2R 5 K% &M 5E38(d)
FIEREERRZIREIN K
SERAEATEBKBIEDHEBIK
[FEBER ZE TRITR SR
BT 2ERS  BEFHR &
HEREM—ZIRITRME - R=F
—NWF+=-—A=+—8  ¥HH
PREBE=EAMNTEBFR - BT
HEERIRITERD BB LEERT
S B EIFE100% * 100%
K98% (ZE—N\F:E 96% K&
97%) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RIS M

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

2019

Executive directors
of the Company

Xu Liang

Liu Dongsheng (Note (i))

Su Guifeng (Note (vi))

Li Jing (Note (vii))

Non-executive directors
of the Company

Liu Dongsheng (Note (i))

Huang Donglin

You Wenli (Note (viii))

Independent Non-executive
directors of the Company

Tam King Ching, Kenny

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Note (ix))

Fei Jianjiang (Note (x))

Wan Siu Wah, Wilson

Total emoluments

—E-hEF

ERARHAT
B

HwE

B3R T+ (BT REG)

Fr A 82 (M SE (i)

715 (BT 2E (vii)

RRBFEHT
=

2 R (M 5EG)

=AM

5 3CRE (B = (viii))

ZNNSTE: A

FHTES
R
2R (M EEx)
& 2T (M EX)
B I E

[k

Fees

ik
HK$'000
BETT

190

264
262
264
264

1,244

BE_ZE-NF+_A=+T—HBLEE

EEEFRERITRABZ
T

Salaries  Contributions
and other to retirement
benefits benefit scheme
ek EBARER
Hib@ R 5T &8 it
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
2,506 18
2,640 12
816 3

432 6
6,394 39

¥ B 3 51 4n

Total

2019

ot
—E-hF
HK$'000
BT T

2,524
2,652
819
438

190

264
262
264
264

7,677



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Fees
e
HK$'000
BT T
2018 —ET-N\F
Executive directors ARBHAT
of the Company ==}
Xu Liang ®RE =
Liu Dongsheng (Note (i) 21 51 A (B RE )
Yang Junlin (Note (ii)) 15 12 R (B R Gi)) =
Yuan Wenxin (Note (ii)) = 300 (B 5 Giy) 19
Non-executive directors AARFEHIT
of the Company =
Huang Donglin (Note (ii)) 7 AR (P Gii) 118
Leung Shun Sang, Tony (Note (iv)) 22 JIE 4 (Fff 5% (iv)) 73
Independent Non-executive N2 F ¥
directors of the Company FETES
Tam King Ching, Kenny o5 1 240
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Note (ix)) £ £ & (B} 5% (ix)) 240
Fei Jianjiang (Note (v), (x)) 2T (MW ~ (X)) 182
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson (Note (v)) & JK Z= (Pt 31 (v) 182
Zhou Jianhong (Note (iv)) A 2 4T (B 5% (iv) 92
Total emoluments & 45 1,146

Notes:
(i)

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

(ix)
(x)

Liu Dongsheng ceased to be managing director and was appointed to be
non-executive director on 22 August 2019.

Yang Junlin and Yuan Wenxin resigned on 6 January 2018. They ceased
to be deputy managing directors of the Company with effect from 6
January 2018.

Huang Donglin was appointed on 18 May 2018.

Leung Shung Sang, Tony and Zhou Jianhong retired on 18 May 2018.

Fei Jianjiang and Wan Siu Wah, Wilson were appointed on 29 March
2018.

Su Guifeng was appointed on 19 September 2019.

Li Jing was appointed on 22 August 2019.

You Wenli was appointed on 31 May 2019.

Yip Kin Man, Raymond resigned on 1 January 2020.
Fei Jianjiang resigned on 20 March 2020.

HE_ZT-\F+_A=t+—HILFER
EERRSTBRAB ZHMEIIT

Salaries Contributions

and other to retirement Total
benefits  benefit scheme 2018
ek RIKTE F @st

H i1 H EIHZ —Z—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT

2,160 18 2,178
2,605 18 2,623

- - 118

- - 240
- - 240
- = 182

4,765 36 5,947

B

BRAR=ZZT-NENAZ+T=ZBTE
AEFHRERITEZTRENTES -
BEMEEXODR-ZE—N\E—HFKA
BT -HEA-_T—N\F—AXBET
BAADRRRBERE -
BEEAMR_ZE—N\FRA+TNBEZT -
ZIEERBARANR=_ZE—N\ERLA TN
HiRME -
BEIRBKENR_E—\F=A=1Th
HEZT -
BESR-ZT-NEFNLATNAEEZT -
TER_E—NFENA+—_REZRT -
HXBR-_Z—NFRA=T—HAEZ
£ -
ERENR-_Z-_TF—A—BHI-
BEIR=ZS-_ZTF=A=+THEIT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HEAREE

Direct subsidiary
EEWELR
SCG Investment (BVI) Limited

Indirect subsidiaries

KB D

Concord Grand TV & Movie
Investment Limited

mEFRREERATF

Dunley Developments Limited

Durali Developments Limited

Gold Cosmos Development Limited

THEERBRAA

Grand Park Investment Limited

RBREFRAF

Grand Phoenix Limited

Jeckman Holdings Limited

Linksky Limited
EEBRATA

Long Cosmos Investment Limited

RFREERAA

Place of incorporation
or establishment/

share capital/register

operation and paid-up capital
= R 32 3R R L ERTRBERE
SR B /AR E SR
(Note (i)
Cxza0)
British Virgin Islands HK$100,000
("BVI") 75 #100,0007T
RERTHS
(RBRZ#ES)
BVI Us$1
BRRHS 1E7T
BVI Us$1
REBREUME (Ep
BVI Us$1
SRR KRS (E
Hong Kong HK$10,000
Ak 7 #10,0007T
Hong Kong HK$2
B B2
BVI Us$1
REBREUME (Ep
BVI Us$100
IRREHE 100% 7T
Hong Kong HK$2
Bk 2T
Hong Kong HK$2
B BT

ZAN/NEDiS
A=+t—HZTIEMNEBR

RE RIS M

NZE-NFRZF-N\EF+Z
AT -

Issued and fully paid Proportion of ownership

interest held by the

Company Principal activities

AR HEE

ERER A TEEH

2019 2018

—E-hE ZZEN\F

100% 100%  Investment holding
REER

0% 100% Investment holding
REER

0% 100%  Investment holding
REER

0% 100%  Investment holding
REER

100% 100%  Investment holding
REER

100% 100%  Property investment
MERE

100% 100%  Investment holding
REER

100% 100%  Investment holding
REER

100% 100%  Property investment
MERE

100% 100%  Provision of

administrative and
management services

RETHREE RS



Name of subsidiary

MERRAE

Lyre Terrace Management Limited

ZRERBRARA

On Hing Investment Company,

Limited (“On Hing")

ZHELGREERAF(RE])

SCG Capital Corporation Limited

EROGTBERRRAH

SCG Finance Corporation Limited

EROHBERRA

SCG Financial Investment Limited

SCG Leasing Corporation Limited

BEROFHERFRAR

South China International Leasing
Co., Ltd. (“South China Leasing")

BABEREERRAR
(TEnEED

Strenbeech Limited

Tin Fung Investment Company,

Limited
REYEBXFERRA

Upper Nice Assets Ltd.

Place of incorporation
or establishment/
operation

S A LR A

Vg3 31

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
80

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB
BVI

EEREAEE

Hong Kong
EB

PRC (Note (ii))
B (B 2 Gi))

BVI
RBRIES

Hong Kong
BB

BVI
RBRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Issued and fully paid
share capital/register
and paid-up capital
ERORAERSE
/ERRESRE
(Note (i)

Cigs0)

HK$1,000,000
7 #1,000,0007T

HK$1,000 (ordinary)
HK$2,000,000
(non-voting deferred)
7 11,0007T (B R)
7 #2,000,0007T
(BEERELER)

HK$20
H#207T

HK$20
A H207T

US$1,000
1,000% 7T

HK$2
2T

US$162,000,000
(Registered capital)
162,000,000 7T
(FETR R A)

HK$147,000,008
7 %147,000,0087C

HK$975,000 (ordinary)
HK$210,000
(non-voting deferred)
7 #975,0007T
6319

75 #210,0007C
(BRERELER)

Us$1
(E

Proportion of ownership

interest held by the

Company
EARFFESR

RERERZ A
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\FE
100% 100%
100% 100%
(Note (iv)) (Note (iv))
(Bff = (iv)) (B X (v))
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
75% 75%
100% 100%
100% 100%
(Note (iv)) (Note (iv))
(HF &E (iv)) (B 3% iv))
0% 100%

Principal activities

TEEH

Property investment

MERE

Property investment
and investment
holding

MERERKRERER

Investment holding

REZRKR

Provision of financial
services

RESB RS

Investment holding

RERR

Property investment

MERE

Provision of sale and
leaseback services

REE % OHERS
Investment holding
REZER

Inactive

BELEER

Investment holding

REZR



Name of subsidiary

MERRAHE

Valuework Investment Holdings

Limited

Ecko Investment Company Limited*

REREREER R ARAH

Shouhua Jingxi Cooperative
Innovation (Beijing) Technology

Development Co., Ltd.*

BERABRAH (AR BHRER

L YN

Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain

Management Co., Ltd.*

R EREEFRAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RIS M

Place of incorporation Issued and fully paid Proportion of ownership

or establishment/
operation

=5 B 3 =R A L
Ve 3-3:11

BV
KBEZES

PRC (Note (iii))
wh B (B 3 i)

PRC (Note (jii))
wh B (Bt 3 i)

PRC (Note (jii))
wh B (B 3 i)

td For identification purpose only

Notes:

It

(ii) This entity is sino-foreign equity joint venture.

(iii) These entities are limited liability enterprises.

share capital/register
and paid-up capital
ERTRBERE
/ERRESRE
(Note (i)

(Bf 32 (1))

Us$100
1003 7T

HK$261,700,000
(Registered capital)
7 #261,700,0007C
(G AR AS)

RMB70,000,000
(Registered capital)
A R#70,000,0007T
(G AR AS)

RMB300,000,000
A #300,000,0007C

) All issued share capital are ordinary shares unless otherwise stated.

(iv) Interests only refer to ordinary shares which are voting shares.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or assets and
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

interest held by the

Company Principal activities
ERRERE
EREE LA TEEH
2019 2018

—8-NE —FNE

100% 100%  Investment holding

REZER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REZR

86.71% 86.71%  Provision of corporate

financial advisory
services

RECXBEER
R

70% 10%  Provision of supply

chain financing
services

IR 41 68 S8 R RS
© EEBAFR
GEE

(i) BIERBFHA  BRIMASBITRAL
RERERK -

(i BREBRTIGEDLE-

FREFINEEFAREAREBZXE
FEEXAEATIBFECMEBARR -
E=ERRBIMENBRATAFERS
RIERBRITE -

TR 6 JE 45 R B Ko 5F A ] B P 4
MBARKEEMNELES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group that has material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership

Place of interests and voting rights
establishment and Principal held by
Name of subsidiary operation activities non-controlling interests
FERERFEREE
MEARER RIREEHE TEXH BERREBE LA
2019 2018
—E-hE  ZT-\%
% %
South China Leasing PRC Provision of sale and 25 25
HHHRE H leaseback services
REEROERY
Jingxi Supply Chain PRC Provision of supply 30 =
REHEE Gl chain financing
services
R EERE R

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

HHEERES 2 E5
TEAMBAT

South China Leasing is the private company established in Mainland
China and provides sale and leaseback services in Mainland China.

The Group has indirect ownership interest of 75% (2018: 75%)
in South China Leasing at 31 December 2019, which is held by
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group. The remaining 25%
non-controlling interest is held by Shougang Holding.

Jingxi Supply Chain is the private company established in Mainland
China and provides supply chain financing services in Mainland
China.

The Group has indirect ownership interest of 70% in Jingxi Supply
Chain at 31 December 2019, which is held by wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group. The remaining 30% non-controlling
interest is held by Shougang Fund.

The Directors conclude that the Group has a sufficiently dominant
voting interest to direct the relevant activities of both subsidiaries
on the basis of the Group’s absolute size of equity interest and the
relative size of the interest owned by the other equity owners.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

TREJEEEAFERERZAE
B2 EMBRARIZFIF
Profit for the year
allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
IREFERESR
ZEERA R FERER
2019 2018 2019 2018

“B-NE C-—E-\E ZB-NE C-—E-N\E
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT

9,083 8,833 291,720 285,984
(620) - 96,517 -
12 418

388,349 286,402

MAEERRPEAMMAT 2TLAR
A - BB fE % B R RS -

—ZT— h¢+ A=+—8R
éﬁ ﬁ75% — \F : 75%)
“% 'ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%m$ﬁ
u %—iﬁﬁ‘ o PR T25% 3k

h\—#

[ i # Bt

>

—

=

@ﬁn
\

mme%

5 N ot oM
5 T8 2
E-/mb}m

P
EH
EX
P‘f
%
= ﬁ

Tgr

[m
B 5t

E%
g
= g

|
< SOl
bﬂtwaﬂwﬁ °o -

oo
_m
|
o
I
+
|
v oA

#
B S
B 5

I B 34
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fiet 2 e ol
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o
R
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N
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e
=
5

E=Eme BENASE 2 @N
SR b R AT A B 2 AR
M- K’El%ﬁiﬂi’:ﬁﬂx?ﬂ&
AiEsImEH B AR < B/@ED

BERBEAEAFEREDS 2 ANEEM
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Current assets
Current liabilities

Current net assets

Non-current assets

Non-current liabilities

Non-current net assets

Net assets

Accumulated NCI

Revenue

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) allocated to

NCI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mBEE
mEAE

REBEEFE

FRBDEE
FRBEME

FRBEEFE

BEERE

RrFERER

Y &5

A A

Hfth 2 H E5 18

2EWE(BE)AE

DEEFRERESZEER
Was(E518) B HE

BEMBEREME
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
591,173 1,007,201
(259,197) (198,651)
331,976 808,550
1,013,763 606,044
(179,227) (270,658)
834,536 335,386
1,166,512 1,143,936
291,628 285,984
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
71,568 94,965
36,335 35,331
(13,759) (70,262)
22,576 (34,931)
5,644 (8,733)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RIS M

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating

activities

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing

activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash (outflow)/inflow

Current assets
Current liabilities

Current net assets

Non-current assets

Non-current net assets

Net assets

Accumulated NCI

rREEH(MA),/ AERE
s

REBFHFAM) FiEEE
-t

BMEEHAAREFHE

Re R,/ RAFHE

mBEE
mBAE

RBEEFE

FERBEE

FRBEEFE

BEEFE

REtFERER

2019 2018
—®-NEF —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T BT

(212,408) 728,857

(87,154) 29,015
(26,302) (472,948)

(325,864) 284,924

As at

31 December
2019
R=ZF-h&F
t=A=+-8
HK$'000
BT T

309,299
(529)

308,770

12,954

12,954

321,724

96,517



Revenue

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss allocated to NCI

Net cash generated from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash outflow

Y z8
HMRE R
H A 2 H &5 18

EHERARE

DEREEFERESZEE

RETFHMFRES FHE
REDBAAR S FHE

REmtFaE
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From the
acquisition date
11 July 2019 to
31 December
2019

MUY B R
—EB-NF
tBA+—HZE
—E2-NF
t=A=t—H
HK$000
BT T

716

(2,066)
(4,194)
(6,260)

BB 4% (1,878)

From the
acquisition date
11 July 2019 to
31 December
2019

mukEE B
—E-NF
tA+—RBZE
—E-hF
+t=A=+-—H
HK$°000
BT

488
(95,917)

(95,429)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Capital expenditure contracted for butnot ~ BEBRERN T E DR EE

provided in the consolidated financial EETAME R AR R ER G BT S
statements in respect of step acquisition WMEB BN E R
through capital injection (Note 36) (Mf7%36)

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented across Hong
Kong and the Mainland China. The Group will pay close attention to
the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact
on the financial position and operating results of the Group. As at
the date on which this set of financial statements were authorised
for issue, the Group was not aware of any material adverse effects
on the financial statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.

2019 2018

S —2-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
- 312,798

RIB_ZFYN_ZT-NBRBEEHE
BT NEBRREREEDEK &
BRTFBEAMERREBEESEN
EEE - AKEBEIEEI-—FT N
AR SRR BB RLFEEE A
SENFBERARKLERENTE -
BERBUNEAPHREAH A&
By rTHEEA—_ZE-ABRESHE
EMERH B REREMERTF

=/ 40
2



Assets
Non-current assets

Investment in subsidiaries, net (Note)
Amount due from subsidiaries, net

(Note)

Current assets
Prepayment, deposits and
other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Total liabilities

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE
ERBEE

KK B RE 2 & F5 (M &)
& Ui B8 2 B R IR % AR (P E)

hBEE
BNRE B2 R
Ho A & W kIR
RITEFRAS

BEERE

&\
hRBRE
H A BN RIA R At E B

aBEAHE
RBEE(BE) FE
BEEFRE
PR A X ik 7

[N

fa 178

R 5

RE RIS M

2019 2018
—E-hF —E)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
485,928 502,443
513,421 513,889
999,349 1,016,332
193 194

454 220

647 414

167 1,770

167 1,770
480 (1,356)
999,829 1,014,976
39,846 40,083
959,983 974,893
999,829 1,014,976



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBHRENE

Note:

As at 31 December 2019, the amount due from a subsidiary with
carrying amount of HK$513,421,000 (2018: HK$513,889,000) is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. In the opinion of
the Directors, the Company will not demand for repayment within
one year from the end of reporting period and the amount due from a
subsidiary is therefore considered as non-current. Interest-free advance
is measured at amortised cost and the related effective interest income
of HK$33,433,000 (2018: HK$26,124,000), which is non-distributable,
was recognised in profit or loss for the current year and accumulated
effective interest income of approximately HK$104,905,000 (2018:
HK$71,472,000), which is non-distributable, was recognised in retained
earnings.

Share

premium

%19 0% 1B

HK$'000

BT

At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE-N\5—A—H 604,068

Issue of shares upon rights issue HRETRA 166,160

Lapse of share options BREXMN =

Profit for the year FE R -

At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NF+-A=t—H 770,228

Cancellation of ordinary shares AT E R (3,410)

Loss for the year FEBE -
Exchange difference arising on MEREIEBEE Y

translation into presentation fE 5 = 58
currency =
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+ZA=+—H 766,818

GEE

Contributed
surplus
reserve

BARR
=5
HK$'000
BT T

113,441

113,441

R-E—NF+-_A=+—8"  EK—
il B /B8 2 R 3R IB AR B 7 %5 513,421,000
TT(ZZF— N\ : #%513,889,0007T) &
mEH R RERERKEE-ES
RE ARABTIERBERHARE —
FRIBEHEFRESR  BUtRABEK—M
WEARIRIEAERE - REBEART
BEBERK AT EMAEBERF W
A 7B #33,433,0007T (ZZT —)\F : B #&
26,124,0007T) &M A D HEBERAFE
BEaBEANBERRRAERFNIBALD
75 #5104,905,000L (ZE —\F : B
71,472,00070) BN D EEERNRER
FIARER o

Other Retained

reserves earnings Total
Hit

#iE REBR Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AETr ABETx
10,254 54,758 782,521
= = 166,160
(9,568) 9,568 =
= 26,212 26,212
686 90,538 974,893
= = (3,410)
- (144) (144)
(11,356) = (11,356)
(10,670) 90,394 959,983



RESULTS

Continuing operations
Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains, net

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Change in fair value of
investment properties

Change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

(Provision)/reversal of impairment
of provision, net

Finance costs

Share of profit/(loss) of associates

(Provision)/reversal of impairment

provision on interest in an
associate

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax credit (expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Loss for the year from discontinued
operation

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ES
BEEEXK
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ATALREME:

ZN/NCIEEZEUN
e o

2015
—E-hF
HK$'000
BT
(restated)
(E7)

60,276
(32,962)

27,314
5,496

(1,955)
(41,281)

12,455

(2,005)

(81,723)
(613)

4,483

(77,829)
11,619

(66,210)

(272)
(66,482)
(55,244)

(11,238)

(66,482)

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T-HLEE

2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
BET T

106,578
(61,130)

45,448
11,451

(672)
(33,248)

4,670

806

(44,055)
(264)

(25,349)

(43,019)

(84,232)
2,564

(81,668)

(304)
(81,972)
(82,375)

403

(81,972)

2017 2018
T-+5 —B)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BT
109,512 96,623
(50,380) (42,427)
59,132 54,196
4,389 15,620
285 2,824
(993) (418)
(40,530) (58,798)
10,781 3,147
67 (641)

672 1,242

(2,445) (5,823)
(11,947) (122,547)
(9,626) 75,640
9,785 (35,558)
(12,206) (14,531)
(2,427) (50,089)
(2,421) (50,089)
(11,332) (58,882)
8,911 8,793
(2,421) (50,089)

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BETT

77,702
(20,058)

57,644
21,191
1,094
(402)
(65,232)

2,400

204

1,887
(5,987)

2,614

15,413
(14,830)

583

583

(7,921)
8,504

583



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TFMBERE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES X¥EREE

Total assets BERE
Total liabilities BERBE
Capital and reserves ZA/NCIESTEUN

attributable to owners of JE 15 AR AR I 5k 1
the Company
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR

2015

—“E-HF

HK$'000
BETT

3,331,552
(1,695,526)

1,636,026

1,354,580
281,446

1,636,026

As at 31 December

R+=A=t+—H
2016 2017 2018
—E-RF ZE—tF ZE)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T BETT

2,524,472 2,630,955 2,218,214
(1,061,140) (1,051,498) (592,124)

1,463,332 1,579,457 1,626,090

1,198,271 1,281,917 1,339,688
265,061 297,540 286,402

1,463,332 1,579,457 1,626,090

2019
—EB-hE
HK$'000
kR

2,294,032
(550,534)

1,743,498

1,355,149
388,349

1,743,498
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